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Revenue increased by approximately 13.7% to approximately
RMB1,610.0 million in 2018 (2017: approximately RMB1,416.4
million)

Gross profit decreased by approximately 10.6% to
approximately RMB428.0 million in 2018 (2017: approximately
RMB478.5 million)

Profit for the year decreased by approximately 40.7% to
approximately RMB86.4 million in 2018 (2017: approximately
RMB145.7 million)

Basic earnings per share decreased by approximately 41.1%
to approximately RMB8.64 cents in 2018 (2017: approximately
RMB14.68 cents)

The Board proposed to declare final dividend of HK1.3 cents
per ordinary share (2017: HK3.8 cents) for the year ended 31
December 2018
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2018 (“2018" or the
“Reporting Period") to the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”).

After over ten years of rapid and steady development, the
Company has successfully shifted from M (manufacturing) oriented
to B (brand) oriented.

In 2002, the Company commenced its original equipment
manufacturing (OEM) sofa business, and laid a solid foundation for
production and tapped into overseas markets through cooperation
with internationally renowned brands. In 2008, the Group then
commenced its original design production (ODM) business. With
years of experience and by focusing on research and development
and innovation, the Group commenced its original brand
production (OBM) business and took the first step to launch its self-
owned brand in 2013. Following its listing on the Main Board of The
Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in
2017, the Group accelerated its pace of development and
developed its own retail channels in 2018.

Under my leadership, the Group has achieved fruitful results by
gradually transforming from an original equipment manufacturing
(OEM) company to an enterprise with self-owned brands and smart
manufacturing technologies. From 2013 to 2018, the proportion of
the Group’s self-owned brands to OEM has significantly increased,
demonstrating the strength of the Group’s self-owned brands.
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During the year, the Group successfully completed one of its major
tasks by acquiring all the issued and outstanding common stock of
Jennifer Convertibles Inc. (“Jennifer Convertibles”), a well-known
U.S. furniture chain with a long history, and quickly absorbing its
overseas self-owned retail channels. In order to build an
international furniture brand, the Group must develop its own sales
channels, so as to fully implement its brand strategies for in-depth
development and enhance its market position and bargaining
power in the industry chain. Acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles
marked an important milestone to further raise its bargaining
power in the international market. The brand building of Morrisofa
represented another significant step for brand development of the
Company. In addition, thanks to the unwavering efforts of the
management of the Company in the past year, the team building,
channel construction and market and product positioning in the
domestic market began to take shape, laying a solid foundation for
future development.

Looking forward to 2019, | will continue to lead all staff of the
Company to step onto the international stage and develop its self-
owned brands, aiming at becoming a well-known furniture brand
enterprise in the world.

For external strategies, the Group will actively develop its business,
consolidate its existing market in North America and strive to
expand its original brand retail channels. At the same time, the
Group will also actively explore other overseas markets, diversify its
risks and further internationalize the products and brands of the
Company. Furthermore, building on its solid foundation in the
domestic market, the Company is looking for a fast-growing
business model to promote its new products and brand concepts
to a wider range of young consumers. For internal strategies, the
Company plans to set up a new production plant to be named the
“Morris Center”, enhance its production capacity and technologies,
actively focus on internal informatization, improve its employee
performance review system, and strengthen the production
management and quality supervision systems of its factories, so as
to enhance its internal operational efficiency and create higher
benefits.
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In addition, the Company will continue to build its corporate
culture, and turn the Company into a platform for its employees to
showcase their talents, turn the jobs into the careers of its staff and
turn the products into the works of its workers. Meanwhile, the
Group will continue to promote its management concept and core
values, namely the “Five Hearts of Morris”, with an aim to provide all
its staff a pleasant working environment, healthy and promising
future and happy life achieved from their hard work.

I'would like to reiterate my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders for
their faith in the Company. | strongly believe the market will
ultimately reward the Group'’s long-term thinking and strategy will
generate greatest results.

Zou Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 10 July 2019
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Mr. Zou Gebing, aged 42, is the chairman and CEO of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He
is responsible for overseeing and mapping the Group’s growth
strategy and overall management.

Prior to joining the Group, he was the marketing and development
manager in Zhejiang Kasen Industrial Group Co., Ltd., and was
deputy general manager in Hongyang Group Co., Ltd., from July
1997 to March 2000 and from May 2000 to March 2002,
respectively, and had been mainly responsible for exploration and
development of overseas markets of sofas and other furniture. He
joined Morris Group Co., Ltd. ("Morris PRC") as part of its
management team in May 2002, served as its vice chairman and
general manager since February 2005, and became the chairman
of Morris PRC in January 2012.

Mr. Zou obtained a bachelor’s degree in English from Shanghai
International Studies University in the PRC in July 1997 and a
master’s degree in business administration for senior management
from Zhejiang University in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC") in March 2007. He had also served as a corporate tutor for
MBA postgraduates in the Management School of Zhejiang
University from April 2007 to March 2012. Mr. Zou was accredited
as a senior economist by the Senior Economist Qualification
Committee of Zhejiang Province in December 2007.

With over 17 years of industry experience as mentioned above, Mr.
Zou is an experienced entrepreneur in furniture manufacturing
related businesses.

Mr. Zou's spouse, Ms. Wu Xiangfei (one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company), is a cousin of Mr. Shen'’s spouse.
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Mr. Zeng Jin, aged 45, is the senior vice president and head of
production and quality management of the Group and was
appointed as an executive Director on 18 March 2016. He is
responsible for overseeing production planning and manufacturing
and quality management the Group. He has extensive experience
in production and quality management.

Prior to joining the Group, he had worked as a technician in
Shanghai Hongdun Anti-Counterfeit Material Co., Ltd. from August
1997 to May 1998. He had then worked at Uniplas (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. from May 1998 to September 2000. He then subsequently
worked as a quality engineer at Krone Communications (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd. from September 2000 to November 2001. He had then
been employed as a plant manager assistant and manager in the
engineering department of Shanghai Trayton Furniture Co., Ltd.
from November 2001 to January 2005. He then joined Morris PRC
and was appointed as a general manager assistant in January 2005
and then as a deputy general manager in November 2011. He was
then employed by the Group as a senior vice president and the
head of production and quality management immediately after
completion of the business transfer in December 2015.

Mr. Zeng obtained his double bachelor’'s degrees in polymer
science and computer software from the East China University of
Science and Technology in Shanghai, PRC in July 1997 and a master
of Business Administration degree from Donghua University in
Shanghai, PRCin June 2008.
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Mr. Shen Zhidong, aged 44, is a senior vice president of the Group
and was appointed as an executive Director on 6 July 2017. He is
also a director of Masia Industries Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company in Cambodia. Mr. Shen is the head of administrative
operations and human resources matters of the Group.

Mr. Shen had served in the government sectors in Haining for over
ten years. From February 1999 to June 2010, Mr. Shen had served in
the Organization Department of Haining Municipal Committee of
the Communist Party of China in many positions including, among
others, as a section member, a deputy section leader, a section
leader, a committee member and a deputy bureau level
coordinator. From June 2010 to January 2014, Mr. Shen served as
the deputy director of the General Office of the People’s
Government of Haining. In January 2014, Mr. Shen was employed
by Morris PRC as its vice president. He was employed by the Group
as the senior vice president immediately after completion of the
transfer of the furniture division of Morris PRC to the Group in
December 2015.

Mr. Shen graduated from the Party School Open College of the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China in the study of
economic management in December 2002.

Mr. Shen’s spouse is a cousin of Ms. Wu Xiangfei, one of the
controlling shareholders of the Company and the spouse of Mr.
Zou.

Mr. Wu Yueming, aged 35, is the general manager of the
administrative department of the Company and was appointed as
an executive Director on 6 June 2018. He is mainly responsible for
coordinating and managing back office support works and public
relations of the Company. He is also a director of Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products Co., Ltd., Zhejiang Morris Trendy Home Co,, Ltd.,
and Haining Morris Home Gallery Co,, Ltd., each a subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. Wu joined Morris PRC in 2005 where he worked as a
technician of semi-finished sofa production. He was subsequently
promoted to manager of the logistics department in September
2010, deputy office director in April 2012 and standing deputy
office director in August 2014 at Morris PRC. He was then employed
as the general manager of the administrative department of the
Company in January 2017. He obtained the qualification of assistant
economist issued by the Haining City Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau in November 2014. He also obtained the
graduation certificate from the Normal College of the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics in administration
management through distance learning in July 2016.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

MERELE - 4458 - RASESRBIEE - 12017
F7RBEZERANITES - BINAARRRIHR
1 ZE [} J& /2 §] Masia Industries Limited B & & ° Jt 5
FRERNEENTHREERANEREER °

MEEBEBRNBEBMMPFIEB T - 51999
FLAE010F6 A MELELEKNRPHREETZR
AERETZERA - EhEEME - BIRE - #
k- B eaXEalRRAME - 5201056 A
E14F 1A LEERTEETARBFEHRAE
BIEME - R20145F1 A LEEBEREPEERE
A - HN2015F 12 ARBF BT REXS
BETASERZ BAEASEZERSHAR
£ o

LIEER 20025 12 AEFHE P RBRKREL
REEEERAREN

LRENRBRRRRZERAR - BaENRBE
AR LR LR

KRBPERE 355 BAARITHEBALE - B
018F6 A6AEZTANTEST - HEEAEWH
FAREEANAREHPRAETIEITIERARDIRND
HEHR - HIAATTIINEET ERRER AR
IRAREREERAFIMEERAERIEGR
RENES Z=—RAHAERRFINHBAFR -
R E 2005 F AT A F B & (E F 5K da D 2
EERME - HEEER2010F9 BEFARET
PIRE IR « R2012F 4 ABHARAZE IR
R2014F 8 AEA AP AEEREIE( « KBH 2017
F1RAXEAARRRITHEMBALIR - {FH 2014 11
RESBEM ANERMASREBBEIEMBNIEL
ERNER - MBRREEF N 2016F7 A B8R
KAEBLTESEERESTREEEXENEEE
= .



Mr. Liu Haifeng, aged 44, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 6 July 2017 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
He is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Liu has been a tutor to master students in public administration
of faculties of humanities of Donghua University since 2011 and a
deputy manager of Donghua University Master of Public
Administration Center since September 2014.

Mr. Liu obtained his master degree in education from Shanghai
Normal University in June 2004. Mr. Liu later obtained his doctoral
degree in management science and engineering from Donghua
University School of Business and Management in June 2009. He
then later completed his postdoctoral study in applied economics
at Fudan University and obtained his certificate of postdoctoral in
May 2014.

Mr. Pang Wing Hong, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 12 April 2019 and is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the
Board. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee. He has over 20 years of experience in financial
management, accounting, auditing and corporate finance. He
obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration degree, majoring in
professional accountancy, from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1994 and a Master of Business Administration degree from
the University of Adelaide, Australia in 2008. He has been an
associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants since 1998 and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since 2002. Mr. Pang has been the
chief financial officer of Miko International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1247), a company listed on the Stock Exchange since October
2015. From April 2015 to October 2015, Mr. Pang was the chief
financial officer of China Green (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 904),
a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Chu Guodi, aged 40, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 28 May 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.
He is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee. He has over 17 years of experience as a practicing
lawyer in China. He is currently a partner of /T /8 FH{2 A0 E 7 FT
(Zhejiang Haixiang Law Firm*). Mr. Chu has been an independent
director of MMT E & EE L 2B ERH A R A 7 (Zhejiang
Huatie Construction Safety Science And Technology Co., Ltd.*), a
company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange with a stock code of
603300, since June 2014 and an independent director of 728 FH%
%17 B FR A &) (Brother Enterprises Holding Co., Ltd.*), a company
listed on Shenzhen Stock Exchange with a stock code of 002562,
since April 2017.

Mr. Chu is a member of A %= 2 & 12 Al # & (All-China Lawyers’
Association®). He graduated from Zhejiang University with a
bachelor degree of law.

*  Forreference only
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Ms. Peng Yuling, aged 55, was appointed as the chief financial
officer of the Group on 31 December 2015. She is responsible for
managing the financial operations and accounting functions of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Peng served as a finance
manager, a deputy general manager and a director at Haining
Jisheng Textile Co., Ltd. from February 1994 to November 2001. Ms.
Peng then subsequently served as a deputy finance manager and a
director at Zhejiang Jianshi Industry Co., Ltd. and a deputy general
manager and a director at Haining Jishun Garments Co., Ltd., from
December 2001 to December 2005 and from December 2006 to
January 2012, respectively. Ms. Peng joined Morris PRC as the chief
financial officer in February 2012 and was employed by the Group
as the chief financial officer immediately after completion of the
business transfer in December 2015. Ms. Peng graduated from the
Party School of the Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China in the PRC in the study of Economic Management in
December 2000. She was accredited as a senior accountant by the
Assessment Committee of Senior Accountant Qualification of
Zhejiang Province in December 2003.

Ms. Shen Jiangping, aged 45, was appointed as the director of
human resources of the Group on 31 December 2015. She is
responsible for overseeing recruitment, staff training, reward
management and human resources matters of the Group. Ms. Shen
joined Morris PRC in October 2001 and worked at the human
resources department of Morris PRC. Ms. Shen was then promoted
to deputy manager and manager in the human resources
department of Morris PRC in April 2002 and December 2011,
respectively. Ms. Shen was subsequently appointed as manager in
the finance department of Morris PRC in June 2014. Ms. Shen was
employed by the Group as the director of human resources
immediately after completion of the business transfer in December
2015. Ms. Shen completed a three year program in accounting at
the School of Distance Learning of Zhejiang University in the PRC in
June 2007. Ms. Shen was accredited as a first level corporate human
resources professional by the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC in December 2010.
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During the 2018 financial year, the Group continued to maintain
steady growth in revenue by actively investing in product design
and research and development and establishing and expanding
sales channels. The Group's revenue increased from approximately
RMB1,416.4 million in 2017 to approximately RMB1,610.0 million in
2018, representing an increase of approximately 13.7%. Profit for
the year decreased by approximately 40.7% from approximately
RMB145.7 million in 2017 to approximately RMB86.4 million in 2018.

The U.S. market

On 31 August 2018, the Company successfully acquired all the
issued and outstanding common stock of Jennifer Convertibles.
Such acquisition represented a critical step forward in
implementing the Group's brand development strategies. Jennifer
Convertibles is principally engaged in the retail business of sale of a
complete line of furniture products and home furnishings in the
eastern part of the U.S. It has good reputations on carrying good
quality furniture products and a variety of different designed
products. Its retail chain also carries semi customization services for
comparatively high-end customers. At the time of the acquisition,
Jennifer Convertibles operated 17 retail outlets in the eastern part
of the U.S, located in New York, New Jersey and Connecticut. The
acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles further complemented the
Group's industry chain from research and development and design,
production and manufacturing to end user sales of its own brands.
Jennifer Convertible’s long established sales network and market
presence helped to facilitate the Company’s own-brand strategy
and created synergy effects with the existing business of the Group.
The integrated business model of the Group after the acquisition,
covering the full industry chain, had also enhanced the competitive
advantages of the Company.

The U.S. wholesale market review

Despite the uncertainties surrounding the business environments
in the U.S., with a stable customer base, the Company’s business in
the wholesale market was relatively stable in 2018. While
maintaining long-term relationships with its major customers, the
Group further explored business opportunities from smaller
furniture retailers to diversify the concentration risks in revenue.
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The PRC market

On 12 January 2018, the Group's own brand “Morrisofa” set up its
first flagship store in the PRC market, and launched its sofa product
collection, namely “Fall in Love (—BR ALY " It successfully tapped
into the domestic market of young consumers with a brand new,
fashionable and intelligent brand image. In 2018, the Company
participated in various international major furniture exhibitions in
Shenzhen, Beijing and Shanghai, and invested in brand promotion
and sales network expansion. By the end of 2018, the Company has
established 3 direct sales-stores in Shanghai and Hangzhou and set
up 7 distribution stores in 7 other cities in the PRC. In addition, the
Company was aware of the rapid development and growing trend
of online shopping. During the year 2018, online stores have been
setup in major online shopping platforms including Jingdong,
Taobao and WeChat, providing online and offline services to vast
consumers.

Cambodia

The production facility in Cambodia has neither commenced trial
operation in the first half of 2017 nor become fully operative in
2018. The Company has installed some machines and equipment
in the factory in Cambodia, but operations had not been started as
at the date of this report. The development in the Sihanoukville
Special Economic Zone was much slower than expected and many
of the infrastructure and peripheral facilities, as well as the supply
chain for the manufacturing of sofa was still in an infant status and
still could not support a mass production of sofa as at the date of
this report.

FETE

2018F 1 AHN2H  AEEBERRE [ RADE ] &
PR ESMRE —MEEE - WHELT—BRAL]
DBEMRY  KINAFE - B St mig
FEITEPEHBEANNFEEBME - £201845F -
AAR2ETHRY - LR EEHERARRER
T EAMEHENIRBEERERTER -2
018FFK » ARAIELS - MINARIIREL
JE o RESIHINERBIR TR REHEPE - B
Gy RARHEIHGE LEMESRERERIERE
o A2018F  BRIERRE - AEMMEEEE
MBEBTFEYRERE ERREBTREEXES
% °

HRIHEE

R RIFEM EER MBI ER2017F EFFRHB
HiE MER208FE2EEAEE - NARER
WRIREZE T E TS NEE  ERASRE B
MARRIRIEALE - BB R EEFENBERIEK
RRIENTER  ZTEERRGENMAEREANEE
DEMEEREDERVIHEREE  RAREAH

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 FF 7R



The Ministry of Public Works and Transport of Cambodia
announced the infrastructure improvements and future plans in
October 2014 (the “2014 plans”) which, among other things,
outlined (i) a proposed Cambodian expressway network including
an expressway from Phnom Penh to Sihanoukville; (i) railway
network development projects including a southern line from
Phnom Penh to Sihanoukville; and (iii) a development plan of the
Sihanoukville Port with an estimated capacity of 350,000 TEUs per
year. However, the Company realized that the actual infrastructure
development has fallen significantly far behind the 2014 plans in
late 2017. As at the date of this report, there was only a bumpy
state road currently available connecting Phnom Penh and
Sihanoukville; and to the best knowledge of the Company, limited
shipments were available from the Sihanoukville Port to ports for
the Group's customers in the U.S., where the Group receives
majority of its orders. Only in March 2019 that the Cambodia
government confirmed an expressway project connecting
Sihanoukville and Phnom Penh which is scheduled to be
completed in early 2023. Furthermore, the Company realized in late
2017 that the major raw materials, such as softwood, leather and
specialty foam of the sofa sourced from local suppliers in Cambodia
did not meet the production standard of the Group.

In view of the above, the Company considered that the
commencement of full operation of the production facility in
Cambodia was not in the best interest of the Group and decided to
further delay the commencement of full operation of the
Cambodia factory until the infrastructure and peripheral facilities
favor a mass production of the Group'’s products with economic
sense. The Company would like to stress that the delay in the
development plan in Cambodia was caused by uncontrollable
external factors. The Company expects there will be no large capital
expenditure in Cambodia in the forthcoming future.

The Company has engaged a consultancy firm to conduct a review
of the political, social, investment and macro-economic risks in
Cambodia for the year 2018. The political risk and economic risk of
Cambodia is set out in the section headed “Cambodia: Political and
Economic Outlook” on pages 25 to 31 of this annual report.
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Product research and development

The Group has always attached great importance to research and
development investment and product innovation, in order to
maintain a high-quality level and strive for product intelligence.
During the year 2018, the Group had successfully developed a new
product, “voice-activated sofa”, which has been launched in Hong
Kong in early 2019. The launch of the voice-activated sofa
highlighted the Company’s strength in research and development
and production. It also demonstrated further enrichment of the
Group's product portfolio under its self-owned brands while taking
a crucial step forward in enriching its product intelligence.

In addition, in August 2018, the Group has been successfully
confirmed as one of the drafting parties for organization standards
of manufacturing electric functional sofas in Zhejiang and has
obtained three major ISO system certifications in November 2018.

The revenue of the Group increased from approximately
RMB1,416.4 million in 2017 to approximately RMB1,610.0 million in
2018, representing an increase of approximately 13.7%. The profit
for the year decreased by approximately 40.7% from approximately
RMB145.7 million in 2017 to approximately RMB86.4 million in 2018.
If excluding the loss on remeasurement of liability component of
convertible loan of approximately RMB24.6 million, fair value gain
on convertible loan of approximately RMB27.5 million and interest
expense on the convertible loan of approximately RMB15.1 million
incurred in 2018, the profit for the year would decrease by
approximately 32.3% from approximately RMB145.7 million in 2017
to approximately RMB98.6 million in 2018. The Company’s basic
and diluted earnings per ordinary share was approximately
RMB8.64 cents in 2018 (2017: RMB14.68 cents) based on the profit
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company
approximately RMB86.4 million (2017: RMB145.6 million), and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000
(2017:992,465,753) in issue during the year.
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Revenue

The revenue of the Group increased by approximately 13.7%, from
approximately RMB1,416.4 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB1,610.0 million in 2018, which was primarily attributable to the
significant increase in sales volume of both sofas and sofa covers.
Sofa products continued to contribute as the major component of
sales, which was in line with the Group's strategy in developing its
original brand manufacturing ("OBM") business model. The Group
has been changing its business model from original equipment
manufacturing business model to OBM business model and has
been increasing its focus on promoting the Group’s own brand in
the market during the Reporting Period.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group increased by approximately 26.0%
from approximately RMB937.9 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB1,182.0 million in 2018, which was primarily due to the increase
in the consumption of major raw materials and increase in direct
labour.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 10.6%
from approximately RMB478.5 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB428.0 million in 2018. The gross profit margin decreased from
approximately 33.8% in 2017 to approximately 26.6% in 2018,
primarily due to the additional tariff levied on the Group’s export
products and the increase in labour cost and the cost of leather raw
materials.

Other net income and gains

The other net income and gains of the Group increased from
approximately RMB36.9 million in 2017 to approximately RMB85.8
million in 2018. Such increase was primarily due to the fair value
gain on the convertible loan of approximately RMB27.5 million, net
income of selling unused raw materials of approximately RMB9.3
million and exchange gain recorded in 2018 whereas exchange
loss was recorded in 2017.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group slightly
decreased by approximately 3.6% from approximately RMB215.3
million in 2017 to approximately RMB207.6 million in 2018. Such
decrease was primarily due to the decrease in freight charges.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

N
AEEWAB2017FHARE 141648 & TIE N
#I137% 22018 F AR 16100BE L TER
HRDERDEERNHEERNE L - DEERES
MIBEEMEZLLLY - MAFEAEBRZEERRE
AE(TOBM]) (B REARKE - AEEDHEZE
ERA A RREEEER S0BM » WS A
mEEEMSLHEEREAESENBRME -

SHERA
AREEHEERAE2077FHOARK 379G E TG
N4 260% E 2018 FHARKE11820B8L £ E
RHAREEEMEDERE LA MNEES T -

EX
REBEFMBA2017TFHNARKE4785BEITALL
106% E2018F ) ARBE480F B ITL EFMEH
2017 4F 4933.8% 8 L E 2018 F 49266% * F E2 M
REAREER T O EREUREEINER - 11 8T
RN & R R _ER o

HaF WA R W E

AEBEEMFRARKEEHR 2017 FHOARE69H
BIUIEME2018FHARBSSEHET - BHAEE
FERAR018FH BT BRBEE RN AL E RS
WARB275HEETT  HERERAREMRBAFRA
HMARBEIIH &L RIE F Uz - 2017 FBIER1S
P& 5 E518 -

HERDHEEX
AREBEHEELRDHASZE20177FHARE 21538
BB AI36% 22018 F AR 2076 B ETT °
fRRBEIERANEERSTRD -



Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group increased by
approximately 53.5% from approximately RMB101.7 million in 2017
to approximately RMB156.1 million in 2018, which was primarily
due to the increase in legal and professional expenses, consultation
fee and staff salaries of approximately RMB37.9 million for the
acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles, the operation of the new retail
stores and the issue of the convertible loan during the year.

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 112.8%
from approximately RMB11.7 million in 2017 to approximately
RMB24.9 million in 2018, which was primarily due to the increase in
interest for convertible loan of approximately RMB15.1 million.

Income tax expense

The income tax expense of the Group decreased by approximately
63.7% from approximately RMB38.3 million in 2017 to
approximately RMB13.9 million in 2018. In addition, the effective tax
rate decreased from approximately 20.8% in 2017 to approximately
13.8% in 2018. The substantial decrease in income tax expense in
2018 was mainly attributable to a reduced enterprise income tax
rate of 15%.

Profit for the year

As a result of the foregoing, The profit for the year decreased by
approximately 40.7% from approximately RMB145.7 million in 2017
to approximately RMB86.4 million in 2018. If excluding the loss on
remeasurement of liability component of convertible loan of
approximately RMB24.6 million, fair value gain on convertible loan
of approximately RMB27.5 million and interest expense on the
convertible loan of approximately RMB15.1 million incurred in 2018,
the profit for the year would decrease by approximately 32.3% from
approximately RMB145.7 million in 2017 to approximately RMB98.6
million in 2018.
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Working capital

For 2018, cash and cash equivalents of the Group increased by
approximately RMB96.5 million, which was comprised of the net
cash flows generated from operating activities of approximately
RMB70.9 million, net cash flows used in investing activities of
approximately RMB154.2 million, and net cash flows generated
from financing activities of approximately RMB175.4 million, while
approximately RMB4.4 million was the net exchange gain of foreign
exchange rate changes.

Borrowing and pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's interest-bearing bank
borrowings amounted to approximately RMB142.2 million, all of
which were repayable within twelve months from 31 December
2018. The bank loans’ interest rates ranged between 2.7% to 6.5%
per annum.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group, which is total interest-bearing bank
borrowings divided by total equity as at the end of the year and
multiplied by 100%, decreased from approximately 44.0% as at 31
December 2017 to approximately 38.7% as at 31 December 2018,
which was primarily due to the increase in total equity and
repayment of interest-bearing bank borrowings during 2018.

Capital commitments

The Group did not have any capital commitment as at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMBO.7 million).

Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2018.

Trade and bills receivables

The trade and bills receivables of the Group increased to
approximately RMB634.5 million as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: RMB372.1 million), primarily due to the significant
increase in sales to the Group's customers in the fourth quarter in
2018 as compared to the corresponding period in 2017.
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Trade and bills payables

The trade and bills payables of the Group decreased to
approximately RMB416.8 million as at 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: RMB488.5 million), primarily due to the
restructuring of subsidiaries in PRC which reduced the bills
payables and increase in timely payment to the suppliers for third
party purchases. In order to monitor the Group's cash flow position,
the finance department will present the cash flow statements to
the senior management on monthly basis.

Foreign exchange exposure

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly located in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from the Group's operations are generally settled
in RMB. As a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollar against
RMB could adversely affect the financial results of the Group.
During 2018, the Group did not experience any material difficulties
or impacts on its operations or liquidity as a result of currency
exchange fluctuation. The Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging purposes during 2018 and there was no
hedging instruments outstanding as at 31 December 2018. The
Group will continue to monitor closely the exchange rate risk
arising from its existing operations and new investments in the
future, especially amid frequent global trade disputes and
mounting trade protectionism posing more uncertainties and risks
to the economic development across the globe, in particular the
PRC and the U.S. economies in view of the trade war between the
PRC and the U.S. The Group will further implement the necessary
hedging arrangement to mitigate any significant foreign exchange
risk when and if appropriate.
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Save as mentioned under the section headed “Business Review” in
this annual report, the Group had no other significant investments,
nor had it made any material acquisition or disposal of the Group’s
subsidiaries or associated companies during the Reporting Period.

The management of the Group believes that talent is the basis for
long-term development of enterprises. The Group targets to
enhance its corporate image through building up and solidifying
the Company’s brand name. With the 'Five Hearts of Morris”:
ambition, confidence, determination, perseverance and loyalty, as
core values, the Group targets to establish a distinctive corporate
culture. Through regular trainings and promotion of its corporate
culture, the Group provides its staff with opportunities for personal
growth and enhances the employees’ sense of belonging to the
Group. In addition, the Group provides its employees with
competitive remuneration packages and various benefits in line
with industry practice. At the same time, the Group strives to create
a good working environment, and cultivates teamwork spirit
among employees. The Group carries out performance evaluation
quarterly, and conducts “Morris Artisans” evaluations, aiming at
elevating the morale of the Group’s technicians. The Group
regularly reviews human resources policies to ensure that the
policies align with market practice and comply with regulatory
requirements. As of 31 December 2018, the Group employed 2,499
employees (31 December 2017: 2,052 employees). The total annual
salary and related costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) for
2018 were approximately RMB184.9 million (2017: RMB188.0
million).

The Company operates a share option scheme which allows the
Company to grant options to eligible persons as rewards for their
contributions to the Group. The share option scheme has been
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. No share options
were granted, exercised or cancelled by the Company under the
share option scheme during the period from the listing date to 31
December 2018 and there were no outstanding share options
under the share option scheme as at 31 December 2018 and the
date of this report.
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The followings are part of the key risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group. There may be other risks and uncertainties in
addition to those shown below which are not known to the Group
or which may not be material now but could turn out to be
material in the future.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
so as to ensure sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
lines of funding from major financial institutions (when applicable)
to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term. The
Group's cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2018
maintained at a satisfactory level. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group had no significant capital commitment.

Foreign currency risk

Revenue from major customers is mainly from the U.S. while the
production facilities of the Group are mainly operates in the PRC.
Accordingly, most of the sales are denominated in U.S. dollar while
the costs arising from its operations are generally settled in RMB. As
a result, fluctuations in the value of U.S. dollars against RMB could
adversely affect the financial results of the Group. During 2018, the
Group did not experience any material difficulties or impacts on its
operations or liquidity as a result of currency exchange fluctuation.

The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes during 2018 and there was no hedging instruments
outstanding as at 31 December 2018. The Group will continue to
monitor closely the exchange rate risk arising from its existing
operations and new investments in the future. The Group will
further implement the necessary hedging arrangement to mitigate
any significant foreign exchange risk when and if appropriate.
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Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables.
Credit evaluations are performed on all credit customers taking into
account the customer’s payment history and current ability to pay,
any information specific to the customer and the economic
environment in which the customer operates. The credit period is
generally one to two months, extending up to three to six months
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum credit limit.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. Impairment losses are recorded for those overdue
balances where there is objective evidence of impairment.

The Group has concentration risk in respect of trade receivables
due from the Group's five largest customers who accounted for
approximately 67.7% and 85.8% of the Group’s total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2018 and 2017 respectively. The
credit risk exposure to trade receivables balance has been and will
continue to be monitored by the Group on an ongoing basis.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of
rate changes on interest-bearing bank borrowings. The Group
monitors the interest rate exposure on a continuous basis and
adjusts the portfolio of bank deposits and borrowings where
necessary.

Economy of U.S. market

As the majority of the Group's revenue is derived from the U.S, its
results of operations and financial condition therefore depend on
the U.S. economy. The Group’s profitability and business growth
are affected by the uncertainty of macroeconomic conditions and
uncertain economic outlook and political conditions in U.S..

The U.S. economy faces challenges such as budget deficits, public
debt, lack of labor market dynamism and change in political
instability. Moreover, Donald Trump, elected President in November
2016, has changed the U.S. trade policies with China, which could
bring adverse impact to the business of the Group.

The Group has evaluated the business risk from the change in trade
policies of U.S. with China, and would explore different means to
mitigate such risks stemming therefrom.
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Transparency International’s Corruption Perceptions Index has
ranked Cambodia as one of the worst countries for corruption in
the Asia Pacific region for the last several years. Although
international agencies have been helping the government to write
anti-corruption legislation since the 1990s, and many provisions
such as the 2011 Anticorruption Law cover Western concerns
about corruption and power abuses, but poor enforcement means
that they have little effect.

In Cambodia, endemic levels of corruption combine with a high
degree of bureaucracy to make the commercial environment
potentially difficult. The 2018 edition of the World Bank’s Ease of
Doing Business survey places Cambodia 135th out of 190 countries,
with only the ability to obtain easy credit offsetting the poor
rankings for starting a business (183rd), dealing with construction
permits (179th), and enforcing contracts (179th). All these are areas
that are susceptible to bribery and corruption.

Corruption is becoming an issue not only for businesses but also
individuals. As the economy has improved, research has revealed
that corruption is one of the leading concerns for ordinary
Cambodians. However, while a meaningful rather than cosmetic
anti-corruption campaign would probably be popular, it remains
unlikely that the Cambodian People’s Party (CPP) will feel the need
to move beyond rhetoric to significant action during 2018.
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QUALITY OF GOVERNANCE TRENDS REBEEEER

The World Bank's Worldwide Governance Indicators (WGI) show — t 5 4R1TH) [t BIES | @R - NBE 155
that rankings for certain measures of Cambodia’s political ~ RIHZEE TEOGABE AR INARIE - B 19%
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the only measure that shows significant improvement since 1996. & K& B HE40E ©

This may be attributable to the longevity of the current ruling party

and Prime Minister.

Quality of governance trends
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The economy is a principle domain to support the national
development program, which involves sustainability and
macroeconomy. It should effectively use its natural and
human resources. Cambodia would promote free market
economy linked with the program of combat the poverty,
and social justice. The economic mechanism runs its course
within rules and regulations of free market economy.

The Royal Government would not manage the market, but it
would support it. The Royal Government would grant the
private sector the right of self-determination on productivity,
investment, and expenditure, and it would intervene much
less. For the reasons, it would set legal and administrative
structures to ensure freedom and autonomy of the private
sector to property right, employment, profession, and the
right to compete freely.

It would improve mechanism and structure of economic
management to ensure the effectiveness and transparency
to cope with corruption and violation of law. That is very
important to stabilize the macro-economy, to boost the
people’s standard of living, and to encourage the investment.
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It prioritizes the physical agricultural infrastructure, electricity
and human resources, which are the basic of overall
development. The following goals must be achieved:

To speed up the economic growth in order to improve
the popular living standard and to create more
employment. The chief potential to promote the
economic growth is to amass and transform the natural
resources and the national products into the products
of export. The Royal Government would improve
economic rules and regulations and to promote
Cambodia to be a goods producer in order to attract
more foreign investment.

To ensure the stability of Riel currency, to keep the
inflation rate at bay, to prevent the loss of revenue and
private saving by the Riel fluctuation, and to build
confidence in Riel by devaluating with caution the
dollar.

To increase the export of agricultural and
manufacturing products with high expertise and
quality.

The Royal Government would do it best to alleviate the
poverty. The alleviation of poverty is not only the basic
of sustainability of the economic development, but it
also the priority to implement the social program.
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To attain the above goals, the Royal Government would seize
down the following imbalances:

. Between the need and supply, especially on foods,
housing, transportation, education and health care.

. Between the revenue and expenditure within the
national budget.

. Between the import and export.
. Between the currency and goods.
. Between salary and the standard of living of civil

servant and servicemen.

. Between the increase in the work force and the
employment.

Between the need for national development and the
training of human resources.

The Royal Government would continue to carry out the
projects, which are identified in the national program of
rehabilitation and development of Cambodia. It would focus
on the long-term program for the economic and social
development. It also attempts to achieve the urgent need for
the investment on public sector.
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The Cambodian economy continued to maintain stable growth in
2018. The International Monetary Fund is projecting real gross
domestic product growth of 7.0% in 2018 and 6.8% in 2019, with
an inflation rate of 3.3% in both years (source: International
Monetary Fund — World Economic Outlook Database October
2018).

In the first 11 months of 2018, visits to Cambodia continued to
grow with international arrivals increasing 11% to 5.4 million
visitors. China continues to be the leading source of visits to
Cambodia, growing by 69% to 1.8 million visitors in the first 11
months of 2018. China (34%), Vietnam (13%) and Laos (7%) were
the top three sources of arrivals, collectively accounting for 54% of
total visits to Cambodia. Arrivals at Phnom Penh International
Airport grew 36% over the same period (source: Ministry of Tourism,
Cambodia).

Cambodia continues to attract visitors from Asia and other nations,
benefiting from its appeal as a tourism destination and the
abundance of business opportunities that exist in an emerging
economy with political and social stability. The Ministry of Tourism
of Cambodia ("MOT") targets to attract 7.0 million visitors by 2020,
of which 2.0 million will be Chinese visitors (source: Khmer Times, 4
January 2017).
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To ensure stronger medium-term growth, there are several
challenges:

1. Infrastructure: Despite increasing public investment,
Cambodia still faces high energy costs, insufficient supply of
electricity, and shortcomings in its transportation network.

2. Cambodia ranks low among the Southeast Asian countries in
terms of ease of doing business and in competitiveness. The
cost of doing business also is high because of sometimes
burdensome government procedures.

3. Good governance is essential if Cambodia is to compete
against other countries that also aspire to move up the ladder
of development.

As disclosed on page 65, the net proceeds from the Listing for
expansion of the manufacturing capabilities in Cambodia have
been fully utilised. In view of the current development status in
Cambodia as discussed on pages 15 to 16 and the political and
economic risks in Cambodia as set out on pages 25 to 31, the
Company considered that the commencement of full operation of
the production facility in Cambodia was not in the best interest of
the Group and decided to further delay the commencement of full
operation of the Cambodia factory until the infrastructure and
peripheral facilities favor a mass production of the Group’s products
with economic sense. The Company expects there will be no large
capital expenditure in Cambodia in the forthcoming future and has
no plan to allocate further resources to Cambodia at this stage. The
Company would like to cautiously monitor the business
environment and carry out the operation subject to the
improvement of these external factors.

The Directors are of the view that no impairment of investment in
Cambodia shall be made, which is for the reasons that: (i) the
construction of production facility was completed in early 2018 and
the Directors reviewed the Cambodia Real Estate Market Outlook
2019 Report issued by CBRE Research and considered there is a
favorable trend in rental market and potential increase in value of
land and property in Cambodia; and (i) as at the date of this report,
there was no significant drop in asset’s value of the investment in
Cambodia. The Company would regularly review the asset’s value
of the investment in Cambodia and assess whether there is any
indication that the investment may be impaired.
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The Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of its Shareholders
and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The Board has
reviewed the Company's corporate governance practices and is
satisfied that save as disclosed below, the Company has complied
with all code provisions (“Code Provisions”) and, where applicable,
the recommended best practices of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Corporate Governance Code”) set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules’) since 12 January 2017, the date on
which the Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Date”) and up to the date of this report.

According to Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Zou
Gebing as both the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer in the same individual would enable the
Company to achieve higher responsiveness, efficiency and
effectiveness when formulating business strategies and executing
business plans. The Board believes that the balance of power and
authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the senior
management and the Board, which comprises experienced and
high-calibre individuals. The Board currently comprises four
executive Directors (including Mr. Zou Gebing) and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board
from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

Trading suspension and resumption

At the request of the Company, trading in the shares on the Stock
Exchange has been suspended with effect from 1:00 p.m. on 28
March 2019. Since all conditions under the resumption guidance
issued by the Stock Exchange dated 27 May 2019 have been
fulfilled to the Stock Exchange’s satisfaction, trading in the shares
on the Stock Exchange has been resumed with effect from 9:00 a.m.
on 20 August 2019. For further details, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 27 May 2019 and 19 August
2019 respectively.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

RARBANER KN EERIZE - DURER
RESKEACEEELEEE -EEE2EEMAK
ANRAMEEERER  WEMBR T HEEEI - 8
2017F 1 ANE (ARG EBKA EMBASBE( LT
RE D EEAREAS  AQFIEETHI LR
g EmREBI(T EmRR DM+ mmAhxE
JASTRI(TEEARFR ) FrA sFRE ST ([ =F BIE
X)) REFERESR(@EA) -

RIBTRMEX A2 EFEMITHRAARN ABRAM
B W NEHE—ARE - ARBDEREFRE
FERRNRAIFERTHER - EFERE 7
RITHARE R A AR — AETRERRBRGIE
EGREEITESEFEHE AUELEAR
Mt o EFGHEE - AKREENES AT HEKH
BREEENEEEETEERAERTEERED
HER - BEFERTHUAATEFT(BEEBRE
SEE) R =RBIIFNTESAK - FEEKE
BERESHELME - A EFSDERBERART
gl EE G ORE AR - WRFAR RN SK
FREERTR

EERMEEE

JEARARIESN - BIHBE2019F3 A28F NF 18 1E
BRABREEFEEE - ARB XA HBE A
20194F 5 H 27 BB FE 5| R IR B 8 2 B0EK
WREBZFTEMR - RHDE2019F8 H208 EF oK
FRRBRMREER - BEE—FFE - F2H
AAEIBEDRIA2019F 5 A27 HX20199F 8 A19
HERE o



The Company will continue to review its corporate governance
practices in order to enhance its corporate governance standard,
comply with regulatory requirements and meet the growing
expectations of shareholders and investors of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as a code of conduct of
the Company for Directors’ securities transactions. The Company
has made specific enquiry with all Directors and the relevant
employees regarding any non-compliance with the Model Code
during the Reporting Period, and they all confirmed that they had
fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the Reporting Period.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management,
businesses, strategic directions and financial performance of the
Group. The Board holds regular meetings to discuss the Group's
businesses and operations. All important issues are discussed in a
timely manner. The Board delegates to the management the daily
operations of the Group under the directions set out by the
management and the Board. The Board has established various
committees and has delegated to the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination Committee of the
Board (collectively, the “Board Committees”) various duties. All
the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in accordance
with their respective terms of reference.

Pursuant to the internal guidelines of the Group, the Board shall
meet at least four times a year. Additional board meetings will be
held when warranted. The Directors at all times have full and timely
access to information of the Group. There is a procedure for
Directors to seek independent professional advice whenever
deemed necessary by them at the expense of the Company, as
appropriate.
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Directors receive at least 14 days prior written notice of a regular
meeting and may propose matters for discussion to be included in
the agenda. The minutes of Board meetings are prepared by the
company secretary with details of the decisions reached, any
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed. Copies of the final
versions of Board minutes are sent to the Directors for their
information and records. The draft minutes are sent to all Directors
within a reasonable time after each meeting for their comments
before being formally signed. The signed minutes are kept in safe
custody by the company secretary and are available for inspection
by the Directors.

Insurance coverage in respect of Directors’ and officers’ liability has
been arranged by the Company.

As of the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as
follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. ZENG Jin

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming (appointed on 6 June 2018)

Mr. CHEN Guohua (retired on 17 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. CHU Guodi (appointed on 28 May 2019)

Mr. SHAO Shaomin (resigned on 29 March 2019)
Mr. HUANG Wenli (resigned on 28 May 2019)

The biographies of the Directors are set out in “Profile of Directors
and Senior Management” on page 8 to page 13 of this annual
report.
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During the Reporting Period, the attendance of the individual
Directors at the meetings is set out below:

RBEHE SEFHFERBEROT

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend during the Reporting Period
RESHBLE FERERNEERNY

Remuneration

Committee
Name of Director ESHE #MERE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zou Gebing PRELE N/A 7N F
Mr. Chen Guohua (Note 1) PREVESLE (it 1) N/A TiE R
Mr. Zeng Jin BEEE N/A R R
Mr.Wu Yueming (Note 2) RARRE (H5E2) N/A i A
Mr. Shen Zhidong MEREE N/A i P
Independent non-executive BV FHTES

Directors

Mr. Shao Shaomin (Note 3) BB (f2E3) 3/3
Mr. Huang Wenli (Note 4) BB R (fit4) 3/3
Mr.Pang Wing Hong (Note5)  Zik BSR4 (Hfit5) N/A T &R
Mr. Chu Guodi (Note 6) BEREE (Hi7te) N/A T &R
Mr. Liu Haifeng sl S 3/3
Notes:

(1) Mr. Chen Guohua retired on 17 May 2018.

2 Mr. Wu Yueming was appointed on 6 June 2018.

(3) Mr. Shao Shaomin resigned on 29 March 2019.

4) Ms. Huang Wenli resigned on 28 May 2019.

(5) Mr. Pang Wing Hong was appointed on 12 April 2019.

(6) Mr. Chu Guodi was appointed on 28 May 2019.

Nomination
Committee

REtZEE

N/A N A
N/A B R
N/A R
N/A R
N/A R

22
22
N/A R
N/A NE A
2

s

Audit
Committee

ENZEE

N/A NE A
N/ANER
N/A TN
N/ANER
N/A N

22
22
N/A N E R
N/ANE R
22

Board
=g

6/7
2/2
9/9
5/5
9/9

9/9
9/9
N/ANEF
N/A T
9/9

(1) FEREERAR2018F5 17 HEE -

2 ZRARLAER2018F6cAcHERT -

()  BRAELEAER 201993 B 29 HEHT »

@)  BEXEEER2019F5 A28 HEHE -

(5)  EAKELEAEN2019F4F12HERE -

(6) FEEZBEAR 201955 A28 BERT -
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General
Meeting
LETN-

11
1
N/A T
N/A TR
1/1



The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Company to protect the overall
interests of the Shareholders and the Company.

They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to provide
their independent and objective views. In compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed
three independent non-executive Directors, representing more
than one-third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board must satisfy itself that an independent non-executive
Director does not have any material relationship with the Group.
The Board is guided by the criteria of independence as set out in
the Listing Rules in determining the independence of Directors.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other, save as disclosed
under the section headed "Profile of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report. The Company has received
annual confirmation of independence from all the independent
non-executive Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors are independent in accordance with the Listing
Rules.

The independent non-executive Director Mr. Shao Shaomin was
appointed on 10 December 2016 and resigned on 29 March 2019.
Mr. Pang Wing Hong was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 12 April 2019, replacing Mr. Shao's
directorship in the Company. Mr. Huang Wenli was appointed on
10 December 2016 and resigned on 28 May 2019. Mr. Chu Guodi
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 28
May 2019, replacing Mr. Huang's directorship in the Company. Mr.
Liu Haifeng was appointed on 6 July 2017. They are subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the articles of association
of the Company (the "Articles”). Please refer to “Corporate
Governance Practices” on page 32 of this report for further details.
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All Directors are provided with timely updates on the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In addition,
the Company arranges for and provides continuous professional
development training and relevant materials to the Directors to
help ensure they are apprised of the latest changes in the
commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its business and to refresh their knowledge and skills on
the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director. The
Directors have provided to the Company their record of continuous
professional development training, and they have participated in
training activities in the following manner:

1. Reading materials on Directors’ duties, compliance issues for
listed companies and/or legal and regulatory requirements;

2. Reading materials on corporate governance and financial
reporting; and

3. Reading materials on risk management and internal control.

Dividend policy

On 10 December 2018, the Company adopted a new dividend
policy that may declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the Company, provided that the Group records a
profit after tax and that the declaration and distribution of
dividends does not affect the normal operations of the Group. The
Company intends to pay out an annual dividend payment at a
payout ratio of not less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated net
profit after tax for the then financial year after taking into
consideration of certain factors stated in the Company’s
announcement dated 10 December 2018.
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Board Diversity Policy (“Diversity Policy”)

The Company adopted a policy of having a diversity in the
composition of Board members so as to enhance the quality of its
performance. In designing the Board's composition, Board diversity
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against selection criteria, having
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The Nomination Committee will monitor the implementation of
the Diversity Policy and, from time to time, review the Diversity
Policy to ensure its effectiveness.

Nomination Policy

The Board is responsible for selection and appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Policy of the Board (the “Nomination Policy”)
sets out the criteria, process and procedures for the Nomination
Committee to recommend suitable candidates for directorship
with a view to ensuring that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall consider a number of factors in
making nominations, including but not limited to the skills and
experience of the candidate, the commitment that the candidate is
expected to devote to the Board and the competence of the
candidate in satisfying relevant legal and regulatory requirements.
The Company adopted the Diversity Policy as stated in the previous
section for achieving diversity on the Board with reference to the
Company’s business model and specific needs. The candidate to be
nominated as an INED must satisfy the independence criteria set
outin Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
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If the Nomination Committee determines that an additional or
replacement director is required, the Committee may take such
measures that it considers appropriate in connection with its
identification and evaluation of a candidate. The Nomination
Committee may propose to the Board a candidate recommended
or offered for nomination by a shareholder of the Company as a
nominee for election to the Board. On making recommendation,
the Nomination Committee may submit the candidate’s personal
profile to the Board for consideration. The Board may appoint the
candidate(s) as director(s) to fill a casual vacancy(ies) or as an
addition to the Board or recommend such candidate to
shareholders for election or re-election (where appropriate) at the
general meeting.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board Committees are established with defined written
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board Committees
are posted on the Company's website and the website of the Stock
Exchange and are available to the Shareholders upon request.

All members of each Board Committee are independent non-
executive Directors.

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, internal control system and risk management system of
the Group, to oversee the audit process and to perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

Members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Pang Wing Hong
(appointed on 12 April 2019), Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr. Chu Guodi
(appointed on 28 May 2019). They are all independent non-
executive Directors. Mr. Pang Wing Hong currently serves as the
chairman of the Audit Committee, replacing Mr. Shao Shaomin,
who resigned on 29 March 2019.
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Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on 10 July 2019,
the Audit Committee reviewed, among other things, the audited
financial statements for 2018 with recommendations to the Board
for approval and discussed with the management and the external
auditors the accounting policies and practices which may affect the
Group, the report prepared by the external auditors covering major
findings in the course of the audit and the accounting and financial
reporting matters.

The Remuneration Committee was established with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and
the Corporate Governance Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to establish and review the policy
and structure of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and make recommendations on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management and on
other employee benefit arrangements.

The Remuneration Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr.
Pang Wing Hong. Mr. Chu Guodi currently serves as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, replacing Mr. Huang Wenli who
resigned on 28 May 2019.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration Committee on 10
July 2019, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the Directors and senior management of the
Company, and reviewed and recommended to the Board the
remuneration policy and structure relating to the Directors and
senior management of the Company.

The remuneration for the Directors and senior management
comprises basic salary, retirement benefits and discretionary bonus.
Details of the amount of emoluments of Directors paid for 2018 are
set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Details of the remuneration by band of the 2 members of the
senior management of the Company, whose profile are set out on
page 13 of this annual report, for 2018 are set out below:

Number of individual

Remuneration band

Nil to HK$1,000,000 2
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The Nomination Committee was established with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on appointments of the Directors,
to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors, to take up references and to consider related matters.

The Nomination Committee consists of all the independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chu Guodi, Mr. Liu Haifeng and Mr.
Pang Wing Hong. Mr. Liu Haifeng currently serves as the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorships by making
reference to the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional
knowledge, personal integrity and time commitments of such
individuals, the requirements of the business of the Group and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations. An external
recruitment agency may be engaged to carry out the recruitment
and selection process when necessary.

Further, pursuant to the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee, the Nomination Committee, when reviewing the
composition of the Board, will have regard to the diversity of the
Board, which includes gender, age, cultural and educational
background, length of service, skills, knowledge and professional
experience of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee on 10 July
2019, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the structure, size and composition of the
Board and assessed independence of the independent non-
executive Directors.
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The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in code provision D.3.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, namely:

(iif)

(iv)

to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance;

to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (including in relation to securities
trading) applicable to employees and Directors; and

to review the Company's compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report in the Company’s annual report.

The Board will continue to review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and legal and regulatory
compliance, training and continuous professional development
participations of the Directors, as well as the Company’s
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

During 2018, the total fees paid/payable in respect of services
provided by the Group's external auditors are set out below:

Audit and audit related services
Non-audit services: Taxation and other professional services
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Ms. Ho Ka Yan (“Ms. Ho") was appointed as the company secretary
of the Company on 28 February 2018, who was responsible for
handling company secretarial matters including compliance with
the companies ordinance. On 28 February 2019, Ms. Ho resigned
from the role as the company secretary of the Company, and the
company secretary position was held vacant as at the date of this
report.

The Board, supported by the finance and accounting department,
is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements of the
Group that give a true and fair view. In preparing the financial
statements, the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants have
been adopted. Appropriate accounting policies have also been
used and applied consistently. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is included in the Report of the Independent Auditors on pages 71
to 80 of this annual report.
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The management has the responsibility to maintain appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems, and
the Board has the responsibility to review and monitor the
effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal control
systems at least annually covering material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls, to ensure that the
systems in place are adequate and effective. The Group adopts a
risk management system which manages the risk associated with
its business and operations. The system comprises the following
phases:

Identification: Identify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the
achievement of objectives.

Evaluation: Analyse the likelihood and impact of risks
and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective

communication to the Board and on-going
monitor the residual risks.

The Company has in place an internal control system which is
compatible with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission (“COSO") 2013 framework. The COSO
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
The five key components of the COSO framework are shown as
follows:

Control
Environment:

A set of standards, processes and structures
that provide the basis for carrying out
internal control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analysing risks to achieve the
Group's objectives, forming a basis for
determining how risks should be managed.
Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management
directives to mitigate risks to the
achievement of objectives are carried out.
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Internal and external communication to
provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Information and
Communication:

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to
ascertain whether each component of

internal control is present and functioning.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems are,
however, designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Group has conducted an annual review on whether there is a
need for an internal audit department. Given the Group’s relatively
simple corporate and operation structure, as opposed to diverting
resources to establish a separate internal audit department, the
Board, supported by the Audit Committee, is directly responsible
for risk management and internal control systems of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness.

During the Reporting Period, the Company engaged an external
independent adviser with professional staff in possession of
relevant expertise to conduct an independent review of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group in order to
maintain high standards of corporate governance. The review plan
has been approved by the Board and the Audit Committee. The
Board and the Audit Committee had also reviewed the resources,
staff qualifications and experience and training programs of the
external independent adviser and considered they are adequate
and sufficient.

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of
the relevant obligations under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO") and the Listing
Rules.
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In order to enhance the Group's system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
also adopts and implements an inside information policy and
procedures. Certain reasonable measures have been taken from
time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a
breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which
include:

1. The access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with
their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

2. Confidentiality covenants will be in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

In addition, all employees are required to strictly adhere to the rules
and regulations regarding the management of inside information,
including that all employees who, because of his/her office or
employment, is likely to be in possession of inside information in
relation to the Company, are required to comply with the securities
transaction rules adopted by the Company which are on terms no
less exacting than those required under the Listing Rules.

During the course of auditing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, Ernst and
Young (“EY”) raised queries about (i) certain transactions in respect
of the purchase and sale of leather, furniture and furniture-related
products carried out by the Group in the People’s Republic of China
during the year ended 31 December 2018; (i) the disclosures and
accounting for the relationships between two subsidiaries of the
Group in the People’s Republic of China and some of their
customers and/or suppliers, in particular whether these customers
and suppliers are independent from the Group (the "Auditor’s
Queries”).
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On 27 June 2019, the Audit Committee of the Company appointed
Stevenson, Wong & Co. ("SWC") to conduct an independent
investigation and prepare an investigation report in respect of the
Auditor’s Queries identified by EY (the “Independent
Investigation Report’). During the course of conducting the said
independent investigation, in respect of the basis of recognition of
the Group's income, the Company is of the view that there were
weaknesses in the implementation of internal control measures of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018. As at the date of
this report, the Company has added corresponding internal control
measures for the basis of income recognition.

In light of the above incidences, the Company has thus
strengthened corresponding internal control measures by adding
that both the delivery note and the receipt confirmation from
customers are required as evidence for revenue recognition. The
remedial measures that the Company has taken including: (i)
adding above internal control procedures; and (ii) the Company
has additionally assigned two senior staff from the finance
department to review and monitor the implementation of internal
controls in relation to sales cycle, purchase cycle and inventory
cycle and they will act as checkers to ensure internal control
procedures are properly carried out. These two senior staff from the
finance department will throughout the year monitor these cycles
and report to the Directors directly if and when they discover any
inconsistencies with the internal control procedures. Taking into
account that (i) an independent internal control adviser, World Link
Corporate Finance Limited, has reviewed the updated internal
control manual of the Company on 28 July 2019, and the internal
control adviser is of the view that as at 28 July 2019 the internal
control procedures are appropriate and adequate; (i) the Company
has additionally assigned two senior staff from the finance
department to review and monitor the implementation of internal
controls measures; and (iii) as at the date of this report, no issue in
relation to the implementation of corresponding internal control
procedures was identified by the Company, the Directors are of the
view that the corresponding internal control procedures are
effective and adequate. Based on the reasons discussed above and
considering that as at the date of this report, the Directors are not
aware of any other incidents similar to the issues identified in the
Auditor’s Queries and the Independent Investigation Report with
revealed internal control weaknesses, the Directors are further of
the view that the Company’s internal control systems are effective
and adequate.
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Save as disclosed above, the Board and the Audit Committee had
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this report and believes that the
existing systems are adequate and effective.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. Subject to
provisions of the applicable laws in the Cayman Islands and the
Listing Rules, the Articles require that an annual general meeting
("AGM") of the Company to be held each year and at the venue as
determined by the Board. Each general meeting, other than an
AGM, is called an extraordinary meeting.

According to the Articles, any one or more members holding at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company,
to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company, a
Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her/its proposal
(the "Proposal”) with his/her/its detailed contact information to
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong. The
identity of the Shareholder and his/her/its request will be verified
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and upon
confirmation by the Company’s branch share registrar that the
request is proper and in order and made by a Shareholder, the
Board will determine in its sole discretion whether the Proposal
may be included in the agenda for the general meeting. If the
request has been verified as not in order, the Shareholder will be
advised of this outcome and, accordingly, a general meeting will
not be convened as requested.
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Shareholders may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent such information is publicly available and
the Company has an investor relationship personnel to attend to
enquiries from the Shareholders. Details of the contact person are
set out below:

Name: Mr. Sun Ho Chau
Telephone: (852) 2106 3238
Email: ryan.sun@morrisholdings.com.hk

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company and/or by sending them to the
Company'’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at the
following correspondence address and addressing to the Board:
Address: Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicorp Centre,
18 Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong

Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings, share transfer, share registration and payment of
dividend to Tricor Investor Services Limited (the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong). Contact details of Tricor Investor
Services Limited are set out below:

Address: Level 54, Hopewell Centre 183
Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 28108185

Email: is-enquiries@hk tricorglobal.com
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The Board and senior management maintain a continuing dialogue
with the Shareholders and investors through various channels
including the Company’s AGM to answer Shareholders’” questions.
The chairman and other members of the Board are present at the
AGM. The annual report and AGM circular is distributed to all the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development
and financial performance including the AGM, the publication of
annual reports, announcements and circulars on the websites of
the Stock Exchange and the Company in order to maintain a high
level of transparency.

The Company adopted an amended and restated memorandum of
association on 10 December 2016 and amended and restated
articles of association on the Listing Date.
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company for 2018.

The review of business performance of the Group, the Group's
business prospect and the financial key performance indicators
during 2018 are set out in the sections headed “Financial
Highlights”, “Chairman’s Statement” and "Management Discussion
and Analysis” on page 4, pages 5 to 7 and pages 14 to 22
respectively of this annual report. The content is part of this
directors’ report.

The principal risks and uncertainties of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Principal Risks
and Uncertainties” on pages 23 to 24 respectively of this annual
report. The content is part of this directors’ report.

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. Being manufacturing and trading companies in the
PRC, the Group is subject to various environmental laws and
regulations set by the PRC national, provincial and municipal
governments. Compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations. During 2018,
the Group has complied with relevant laws and regulations that
have significant impact on the operations of the Group. Further,
any changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations are brought
to the attention of relevant employees and relevant operation units
from time to time.

A report on the environmental, social and governance aspects is
prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules will
be published on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's websites
as close as possible to, and in any event no later than three months
after, the publication of the Company’s annual report.
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The Group recognises that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and
enhancing cooperation with its business partners.

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Company
and the Company regards the personal development of its
employees as highly important. The Group wants to continue to be
an attractive employer for committed employees.

The Company endeavors to motivate its employees with clear
career objectives and provides opportunities for advancement and
improvement of their skills. The Group provides on-the-job training
and development opportunities to its staff members.

The Group has developed long-term relationships with a number
of its raw material suppliers and take great care to ensure that they
share the Group’s commitment to quality. The Group carefully
selects its suppliers and requires them to satisfy certain assessment
criteria including track record, experience, reputation, ability to
produce high-quality products and quality control effectiveness.

The Group is committed to providing safe products to its
customers. The Group endeavors to ensure the safety and quality
of furniture products via stringent quality control measures and
regular communication with customers.

The Group will continue to contribute to the harmonious society
through social contributions and participation in public service and
donation activities.
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The Company acts as the holding company of the Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

The results of the Group for 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 81 of this annual report.

The Board recommended a payment of final dividend of HK1.3
cents per Share for the year ended 31 December 2018 payable on
20 September 2019 to all Shareholders on the register of members
of the Company on 6 September 2019 subject to approval by the
Shareholders in the forthcoming AGM.

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the shares of the
Company.

Details of movements during 2018 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 27 to the
Company's financial statements.

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities of the Company during 2018.
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As at 31 December 2018, the distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to approximately RMBNil (31 December 2017: RMB16.6
million).

Five year financial summary are set up in the sections headed “Five
Year Financial Summary” on page 196 of this annual report.

The Directors during 2018 and up to the date of this annual report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. ZOU Gebing (Chairman and CEQ)
Mr. ZENG Jin

Mr. SHEN Zhidong

Mr. WU Yueming

Mr. CHEN Guohua

(appointed on 6 June 2018)
(retired on 17 May 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. LIU Haifeng

Mr. PANG Wing Hong (appointed on 12 April 2019)
Mr. CHU Guodi (appointed on 28 May 2019)
Mr. SHAO Shaomin (resigned on 29 March 2019)
Mr. HUANG Wenli (resigned on 28 May 2019)

In accordance with paragraph 83(3) of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of shareholders after his appointment and
be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall
hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Wu
Yueming, Mr. Chu Guodi and Mr. Pang Wing Hong will retire at the
forthcoming AGM and will offer themselves for re-election.
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Further, pursuant to paragraph 84(1) of the Articles, one-third of the
Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
AGM at least once every three years and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election for the forthcoming year. According to
paragraph 84(2) of the Articles, any Director appointed by the
Board pursuant to Article 83(3) shall not be taken into account in
determining which particular Directors or the number of Directors
who are to retire by rotation. Therefore, Mr. Zou Gebing and Mr.
Zeng Jin will also retire at the forthcoming AGM and will offer
themselves for re-election.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a fixed term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date or the date of appointment, unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either party on the other expiring at the end of the initial term.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company. There is no specific
term or proposed length of service for the independent non-
executive Directors under the letters of appointment. They are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at AGM of the
Company at least once every three years and until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either the
Company or the respective independent non-executive Director.

No Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
AGM has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Save as those disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” and the
related party transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director or a connected entity of a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December
2018 or at any time during 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provision of the SFO), or which were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, are
set out below:

(i) The Company

Name of Director/chief executive Nature of Interest

B TETHASRS BRiE

Mr. Zou Gebing (Note 2)

PRI (HeE2) R LB R

Note 1: The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2:  Morris Capital Limited (“Morris Capital”) is owned as to 85% by
Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Mr. Zou Gebing will therefore
be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the same number of

Shares in which Morris Capital is interested.
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(ii) Morris Capital (Note 1)

Name of Director/chief executive Nature of Interest
B TETBASHE EntE

Mr. Zou Gebing Beneficial owner
FRETE ERBAA

Note 1:  Morris Capital holds more than 50% of the Shares. Therefore,

Morris Capital is the holding company and an associated
corporation of the Company.

Note 2:  The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives of
the Company had any other personal, family, corporate and other
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO:

(i) FEEARE)

Number of Approximate
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85 Shares of
US$T each (L)
85 IR E{E
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Number of

Shares/underlying Percentage of

Shares held Shares of the

Shareholders Nature of interest (Note 1) Company in issue
gd:

HERGOEE EARDAE BT

e EmiE (FfF1) RIBBEDL

Morris Capital (Note 2) Beneficial owner 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
RREXR(Mat2) BERBEAA 750,000,000 A% (L)

Wu Xiangfei (Note 3) Interest of spouse 750,000,000 Shares (L) 75% (L)
SRR (A7 3) [y e 750,000,000 A% (L)

RAYS Capital Partners Limited Investment manager 89,690,000 Shares (L) 897% (L)
ERERBRAF REKE 89,690,000 % (L)

Ruan David Ching-chi Interest of controlled corporation 89,690,000 Shares (L) 897% (L)
b5 XEE RS 89,690,000 A% (L)
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Note 1: The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such Shares.

Note 2:  Morris Capital is owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou Gebing and 15% by Ms.

Wu Xiangfei.

Note 3:  Ms. Wu Xiangfei is the spouse of Mr. Zou Gebing. Under the SFO, Ms.

Wu Xiangfei will therefore be deemed, or taken to be, interested in the
same number of Shares in which Mr. Zou Gebing is interested.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other person (other than the Directors and chief executives of the
Company) who had an interest or short position in the Shares and/
or underlying Shares of the Company which fell to be disclosed to
the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as at 31
December 2018.

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business were
entered into or existed during 2018.

The Group is well aware of the importance of incentivising and
retaining its employees. The Group offers competitive
remuneration packages to its employees and makes contributions
to social security insurance funds (including pension plans, medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, unemployment insurance
and maternity insurance) and housing fund for its employees. The
Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and remuneration package of the Directors and
chief executive of the Group, having regard to the Group's overall
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
practices.

The remuneration of the Directors was increased in 2018, which
was due to their contributions to the Company's business
development, including the development of self-owned brand,
sales network expansion and expansion of overseas market. During
the financial year ended 31 December 2018, the Company had
established 3 direct-sales stores and set up 7 distribution stores in
the PRC, and successfully acquired all the issued and outstanding
common stocks of Jennifer Convertibles for developing overseas
sales channels. The Remuneration Committee has considered the
above factors and recommended to the Board the remuneration of
the Director for the financial year ended 31 December 2018.
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors for 2018 are set out in
note 8 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company,
or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors (including their spouse and children under 18 years of
age) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

There were no competing business of which a Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at 31
December 2018 or at any time during 2018.

Each of Morris Capital, Mr. Zou Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei (each a
“Non-Compete Covenantor”’) has entered into a deed of non-
competition ("Deed of Non-competition”) dated 10 December
2016 with the Company, to the effect that each of them will not
directly or indirectly participate in, or hold any right or interest, or
otherwise be involved in any business which may be in
competition with the business of the Group from time to time.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of the Non-
Compete Covenantors in respect of their compliance with the non-
competition undertakings under the Deed of Non-competition
during 2018.

The independent non-executive Directors also reviewed the Non-
Compete Covenantors’ compliance with the non-competition
undertakings. The independent non-executive Directors confirmed
that the Non-Compete Covenantors were not in breach of the non-
competition undertakings during 2018.

R2018FNEFZFH M BHNAF MRS M5
RS ©

RERNEMERE - KRR - RERAFHEMER
AIRERT A2 FEE(BRERBNMI8ER
AT F20) Al #E B AR B S (o] K DA B ) IR
DS IEHEE s -

P20184E 12 31 B 2018 FE(E a5 - i fme
ENGREB T EENEEES A EARER -

RAEXR  FHREXERBARZE(ZE T
BRERAFDHEARRFEIZHEA2016F12H10
HOTHFRIE((THRBREE])  AFLASGTEEHE
E L EA g EARE TR LN EBREFY
FEBSIFEEBEN SR - g AHAMmS
NEITA R A EE ML E N ERRFERE
jc%o

R2018%F + A2 T E MBI T B B R 4075 3 1 5 18
PR S IR T T R B I e HRR -

BN FERTEENCERNTIREFRZN BT IEF
EHENEN - BYIFRTESER > THRBEHEOH
PR 2018 F 38 [ TN S iGEA o
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Non-Exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

During 2018, the Group had the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out below:

The Lease Agreements with Morris PRC

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home Co., Ltd (formerly known as “Haining
Gelin Furniture Co,, Ltd."), ("Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home"),
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products”), Haining Morris Home Gallery Co., Ltd.
("Haining Morris Home Gallery’), and Haining Morris
International Home Furnishings Co., Ltd. ("Haining Morris
International’), each as tenant entered into the lease agreements
with Morris PRC as landlord on 1 January 2016 for the lease of
various premises located in Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for
factory, direct sale store and office use. However, as the area of
leased properties was insufficient to meet the production
requirements of the Group, Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home, Haining
Morris Home Gallery and Haining Morris International (each as
tenant) entered into lease agreements with Morris PRC (as landlord)
on 17 March 2017 for the lease of leased properties located in
Haining, Zhejiang Province, PRC for factory, exhibition hall,
dormitory, canteens, office and research and development center
use for a term of three years commencing from 17 March 2017 and
expiring on 16 March 2020. The major terms of the lease
agreements are as follows:
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Lease agreements

HEHE

Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products
Lease Agreement

IR R E SR HhE

Haining Gelin Furniture
Lease Agreement

BERHRARE HE

Haining Morris Home Gallery

Lease Agreement
BERAERRERE NS

Haining Morris International
Lease Agreement

BERRERBEHZ

Haining Morris Home Gallery
Lease Agreement

BERFUERREME iR

Haining Morris Home Gallery
Lease Agreement

BERRUFREMNERZ

Haining Gelin Furniture
Lease Agreement

BERNZARERGZ

Haining Gelin Furniture
Lease Agreement

BERHRAREHE

Haining Morris International
Lease Agreement

BERTERBEHS

Haining Morris International
Lease Agreement

BERRERBEHZ

Term

HIR

1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026
(both days inclusive)

016F1ATRZ 202651418
(BHEERMA)

1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026
(both days inclusive)

01661 A1BE2026F1A1H
(BRERMA)

1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026
(both days inclusive)

0165 1A1HE2026F1A1H
(BRERMA)

1 January 2016 to 1 January 2026
(both days inclusive)

016F1B1BZE206F1A1H
(BEERERA)

17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020
(both days inclusive)

2017%3817B%E2020%3816H

(BEER/MA)
17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020
(both days inclusive)

2017%38178B%2020%F3816H

(BEEEMA)
17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020
(both days inclusive)

017%F38178BE 2000538168

(BEEEMA)
17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020
(both days inclusive)

201738 178&E200%F3/16H

(BREERMA)
17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020
(both days inclusive)

2017F3A17BE2020%3 8168

(BEEREMA)
17 March 2017 to 16 March 2020
(both days inclusive)

20173 17BE 2020538168

(BRERMA)

Tenant

BE

Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products
AIPR BN E 5m

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)

HTREBREKE
(BiTHE [BERMKEA])

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)

HIRERRKE
(A [BERBTERZKE])

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)

HIRARHEE
(A [BERTER))

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)

MIRBEHRE
(A [BERAERKE]

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gallery Furniture”)

HIRABHEE
(ATFE [BERBERFKE])

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris Home Gelin Furniture”)

HMTRABRKE
(ATFE [BERMKEA])

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Moms Home Gelin Furniture”)

iﬁ L& N H‘T h ZKE
(AiTHE [BERMKEA])

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)

HIRARHEE
(A [BEREER))

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home
(formerly known as “Haining
Morris International”)

HIRARHEE
(AT [BERTER)

Leased
area
Landlord (sq.m.)
HERER
X (EHXK)
Morris PRC 40,226.08
RAHE
Morris PRC 19,990.35
RAHE
Morris PRC 39,312.00
RATE
Morris PRC 1,000.00
RATE
Morris PRC 40,474.00
REARE
Morris PRC 20,532.00
RATE
Morris PRC 19,723.00
RATE
Morris PRC 9,300.00
RAHHE
Morris PRC 6,400.00
RATRHE
Morris PRC 4,608.00
RATE
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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Rent per
annum
(RMB)

3
(AR®T)

2,896,277.76

1,439,305.20

2,830464.00

72,000.00

2,914,128.00

1,478,304.00

1,420,056.00

669,600.00

460,800.00

331,776.00



The aggregated annual caps of the lease agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the years ending 31 December
2018, 2019 and 2020 are RMB15 million, RMB15 million, RMB15
million and RMB15 million, respectively. For further details of the
lease agreement, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 17 March 2017.

As the entire issued share capital of Morris PRC is owned by Mr. Zou
Gebing and Ms. Wu Xiangfei, Morris PRC is, accordingly, an
associate of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of
the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.

Sales Agreement with Jennifer Convertibles

Mstar International Trading (HK) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into a sales agreement with Jennifer
Convertibles (the “Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement”’) on
1 January 2016, pursuant to which the Group agreed to supply
sofas to Jennifer Convertibles.

The Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement is valid until either (i)
the expiry of a period of three years or (ii) the date on which
Jennifer Convertibles ceases to be the Company’s connected
person, whichever comes earlier. Both parties to the agreement
may negotiate to extend the agreement for a further term of three
years within two months before the expiry of the three-year term
of the agreement unless the agreement is terminated due to
Jennifer Convertibles ceasing to be a connected person of the
Company.

The annual caps of the sales by the Group to Jennifer Convertibles
for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2017 and the year
ending 31 December 2018 are RMB32.0 million, RMB32.0 million
and RMB32.0 million respectively.

As the entire issued share capital of Jennifer Convertibles is owned
by Mr. Zou Gebing, Jennifer Convertibles is, accordingly, an
associate of Mr. Zou Gebing and is therefore a connected person of
the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.07 of the Listing Rules.
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Since the highest relevant percentage ratio under the Listing Rules
in respect of each of the transactions contemplated under the
Lease Agreements and the Jennifer Convertibles Sales Agreement
is expected to be, on an annual basis, less than 5%, the transactions
are exempt pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules from the
circular (including independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement but are subject to the
announcement, annual reporting and annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the above continuing connected transactions are further
summarised as follows:

Name of connected party Nature of transaction
B s A8 XHME

Morris PRC Lease of properties
RATF MERE

Jennifer Convertibles Supply of sofas
Jennifer Convertibles e

* The continuing connected transactions ceased as at 31 August 2018,

since Jennifer Convertibles has been acquired and became a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 31 August 2018.

The continuing connected transactions mentioned above have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive Directors who
have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into: (a) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (b) on
normal commercial terms; and (c) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing such transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Company in
this annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

R IR & £ T R B & 17 5% & Jennifer Convertibles
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Transaction

amount for Annual Cap
2018 for 2018

2018 FERFELE 2018FFELMR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARMT T
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7,466* 32,000

*
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Save as disclosed above, a summary of significant related party
transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions, made during 2018 is disclosed
in note 33 to the financial statements.

The corporation governance report of the Group during the
Reporting Period is set out in the sections headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 32 to 50 of this annual report.

During 2018, sales to the Group's five largest customers and
purchases from the five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 53.1% and 58.8% of the total revenue and purchases
for the year, respectively. The Group's largest customer accounted
for around 14.9% of the total revenue for the year. The Group’s
largest supplier accounted for around 19.4% of the total purchase
for the year.

At no time during 2018 did a Director, a close associate of a Director
or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) have an
interest in any of the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance
cover for Directors' and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.
The level of the coverage is reviewed annually.

Save as disclosed in this annual report relating to share option
scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into during
2018 or subsisted as at 31 December 2018.
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The Company listed its shares on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 12 January 2017. Net proceeds from the Listing were
approximately HK$218.6 million (after deduction of the
underwriting commission and relevant expenses), which are
intended to be applied in the manner as disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 December 2016 (the
“Prospectus”). As at 31 December 2018, the net proceeds from the
Listing were utilized as follows:

HE—SRRIEE R EHEE

Further expansion of sales
and marketing network

Repay bank borrowings EERITER
Brand recognition in furniture market 2= FMRE TI5H) T hE
RAE
Working capital LEE®
Expansion of the manufacturing RERRIBRENER
capabilities in Cambodia
Total #Et

The proceeds from the Listing had been fully utilized at the end of
December 2018, as the Company adopted an aggressive strategy
for the expansion of the business by spending on promotion
activities and sales network expansion.

RATIRAD R 20171 B 12 BEBAT R 1 -
TS RIBEEREL A2186 B EE T (KINBR B
BekiBERY)  BIEAQRIBAEA2016F12A
J0EHMBRER((BRERDMEZENHFNEA
ZEFRTE - BA2018F 12 A31 8 FHATERIESF
BERFERBERIT

Amount
unutilised as at

Amount
utilised as at

Actualnet 31 December 31 December
proceeds 2018 2018
20185 2018 F

ERRE 12A31H 12831H
FIEFEE EBHRAEHE REAEHE
HKS million HKS million HKS million
BEBT BEBT BEBT
68.5 68.5 -

57.7 577 -

56.8 56.8 -

214 214 -

14.2 14.2 -

218.6 2186 -

AAAREREEGREE FRRENER TR
FRBEEEUBRER W EMASREER
2018F 12 AIREZHEA -
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The share options scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 10 December 2016. The Share Option
Scheme allows the Company to grant options to eligible person(s)
(the "Eligible person(s)’) as rewards or rewards for their
contribution to the Group.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are summarised as
follows:

1. The limit on the total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes which may be adopted
by the Group from time to time pursuant to which options to
subscribe for Shares may be granted (the “Other Schemes”)
must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
at the Listing Date (which shall be 100,000,000 Shares) unless
Shareholders’ approval has been obtained, and which must
not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at 31 December 2018, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme is 100,000,000
Shares, which represents 10% of the issued Shares as at 31
December 2018.

2. The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to an Eligible Person under
the Share Option Scheme and Other Schemes in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue
from time to time, and provided that if approved by
Shareholders in general meeting with such Eligible Persons
abstained from voting, the Company may make further grant
of options to such Eligible Person notwithstanding that the
further grant would result in the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and Other Scheme in the
12-month period up to and including the date of the further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the Shares in
issue from time to time.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

ARAFR2016F 12 A 10 BERANE T2 (B
T8 c BREAEIFARAFAIMEEKAL
([EERATERHERE FAFESHASER
TEERIRY S E) kB 7R -

B S T ERFERAT

1. BEIRERT B R AN S B AT B TR ER AN P BRIt 3R
o AT 3R B8 IR 1 0 B AR A A 1 ) L Ath BB AR R AT
EI([HAEtE ) ETEBREETE A
REBITTHRMDBE - AXETEBBNETA
HAE 31T A% 19 A9 10% (B 100,000,000 BEA% 17 ) »
BRIEEEREM AL TEHBB T BT
13 8930% °

R2018F 12 A31 B » IRIEE TSI A] 4t 3¢
1T HY PR 1 42 8 /5 100,000,000 B% - #8 8 7R 2018
F12A31HEEBITRMDAEI10% °

2. WREM2EASRE RIEBRETS LA
AERTEERATHERERETEMS %
TREFHERITORNDEE  TEEETER
BTATAD N 1% © MM REMR KRS L#t/ER
BERARERALHERENERT » AAT]
AARZEERATE - IR TREEE 8
ER2EASNHEEE - TREER(BR
% B — R TR R S BB R 8
REMFTEBETRAECRE MG FRONE
PrerTEm e BTG TETOROGH
B TR E BT 1%



3. Anoption may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each Eligible Person
provided that the period within which the option must be
exercised shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant of option.

4. HK$1.00 shall be paid by the grantee to the Company by way
of consideration for the grant.

5. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the Listing Date.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Prospectus. No share option has been granted by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption up to 31
December 2018.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm
that the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules since the Listing Date.

The previous auditor of the Group, EY was re-appointed as auditor
of the Group at the last AGM of the Company held on 17 May 2018
to hold office until the conclusion of the following AGM of the
Company. However, as the Company and EY had been unable to
reach an agreement on the estimated additional fees as detailed in
the Company’s announcement dated 2 May 2019, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited ("HLB") was appointed as the new auditor of
the Group with effect from 21 May 2019 upon the removal of EY,
until the conclusion of the following AGM of the Company.

3. REBBREAIINGH  BRETRESES
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The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
audited by HLB who shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having approved by
the Board upon the recommendation of the Audit Committee, a
resolution to re-appoint HLB as the independent auditors of the
Company and to authorise the Board to fix its remuneration will be
proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On 22 February 2019, the Group entered into an agreement (the
"Agreement’) with /& % B A & JR A # Zl /B (Haining Planning
and Land Resources Administration®) for the acquisition of the land
use right for a parcel of land in Haining, PRC for a total
consideration of RMB26,550,000. The consideration under the
Agreement has been fully settled in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement.

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible loan
agreement (“Convertible Loan Agreement’) with IFC, pursuant
to which IFC agreed to lend, and the Company agreed to borrow, a
convertible loan (“Convertible Loan”) in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$200,000,000. Please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 5 January 2018 and 24 January 2018 for further
details. Pursuant to the Convertible Loan Agreement and as one of
the conditions of disbursement, each of Mr. Zou, Ms. Wu Xiangfei,
Mr. Zou's spouse and one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, Morris PRC, a company owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
as to 15% by Ms. Wu, and IFC entered into a share retention and
undertaking agreement pursuant to which, among others, Mr. Zou
has undertaken to at all times maintain his controlling stake (being
not less than 51% interests) in the Company and Morris PRC and
not to transfer his shares in Morris Capital, one of the controlling
shareholders of the Company and owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
15% by Ms. Wu, or Morris PRC if, giving effect to such transfer, Mr.
Zou will not be able to maintain his controlling stake in the
Company or Morris PRC mentioned above for so long as any part of
the Convertible Loan is outstanding or any amount is available for
disbursement under the Convertible Loan Agreement and for so
long as IFC holds any equity securities of the Company.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT
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Trading in the Shares on the Stock Exchange had been suspended
with effect from 28 March 2019.

As a result of the suspension in trading in the shares of the
Company, the carrying amount of liability of the convertible loan to
the principal amount was adjusted and the same was reallocated
from non-current liabilities to current liabilities in order to reflect
such continuance. On 20 April 2019, 23 May 2019 and 12 June
2019, the Company entered into three amendment agreements
respectively with the lender of the convertible loan for the agreed
schedule of certain permitted prepayments of the convertible loan.
As at 12 June 2019, the outstanding principal of the convertible
loan was HK$171,949,905.70. Under the agreed schedule as
provided in the abovementioned amendment agreements, for the
period from 15 June 2019 to 30 September 2019, the Company
agrees to pay the following permitted prepayments:

a)  anamount of HK$7,500,000 on or prior to 15 June 2019;
b)  anamount of HK$7,500,000 on or prior to 30 June 2019;

C) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 15 July 2019;

d)  anamount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 30 July 2019;

e) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 15 August 2019;
f) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 30 August 2019;

g) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 15 September
2019; and

h) an amount of HK$6,000,000 on or prior to 30 September
2019.

For the remaining outstanding amount payable under the
convertible loan agreement after 30 September 2019, the Company
will publish further announcement, if the remaining outstanding
amount is not paid according to the repayment term as disclosed
in the Company’s announcement date 5 January 2018.

R T E2019F3 A28 BREEMIFIEEES -
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Pursuant to the circular of the Company dated 14 August 2018, the
Company intends to pay the consideration in relation to the
acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles on the following proposed
payment schedule: (i) US$20 million by the end of 2018; (i) US$10
million by 30 June 2019; and (jii) the remaining USS$5 million by the
end of 2019. The Company has settled the first instalment of the
consideration. However, due to the unfavorable cashflow
conditions, the Company has not paid the consideration of US$10
million by 30 June 2019 as per the aforementioned payment
schedule. The Company aims to settle the remaining consideration
of US$15 million after 31 December 2019, and in any event prior to
the second anniversary of 31 August 2018, being the completion
date of the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank my fellow Directors, as
well as the management and all employees for the contribution
they have made towards the Group's continued progress, and to
thank all the Shareholders, customers and business partners for
their support.

On Behalf of the Board

ZOU Gebing
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 10 July 2019

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT
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HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Morris
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 81 to 195, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matters

BRETSEE

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories

REREEFERE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZRRFTEHEEET P ROAESEN

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements

IR A MBS mMER M 16 RF A M BHRRME 24 B ST BUER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded inventories of
approximately RMB217,291,000 after reversal of provision against
obsolete and slow-moving inventories of RMB18,804,000, which
accounted for 15% of the Group's total assets.

R2018F12A31H EEENRENERTFTEEERKD
A R #18,804,000 7T 1% 8% 15 17 & 49 A R 217,291,000 7T -
i EEEEEREMNI15% -

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories is
estimated based on the net realisable value of the inventories
with reference to the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions. The Group manufactures sofas, sofa covers and other
furniture products which are subject to changing consumer
demands and fashion trends of the sofa industry, and this
increases the level of judgement involved in estimating inventory
provision. We focused on this area because significant judgement
is required to assess the provision for items which may be
ultimately obsolete or sold below cost as a result of a reduction in
consumer demand. Such judgements include management'’s
expectations for future sales of goods and product durability and
market value of materials used in the production.

RENEBEFERED2RBREFTERERLEATRRE
FER#RFEMF . BEEEANE  PEERHMK
BEMEER  MHADBTETEHERHEEEFTHKELE
W8 - RAEFEERE S RN HERKFEMRES ° ]
BERZAI - WA RFHEEIEE & &R D i A] e
BE R MER A BB IHE IR B BT R FHLE AL -
HEHEREEERS A REMIHENHERE MM T
AR ERAMEETISEE -

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances and the
judgement exercised by management in determining the
obsolete and slow-moving inventories.

BB EZRIBTRAE SRR RIA N E IR BN RE K
BEFERITEAHIE -

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBRAR AR

Our procedures in relation to management'’s impairment
assessment of provision against obsolete and slow
moving inventories included:

HPEEEBNRE REERFEREREN GET
GOFEIS R

Evaluating the estimates made by management
and used to determine the provision obsolete and
slow-moving inventories during the year and
compare to the provisions made in prior year;

TEEEEMELEBARNEEFARE RERF
Eii%ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ£§+’ WEBRAFEEDNREETT
R

Performing a recalculation, on a sample basis, of the
inventory provision made on individual inventories;

MEEHMAERERNFEFLHTEEE

Sample checking on the subsequent selling price of
finished goods; and

mmERERKmEREE &

Checking the aging profile of inventories, the
historical sales and usage records of the inventories.

BEFERRREN  BEHE REMGE

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s judgement and estimates in the
assessment provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories, to be supported by the available evidence.

RIBEETNIEF  RAAR BEEERFERE
KB E B AR R A KAt R SRR -



Key audit matters

BRETEE

Expected credit loss (‘ECL") assessment of trade receivables

BN RFREEER (R EEE]) FE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZRRFTEHEEET P ROAESEN

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements

IR A MBS WMERMEE 17 Mg A M B RRW T 24 B & St BUER

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had trade receivables of gross
carrying amount of approximately RMB633,409,000 and allowance
for ECL of approximately RMB2,253,000, the net carrying amount
of trade receivable account for 44.1% of the Group's total assets.

R2018F 128318 BEENEZEKZEEELED
BAREEE33400000 T RFEHEEEBEEREBELNAAREK
22530007C ' BESEWFEMERFENL BEXEBEEEAE
B 44.19% ©

In general, the trade receivable credit terms granted by the Group
to the customers ranged between one to four months.
Management performed periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade receivables and the sufficiency of
provision for impairment based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade receivables,
historical settlement records, subsequent settlement status,
expected timing and amount of realisation of outstanding
balances, and on-going trading relationships with the relevant
customers. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected credit
losses for the impairment assessment.

—RME - EXEREPRONEZERUGKAGEEHRN T
—EN@EA - EREEREIRELEERNR - B S RUGK
TRARES  BEGERE  BREAENRR  BHEREEKRE
EREGERSREEN  UNEBBEPNEEZ HHIE
EHRH S E S RYGRIEN A REE R EREEERE
BERENRCERBAETETPEEREEBRENNAE
HER - EFHRE G FEREEEE -

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

B EEEREMGETOERFEHE

Understanding and evaluating the key controls that
the Group has implemented to manage and
monitor its credit risk, and validating the control
effectiveness on a sample basis;

TEEFE EEEREENMERHEERR
Bt R BRI B b - W E E SR i
A R

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of
the trade receivables as at 31 December 2018 to
the underlying financial records and post year-end
settlements to bank receipts;
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Key audit matters

RRESTEE

Expected credit loss ('ECL") assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

B SN REGEEER ([RAEEER )G (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZERETEHEEET P RONAESEN

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements

LR A B IR R 17 AR B M SRR M FE 24 FRE & ST R

We focused on this area due to the impairment assessment of

2373

trade receivables under the expected credit losses model involved
the use of significant management judgements and estimates.

PR ZER VAR R BEEREEEEEETESE

W

RIERUE RHE S S E R E KT TR B I S (A5t -

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade receivables past due as at year
end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such as
performing public search of credit profile of
selected customers, understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on
trade records, check historical and subsequent
settlement records of and other correspondence
with the customers; and

WE@EE@FEXtHHMXIEEKTT%FH&

RIERMRR - WA FHFRIEERERENEH
%ﬁ% IR E R P HEERAETARSE
ARERSHRETREATFPNFEXKH
7 REBEREREERE  URERFK
Hipimaf : &

Assessing the appropriateness of the expected
credit loss provisioning methodology, examining
the key data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, including both historical and forward-
looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

AR EEERRETERDEE - MR
BT B A BB AT H R R e E M ]I
ERARECEMEERENRR(BREB
RATHEMER]) -

Based on the procedures performed, we consider
management’s judgement and estimates in the ECL
assessment of trade receivable, to be supported by the
available evidence.

RIBFEETHOERF  RARS BEEEBRESREK
FIRTEHE BB R E A M AT AB A S ER
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Key audit matters

BRETEE

Contingent consideration receivables

FER LA ANE

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZRRFTEHEEET P ROAESEN

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements

KR AR A TSR M 15 REAR A S MR T 24 FRE &SR

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a contingent
consideration receivables of RMB226,318,000 which will be
received after 2020.

R2018F 12 A31 H » EEEERSIE R 2020 F 1% WEL A fE
U sk SRR B AR 226,318,000 7T °

The Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement with
the vendor for the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its
subsidiaries, the Group recognised a contingent consideration
receivables at fair value in according to the guarantee terms in
the sales and agreements. These fair value measurements require
management’s estimation and significant judgement on post-
acquisition performance of the acquired businesses and discount
rates used.

&£ B HEF 7 U Jennifer Convertibles Inc. & H fif B A &)
FIVEERE S ESEREBEEERRMNERERIEZALE
BRERIARE - BARAABEFESEEEEYMKE
¥R B & R IE R FT AR RE R AT RERAIE -

Our procedures in relation to the fair values assessment
of contingent consideration receivables included:

B EESRAREBEA B GETHREF B

Understanding, evaluating and validating
management’s key control over the contingent
consideration payables assessment process;

T HERBEEEEYRNIARENE
2B R RESRIE BT i

Checking the contingent consideration payables
calculation prepared by management against the
formula stated in the sale and purchase agreement
for each of the acquired businesses;

i B IR B P SR (S S R B AT E BB TR AT IR
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Key audit matters

BRETSEE

Contingent consideration receivables (Continued)

FEWARE ()

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ZRRFTEHEEET P ROAESEN

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements and accounting policies on Note 2.4 to the consolidated financial

statements

KR AR A TSR M 15 REAR A S MR T 24 FRE &SR

Contingent consideration receivables are remeasured at fair value
at each reporting date, and may be affected by changes in the
estimation of post-acquisition performance of the acquired
businesses. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income. For the year ended 31 December 2018, a fair value gain
RMB2,799,000 was recognised.

RERESBH BURKAREZAALBEEFHTE - WAlsE
AT ERMNKEEZRRGHEAEEMIEFTE - £ H
HWEANABEBRGEEGREMEMKERER - HE
2018F 12 A3V BIEFE - BEERRAAEEIEARE2799,000
7": o

We focused on this area as the assessment made by management
involved significant estimates and judgements in relation to the
post-acquisition performance of individual businesses and
discount rates applied, which may be affected by unexpected
changes in future market or economic conditions or significant
events or circumstances related to the acquired businesses.

HPIREZ AR N EERBHEREHOWBRERIRK
P ARLIR R F(ERT (5P B M B AL ST M - Rl sE A
ARERTHELBEMRAKBTNBEXEEENEANEHRE
MR EEEHNESMZATE

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBRAR AR

Evaluating performance forecasts used in the
contingent consideration receivables calculation,
testing the mathematical accuracy of the
underlying calculation of consideration payables
and agreeing them to the financial projection
prepared by management for the specific financial
period stipulated by the sale and purchase
agreement; analysing the key assumptions adopted
by management with reference to their business
plan and historical actual results to assess the
quality of management’s financial projection;

HE WS AR BT EAMRETAR - BB
RN ETENEMERE  REEEEN
BB AT AR E B R AT AR B 5 TR
Al pITEE B AERERR  YKSEH
XA B BT ERR RS - UFHEEREM S
BRHEE :

Comparing the discount rates used by
management against market information and
internal data;

HEEEMARRETISER &AL

5

Assessing the events and circumstances emerging
since the last assessment which triggered the
remeasurement; comparing the performance
forecasts to the business plan prepared by
management and obtaining evidence of those
events or circumstances to support the
remeasurement.

A B E—RFHEAR L AR R B &
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The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were audited by another auditors who
expressed an unmodified opinion on 14 March 2018.

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (the "Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and,
in doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this
independent auditors' report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 10 July 2019
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 BIEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses and losses
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) may
be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Profit attributable to owners of the
Company

Total comprehensive income attributable
to owners of the Company

Earnings per share attributable to
ordinary equity holders of
the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents)

Notes

ftat

WA 5
HEM AR

EF

H AU A R W e 5
HE KD X

TTHRFX

H At 2 K 518

B A A 6

BRE A R 7
Frisfif > 10

FREF

Hip2mEkE(BE)
RE 1 HE] ] BEEFT 7=
EBa B2 H
YWezs ~(E1E) -
HRE P HRERMOIE R 258

FREHWHAE

EN/NIE RN bl

RAPFEBEANEEEE W B

FAREBERBEFAA
BiEERAR

AEAREE(ARESD) 12

2017

2017 5
RMB'000
AR®ET T
(Restated)
(F&E5))

1,416,395
(937,864)

478,531
36,949
(215,286)
(101,683)
(2,798)
(11,670)

184,043
(38,348)

145,695

(9,103)
136,592
145,695

136,592

14.68
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As at 31 December 2018
201812 A31 H

Non-current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Contingent consideration receivables
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current Assets
Inventories
Trade and bills receivables

FRBEE

WxE -~ BEMRE
BN LB E A
FEW L ARE
EERIRE E

FRBEEMAE
RBEE

i
B 55 16 MR R R

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables B~ FXI8 « & & K& H ith & I 5118

Pledged deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current Liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Contract liabilities

Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a shareholder
Amount due to a related company
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Warranty provision

Derivative financial instruments
Convertible loan

Income tax payables

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

[REERUIREDN

Ra LB EEY
MEEERE

RBRE

B 5 RN RIB R RN R &
BHAE

HoAth F& A 5008 S AT & A
JE A AR SR IR

FEfREE R BIF0R
FTERITRER
RIS
TEEmMTA
AP E K

FEfS RS R

mE B ERER

RBEERE

EERERRBAEE

Notes

ftat

13
14
15
25

16
17

19
19

20
21
21
22
22
23
24
26
26

2017
2017 5
RMB'000

AR®ET T
(Restated)
(F&E5))

59,402
7,054

1,941

68,397

378,016
372,117
114,119
182,847

27,351

1,074,450

488,458

76,983
9,801

149,659
3,292

61,520

789,713

284,737

353,134



As at 31 December 2018
2018 12 A31H

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Accruals

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company

Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Zou Gebing
KT

Director

EFE

FRBEME
EXEMARE
fEsTE

FRBAER

BEFE

e

RRBRERAELRES

[N
Gk

EEAE

#

2017

2017 F

Notes RMB'000
HtaF AR®ET T
(Restated)

(7))

25 8,942
21 4,033
12,975

340,159

27 6,914
28 333,245
340,159

Wu Yueming
R AR
Director

EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—H— \ 7/

/Z\\/__]—\ E Z N II\EIII\
Year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 1283 BIEEFE

AN

EH)R

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARHEAE AL
Exchange
Share Share Other fluctuation Reserve Retained
Capital premium reserve reserve funds profits Total
EXKRE
RAE  ROBE HtRE e REEE EEER @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETRT
(note 27) (note 28(i) (note 28(ii))  (note 28(iii)
(Hzt27)  (Bfzt280) (Hrzt 280p) (Kt 28(ii)
At 31 December 2016 and R2016F 12 A31H K
1 January 2017 2017@1 A1H 1 - - 10,559 8,081 140,123 158,764
Effect of merger of an entity under ANZERENEENTE
common control - - 198,462 241 - (229,391) (30,688)
At 1 January 2017 (Restated) R2017%1 A1 8 (&) 1 - 198,462 10800 8,081 (89,268) 128076
Profit for the year FREF - - - 145,695 145,695
Other comprehensive loss for the year: R EM 2 EE1E
Exchange differences on translation HEMBRRNELZE
of financial statements - - - (9,103) - - (9,103)
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 N B 5 - - - (9,103) - 145,695 136,592
Transfer from retained profits EER A REE - - - - 3919 (3,919 -
Issue of shares pursuant to the Listing RIEARR ETRITRG
of the Company 1,728 232314 - - - - 234,042
Capitalisation issue of shares RN EITE R 5,185 (5,185) - - - - -
Expenses incurred in connection with BITHRAERAY
issue of new shares - (15,229) - - - - (15,229)
Dividend paid BIRTRE - - - - (143322) (143322)
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A318 6,914 211,900% 198,462 1,697* 12,000* (90,814)* 340,159
Adjustment on initial application of RFS9 A & R [E R & B B #53R 5 %8|
FOFKRAE - - - - - (493) (493)
Restated balance at 1 January 2018 R2018F 1 A1 HREESIR R 6,914 211,900 198,462 1,697 12,000 (91,307) 339,666
Profit for the year FRE - - - - - 86,405 86,405
Other comprehensive loss for the year: R E M2 EEIE
Exchange differences on translation BENBRENELZHE
of financial statements - - - 15,814 - - 15,814
Total comprehensive income for the year SN2 Wz A% - - - 15,814 - 86,405 102,219
Acquisition of an entity under W AT EE
common control - - (240,853) - - - (240,853)
Effect on contingent consideration RS AREBTE
receivables - - 214,507 - - - 214,507
Merge effect on subsidiaries HEBARAHTE - - (731) - - - (731)
Transfer from retained profits ERABEEN - - - - 37,290 (37,290) -
Dividend paid BRI S - (47,487) - - - - (47,487)
At 31 December 2018 R2018F 124318 6,914 164,413* 171,385* 17,511* 49,290%  (42,192)* 367,321
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ¥ ZERBREBESUBRARANGESRHBARE

RMB360,407,000 (2017: RMB333,245,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

084
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 BIEFE

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Interest income
Depreciation
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment, net
Loss on written off items of property,
plant and equipment
Fair value change on contingent
consideration receivables
Fair value change on derivative
component of convertible loan
Recognition of prepaid land lease
payments
Impairment on trade and bills
receivables, net
Impairment on other receivables and
deposits, net
Loss on remeasurement of liability
component of convertible loan

Reversal of write-down/(write-down) of

inventories at net realisable value
Reversal of provision against obsolete

and slow-moving inventories
Product warranty additional provision
Finance costs

Operating cash flow before movements
in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and bills receivables

Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease in trade and bills payables

Increase/(decrease) in other payables
and accruals

Increase in contract liabilities

Increase in warranty provision

Cash generated from operations
Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating
activities

REeTZHRERERE
B ¢ Al 7
SEIAA

A S UA

e

HEME - BFELREER

# (st ), B8R - SFER

WEHME - BB MR EEE

#9598
R AR B AR AR

AR RO R
L

HERTEN T H B 5KIR

B 5 I R Rl i
Wi FE

H o FEMRIE N iR £ R (E -

FER
EFtEMREREE
#oyry R
FERURE D, (M) =
A HFE
RELEEFERERD

EmiRERINER
BB R

LEECEYPIKLATRE

FERLCEM)

B 5 R IR K FEUR SR IR AL AN

BNRIE  mEe Rk
H{th [l W R IR

B 5 BN A M R

H b fE 5B M At B A
1200, O )
BHBEIE
RIS R IE N

REmmERE
ERPTISH

REEBAFRESREFR

Note

ftat

~N

2017
2017 6
RMB'000

AR®ET T
(Restated)
(5 E5)

184,043

(3,656)
6,841

139

655

522

66

(1,366)
(7,898)

3,405
11,670

194,584
(17,288)
(149,578)

129,988
(111,879)

(19,231)
(2,632)
23,964

(12,565)

11,399
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Year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 BIEFE

Cash flows from investing activities
Payment for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of items
of property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of an entity under common
control
Interest received
Decrease in pledged deposits

Net cash (used in)/generated from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing activities
New bank borrowings
Repayment of bank borrowings
Repayment to a shareholder
Advance from a related party
Repayment to a related party
Proceeds from issue of new shares
Expenses paid in connection with

the issue of shares
Proceeds from issue of convertible loan
Dividends paid
Interest paid

Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Note

ftat
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2017
2017 4F
RMB'000

ARETT
(Restated)
(reE:5)

(23,773)

736

3,656
39,889

20,508

579,609
(704,116)
(9,683)

234,042
(15,229)

(143,322)
(11,670)

(70,369)

(38,462)

77,501
(11,688)

27,351

27,351
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Morris Holdings Limited (the “Company’, together with its
subsidiaries as the "Group”) is an exempted company with
limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Unit 2001, 20/F, Citicrop Centre, 18
Whitfield Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 12
January 2017.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the
year, the principal activities of the Group are the manufacture
and sale of sofas, sofa covers and other furniture products.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Morris Capital
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
"BVI").

REAERBRAR([XAF]  EREMBA
ASEIAER]) ARAEESTMR L
EREARAGE « NABIA M EE I
/& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands © 2K 2
A E B E B U N BB R B IE I B
185 BB E R0 2042 2001 = ©

KATRNDBE2017F1 A NHEEETEES
R BRARER LT o

ARRR/REBEBRATR - FAXEENTE
EBREEMBEELE DEHREREMKRA
EEm

EZR/ARANER AR R REERA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:
Place of
incorporation/
registration
Company name and business
s,
BLREE
RNEER it
Mstar International Hong Kong/
Trading (HK) Limited United States
XEERES(BE) B/ %8
BRAT
Zhejiang Apollo Leather Products ~ The PRC
Co, Ltd*
(IR ER E 5 m
AR A7) (otea)
HOTFTR R 2 8 i
BRAR(Hita)

Zhejiang Morris Fashion Home The PRC
Co, Ltd.* (Formerly known as
“Haining Gelin Furniture
Co, Ltd))
(IRERRFEEERAA)
(AIfE B ERMERA
BR2AF) (noteb)
HIRERRFEEERAA f
(A8 [BERMKERR
R ) (Hfatb)

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

Issued
ordinary share
capital/paid up

registered
capital

B#fT

EERE/
BRAMBE

HKS100

10078 7T

US$615,000

6150003 7T

US$41,710,000

41,710,000 7T

MEQRER

ADNFAEEHBATFBLT

Percentage of equity

attributable to
the Company
Direct Indirect
ANFELER
Bk
E# f
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

FEXK

Trading of sofas, sofa covers
and other furniture products
Hit R EEm

Manufacture and sale of
sofa covers

TERHEENRE

Manufacture and sale of
upholstered sofas

TERHEEREDE



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Information about subsidiaries (Continued) MEBASER (&)
Issued
Place of ordinary share Percentage of equity
incorporation/ capital/paid up attributable to
registration registered the Company
Company name and business capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
s, B#1T ApEELER
BEREE EERE/ BO
RNEER 2 BREMBE B BiE TEEE
Masia Industries Co, Ltd. The Kingdom of US$5,000,000 - 100%  Not yet commenced operation
Cambodia
("Cambodia")
Masia Industries Co, Ltd. RERT 50000005 7T - 100% HAREEE
(IRER])
Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. The United States of US$9,010 - 100%  Sales of sofas, sofa covers and
America other furniture products
Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. EFBRERE 9010%TT - 100% SHEDE  DEEREM

Notes:

(a) These entities are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint ventures

under the laws of the PRC.

(b)  This company is registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise

under the laws of the PRC.

* The English names of these entities represent management'’s best
effort at translating their Chinese names as these entities did not
register any official English names.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,

KIEER

ZERBRETRERIMAPIGERE -

@ &

b) ZARRBEPEEEREMAIEBEDRSE -

FRINHEETR AT EFEAEEFARE

in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results SERFEEZCERTIHNARRMB A
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets Al -EBEEZRA BEAMWEBARFEESE
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in BERBRITE °

the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2018.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities.

REEE(E)

o8 A~ R S SRR IR AR R & R BUR IR B
ARBEROBREMERR - B RRIHE
RAASERGEGEE RS AR X
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

During the reporting period, the Group has applied, for the
first time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new and revised
HKFRSs") issued by HKICPA which are effective for the
Group's financial year beginning on 1 January 2018. A
summary of the new HKFRSs is set out as below:

HKAS 28 (Amendments)  As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

HKAS 40 (Amendments)  Transfers of Investment Property

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions

HKFRS 4 (Amendments)  Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the Related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and

Advance Consideration

The above new and revised HKFRSs have been applied in
accordance with the relevant transition provisions in the
respective standards and amendments which results in
changes in accounting policies, amounts reported and/or
disclosures as described below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Impact on the consolidated financial statements HEESHBRERN

The following table shows the adjustments recognised for TR MBS ERIEBIERN AL - FRE
each individual line item. Line items that were not affected FENBEREBRELERN - Btk - TR
by the changes have not been included. As a result, the sub- FIiRMEFEMAEERBEN/ N RETS
totals and totals disclosed cannot be recalculated from the FB o ATNIRER|ZI D B TS o

numbers provided. The adjustments are explained in more
detail by standard below.

Consolidated statement of 31 December 1 January
financial position (extract) 2017 HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 2018
FEBBRRK () 2017 BBUMBHRE FRUKRSE 2018
128318 ERIEH ERFE155% 1818

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREBTT AR®TT ARETR

Current assets REEE
Trade and bills receivables B G EW I &k RS 372,117 (427) - 371,690
Prepayments, deposits and FERFIE - e REMER

other receivables EQIE] 114,119 (66) - 114,053
Current liabilities nREEE
Other payables and accruals Hip et sa R EETE A 76,983 - (14,018) 62,965
Contract liabilities SEHBE - - 14,018 14,018
Net current asset RBEETFE 284,737 (493) - 284,244
Capital and reserves RAK #
Reserves Ea= 333,245 (493) - 332,752
Total equity ERAHE 340,159 (493) - 339,666
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

During the reporting period, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for (1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, (2) expected credit
losses (“ECL") for financial assets and (3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised at 1st January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognised at 1st
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts at
31st December 2017 and the carrying amounts at 1st January
2018 are recognised in the opening retained earnings and
other components of equity, without restating comparative
information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be
comparable as comparative information was prepared under
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9
below illustrates the classification and measurement
(including impairment) of financial assets and financial
liabilities and other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39 at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018,

Under the transition methods chosen, the Group recognises
the cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS 9 as
an adjustment to the opening balance of equity at 1 January
2018. Comparative information is not restated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities

All financial assets and liabilities continue to be measured on
the same bases as were previously measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all trade
receivables. Except for those which had been determined as
credit impaired under HKAS 39, the remaining balances are
grouped based on past due analysis. The Group has therefore
estimated the expected loss rates for the trade receivables on
the same basis.

Except for those which had been determined as credit
impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other financial assets at
amortised cost, including deposits, other receivables, pledged
deposits and bank balances, are assessed on 12-month ECL
("12m ECL") basis as there had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition.

All losses allowances including trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2017
reconciled to the opening loss allowance as at 1 January
2018 are as follows:

At 31 December 2017 — HKAS 39

— BB

Amounts re-measured through opening
retained earnings

At 1 January 2018 — HKFRS 9 20184 1 A

MR EE

MR2017F12 A31H

TRMEERSHAENDI BERTE

ELMEERABHRERBELMNETES
AERIFE 39 MARR MG EE LS E -

BHEEBREENIR NEE
AEEEREEYHRELAESREGLT
FRERMEERE  HEAEBSREGIR
ERE2HEREERE KRRETESTE
A% 39K EE REERER IR - HEakiZ
Do - Bt NREEIZR—EE5R
B HRIGRIRAT BB RE -

BIRIBE B G ERERETE REERE
HIRIRSN - HE A ENE SR EE
(BiERe  HtEWFIE - 2R ER KRR
TR MEREEERZ2EARBESR
BRE(MBEARMEFEBR] L RES
B BEAERAREE R R EBEEN -

R2017F 2 A3 BT EEERE(REE
SEKGER EWER - He MEA R
TH) B 20184F 1 A1 HAYEAV) ES I8 BB T BR
N

BERPIEFRNENAEFA

B—&#8

Deposits

Trade and bills and other

receivables receivables

E S EWRE BEeRHEAM

REWE By RE

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®ET T AR®ET T

BII%5 39 5% (95) -
427) (66)

(522) (66)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers from 1 January 2018 which resulted in
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the
amounts recognised in the financial statements. In
accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15, prior
period comparative figures have not been restated. In
summary, the following adjustments were made to the
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at the date of initial application (1 January

ERNKERELERNEISHFEFELHRAL
AEFEE2018F1 A1 BHEEAET BT BERS
EAE 155 [BEPAHKRA] - EBEEUR
FHRYBERREERKBEAE - BIE
EBPBREELFISHABEKR > T8
EFAABRLEERT - BEME  REX
FEFHER (201841 A1 H)EZEAMEMRRAERR
ERERCECIEL U TAE

2018):
HKAS 18 HKFRS 15
carrying carrying
amounts at amounts at
31 December 1 January
2017 Reclassification 2018
EREER &R
F185% F155
R2017 & R2018F
12A318H 1A18H
BREE BENOR IREIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETFT
Contract liabilities (Note a) BHEEHiFa) - 14,018 14,018
Other payables and accruals Hi e IA M ETE R 76,983 (14,018) 62,965
Note a: st a:

Contract liabilities is relation to sales of finished goods were previously
included in receipt in advance of approximately RMB14,018,000 as at 1
January 2018.

The entire amount of contract liabilities at 1 January 2018 is
all recognised as revenue during current year.

Presentation of assets and liabilities related to contracts
with customers

The Group has also changed the presentation of the
following amounts in the consolidated statement of financial
position to reflect the terminology of HKFRS 15:

Contract liabilities in relation to sales of finished goods
were previously included in receipts in advance
(approximately RMB14,018,000 as at 1 January 2018).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Other than stated above, the adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
financial statements and amounts reported for the current

year and prior years.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendments)

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HKFRS (Amendments)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK (IFRIC)-Int 23

Definition of Material®

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement'

Long-term interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures'

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle'

Definition of a business?

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation'

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®

Leases!

Insurance Contracts*

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.

2 Effective for business combination and assets acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also includes
requirements relating to subleases and lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing cash flows by the Group.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

ERMBHREENE 1655 [HE

BB WS RIS 1657 ARBI HAE A R
HMANEELZHERGHRESA—EFAR
o BB MBI EZERIFE 16 5R M A IR A B
REABGFHERE 1757 [HE] RAHERE -

BB BRELENE 16RRBAAFNEER
THEPEHRRESDEENREEL - Ut
Sh - BAEMBREERFE 1650 E ERHER
RHBEFEHHREEN L 15FEAER
HREEERORERHEEARNREME
o BBMBHREENE 16RIMBEARED
HEHEERTNMRTE -

BRAEMHEREKEEEMEEN  KEHER
MEHENZRBAHEA ST RIEPREE -
WHABARRAEHERRBEREEENR
HEEENRAEBNK -

ERREEVSIRNATE  BRIKA(E
THISMB BRI B R 5t T & MR B B B A
E URHERBENERNEHRAEELA
X -HEABVNSEZARRKINOEEN
REBEE - BER - HERBESM (AT E
B MBRAENFTIARBEEITHREEL
HE-RRERENDEME - AKE B A
HEEREE LB A RN EENK
JIEIRER 2 RE - MEMKLEHEN KA
IHER 2R ERE - RIERTEWHREE
AlFE165%1%  BEERERBOBEENTE
AR E RN B - YR AEE DR

BHINRE -



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.

At 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
RMB249,266,000 as disclosed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements. A preliminary assessment indicates that
these arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee and will
recognise the cumulative effect of initial application to
opening retained earnings without restating comparative
information.

Except disclosed above, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have a material impact on the Group's financial
performance and financial positions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in
note 2.2) (Continued)

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer. A contract asset and a contract
liability relating to a contract are accounted for an presented
on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue represents amounts
receivable for goods sold in the normal course of business,
net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture
products are recognised at a point in time when control of
the goods has transferred, which generally coincides with the
time when the products are delivered to customers and title
is passed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

()

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer or resources, or obligation between
the Group and a related party, regardless of whether a price
is charged.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 5%
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 33.3%
Plant and machinery 10% to 20%
Furniture, fixtures and office 20% to 33.3%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% to 33.3%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building, plant and
machinery and other items of property, plant and equipment
under construction, which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and are not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalized borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases net of any incentives received
from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.
Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the
development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance
with HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
other revenue and other income.
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Financial instruments
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL,
except that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
OCl if that equity investment is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which HKFRS 3 Business
Combinations applies.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9) (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognized by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit impaired.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(upon application of HKFRS 9) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other revenue and
other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9in
accordance with transition in note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9
(including trade receivables, deposit paid, other receivables,
loan receivables, time deposits, loan to director and cash and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting period.
Assessment are done based on the Group's historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting period as well as
the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transition in note 2) (Continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread,
the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transition in note 2) (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transition in note 2) (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over 1 year past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognized in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in
accordance with transition in note 2) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined with
the respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not
yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped on the
following basis:

Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade
and other receivables and amounts due from
customers are each assessed as a separate group. Loans
to related parties are assessed for expected credit
losses on an individual basis);

Past-due status;
Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
External credit ratings where available.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to

ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of HKFRS 9in
accordance with transition in note 2) (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognized through a loss
allowance account.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as loans
and receivables as appropriate. When financial assets are
recognised initially, they are measured at fair value plus
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of
the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or
costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in other
income and gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other expenses
and losses.

SRIAE)

TREE ()

B EERE (RIEHT AT 2 898K 1K X B &
BRI & ERE 95 1% ) ()
AHEEERNE MR (B)
MEBWAZeREENRMAENE  KRIF
TREELBREERE  EHBERT  FE
WA BEENBHKXASE -

AEEFBFHBRRAENBERERMETR
TANRERE  HEEZEWHIBERI B
MRREREE Y5 B R R R T AMERR -

EREENTERAKE(R2018%F1 81
H &R &8 81 7% 28 & BRI 9 55 B )
BRERALE
TREEN B RERE D BRE R R E R
H(ER) - RMEERBXERRKIEAR
BENRESREERERDUAGE

EREENMETREEDNNZS B (AR
SEAGEBEAHEREEZR)ER - B15
EERETEE —MREEZRAMSENEED
HRABREENSREEERS -

B M lE MR IR

B WK IR 15 A B E Bk AT R E SR B
ABRMSITEBENIITESREE - 1Y)
AET 1R ZFEEERRAERNZEIN
BRI EREE - R E#E
PRI B R RSB TR SORE - A KIE
REBENEARBO W EREKA - B
REHAT A B E AR A KRR - REE
R EEN B A E (R S K B IR RERR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2018
2018 FF 7R



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group'’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained
the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In that case,
the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate
with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed item of financial asset,
whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The
present value of the estimated future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is
later recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses
and losses in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans

and borrowings and are recognised initially at fair value and
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills
payables, other payables, and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in
the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognized and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
each reporting period of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Provisions for product warranties granted by the Group on
certain products are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted
to their present value as appropriate.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in
the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in
each future period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “"MPF
Scheme”) in Hong Kong under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s operations in Mainland China
are required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the local municipal governments, the assets of
which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage
of the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the central pension schemes. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully once made.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Dividends

Final dividends and special dividends are recognised as a
liability when they are approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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Merger accounting for business combination
involving entities under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they
had been combined from the date when the combining
businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the combining businesses are consolidated
using the existing book values from the controlling party’s
perspective. No amount is recognised in respect of goodwill
or bargain purchase gain at the time of common control
combination.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining businesses from the earliest date presented or
since the date when the combining businesses first came
under the common control, where this is a shorter period.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the businesses had been
combined at the end of the previous reporting period or
when they first came under common control, whichever is
shorter.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are
identified from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various line of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of
the nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Foreign currencies

The Company’s functional currency is the United States dollar
("US$"). Because most of the subsidiaries’ functional
currencies are RMB, the consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB. Each entity in the Group determines its
own functional currency and items included in the
consolidated financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of each reporting period. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of
a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line
with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair
value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or oss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of
each reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular operation is
not recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows,
the cash flows of subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than RMB are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring
cash flows of these subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

The major judgements, estimates and assumptions that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are set out
below:

Impairment of receivables under HKAS 39

The Group records impairment of receivables based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables. The
identification of impairment of receivables requires
management’s judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in the future is different from the
original estimates, such differences will have an impact on
the carrying value of receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/write-back of doubtful debts in the reporting
period in which such estimate is changed.

Provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventories

The Group reviews an ageing analysis of its inventories and
the condition of its inventories at the end of each reporting
period, and makes provision against obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items which are identified as no longer
suitable for sale or use in the production. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions.

The provision against obsolete and slow-moving inventories
requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where the
actual outcome or expectation in the future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an impact
on the carrying value of inventories and the write-down of
inventories recognised in the reporting period in which such
estimate is changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Allowance for expected credit loss for financial
assets under HKFRS 9

The Group makes loss allowance on receivables including
trade and bills receivables, deposit and other receivables
based on various factors including the aging of the
receivables, historical write-off experience and forward
looking information. The identification of impairment of
receivables requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectations are different from the original
estimates, such differences will impact the carrying amounts
of receivables and the allowance for credit losses on
receivables is recognised in the years in which such estimates
have been changed. See note 17 for further discussion.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Impairment of advances to suppliers under HKAS 39

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for advances to suppliers at the end of each
reporting period. Advances to suppliers are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. The identification of
impairment of advances to suppliers requires management’s
judgement and estimates. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original
estimates, such differences will have an impact on the
carrying value of advances to suppliers and impairment/
write-back of impairment in the reporting period in which
such estimate is changed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of its transactions in accordance with prevailing
tax regulations and makes tax provision accordingly.
However, judgement is required in determining the Group's
provision for income taxes as there are many transactions
and calculations of which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and deferred tax provision in the
periods in which the determination is made. The carrying
amounts of current tax payables and deferred tax assets and
liabilities are set out in the consolidated statement of financial
position and note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Derecognition of factored trade receivables and
discounted/endorsed bills receivable

The Group has entered into arrangements with its bankers in
respect of the factoring of trade receivables and discounting
of bills receivable, or endorsed certain of its bills receivable
accepted by banks to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements
and the credit quality and settlement pattern of the factored
trade receivables and discounted/endorsed bills receivable,
management has to determine whether the Group has
retained substantially the risks and rewards of certain
receivables, which include default risks relating to such
receivables. Details of the transfers of financial assets are
included in note 35 to the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Warranty provision

As further explained in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group makes provisions for the warranties it
gives on the sale of its products taking into account the
Group's current sales levels and past experience of the level
of repairs and returns. As the Group is continually upgrading
its product designs and launching new models, it is possible
that the past experience of the level of repairs and returns is
not indicative of future claims that it will receive in respect of
past sales. Any increase or decrease in the actual claims
would affect profit or loss in future years.

Information reported to the Board, being the chief operating
decision maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided. This is also the basis
upon which the Group is organised and managed.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS 8
are as follows:

a. Retail segment

b.  Manufacturing segment
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 ALFE

4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, DEPER (&)
Segment revenues and results DEBUN R R A
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and T AREBIZ]2HREE D BE D HUWA
results by reportable and operating segments: REE ST
Elimination of
Retail segment Manufacturing segment intersegment sales Total
SEAH EEAH 2R EH act
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

2018 % WI7E 2018F WI7E 20185 WI7E 2018F 20174
RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMB'000  RMBO0O

AERTR ARBTR AR%TR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARMTI ARETR

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(&=75) (E=51) (EE7)) (7))

Segment revenues AEBA
External sales INEDHE 222,448 243933 | 1,387,595 1172462 - - | 1,610,043 1416395
Internal sales nEEE - - | 20838 8008 | (20,838) ] (28028 - -
222,448 243933 | 1,408,433 1,200490 (20,838) (28,028) | 1,610,043 1416395
Segment (loss)/profit A (ER),/EH (60,991) | (20695 | 176,173 | 204085 13 (66) | 115195 | 183324
Interest income FISHA 2,218 3656

Fair value change on RREFRITE
derivative component  EAMAREES
convertible loan 27,501 -

Fair value change on YR AR ER)
contingent consideration AL {EE
receivables 2,799 -

Loss on remeasurement of  E#75 8 A AR
liability componentof B EHAHNER

convertible loan (24,609) -
Unallocated corporate R AEEA AR

expenses (7,658) (2937)
Unallocated finance costs A EBY AR A (15,160) -
Profit before taxation bR 752 B 100,286 184,043
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

Segment profit/(loss) represents the (loss from)/profit earned
by each segment without allocation of interests income, fair
value change on derivative component of convertible loan,
fair value change on contingent consideration receivables,
loss on remeasurement of liability component of convertible
loan, unallocated corporate expenses, and unallocated
finance costs. This is the measure reported to the Board for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Segment assets and liabilities

Retail segment

ZELE

2017

20174

RMB'000

ARETT

(Restated)

(F=&E5)

Segment assets DEEE 77,612
Unallocated corporate KD BL A BIAE

assets
Consolidated assets 438 B

Segment liabilities Pz =RE 82,568

Unallocated corporate AP BL AT A&

liabilities

Consolidated liabilities  43& B &

DEBE R A ()
AEREM(BER)ESSB(TELES
18),/PRERBUAF - I &5 @Eﬂgl&)\ "]
MBRERTEBOO XA EES - BRIA
ﬁfﬁﬁ’]@/‘c@“@ ﬁ%ﬁpﬁri—ﬁﬁﬂﬁféf?k
BRSO HER - RO B AR AR AR
AR - L JhRE Dﬁl&%ﬁﬂﬂ’]ﬁi A
Bn EEéﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬁ

ITHMEEREE
Manufacturing segment Consolidated
£ED me
2017 2017
20174 20174
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(& =51) (=51)
1,036,471 114,083
28,764
1,142,847
696,815 779,383
23,305
802,688
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTHMEEREE(E)
For the purpose of monitoring segment performances and BERSHARBENEDI2EDEER
allocating resources between segments:

all assets are allocated to operating segments other . BADEAREE(FEBFEEWSA
than unallocated corporate assets (mainly comprising REREEMADEATEE)IN FIE
contingent consideration receivables and other BEA PRZEEDE &

unallocated corporate assets); and

all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other . BRADEANBE(TEREENEE
than unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly NARE - PTESBIE  ABmIRER
comprising amount due to a related company, FEMADSBEARBE)I FIEEE
derivative financial instruments, convertible loan and OB EDED ©

other unallocated corporate liabilities).

Other segment information HippHER
Retail segment Manufacturing segment Unallocated Total
SEOH EEDH xE @t
2017 2017 2017 2017
2017F WM7E M7E 017F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AERETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(m=5) (E5) (=51) (f&=5)
Addition of property, plant AEHE - BREK
and equipment R 7814 15959 - B3
Depreciation of property, 1% * BiE ki fE
plant and equipment e 166 5575 - 6,841
Amortisation of prepaid B E IR
lease payments - - 163 163

Impairment loss on trade & 5 B WA K
and bill receivables BREERE

BR 1 51 - 52
Impairment loss on BRTE BER
prepayments, deposits  E A EWEIE
and other receivables HESE 20 4 2 66
Finance costs REKA 1,765 9905 - 11,670
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Geographical information

(a)

(b)

Revenue from external customers

Geographical information in respect of revenue from
external customers is not presented since most of the
Group's revenue from external customers, based on the
locations of the products delivered to the customers, is
generated in the United States of America (the “U.S.").
Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors, the
presentation of geographical information would
provide no additional useful information to the users of
the consolidated financial statements.

Non-current assets

i EE R

(a) SIEBEFKA
HREBREEEXNERNEFTEH
B 7R 52 B A BE 5 9N ER R P U A S I R
ARER([EEDES - U E27) 8450
BEEFWABTBENWEER - Al » &
ERE 2HHEBHBETE ALK
BERHEAEIREBEINERER -

(b) FREEE

2017

2017 4F
RMB'000
AR®ETF T
(Restated)
(Fe&E7)

The People’s Republic of China FE AR (BFEEE)

(including Hong Kong)
Cambodia RIFSE
The US. X

The non-current asset information above is based on
the locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax
assets and contingent consideration receivables.

22,214
42,316
1,926

66,456

AEFRBEEEMIRBEENLE
25 TEREENRREEE R EWER
(MER
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 ALFE

4, SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. DEER(E)
Information about major customers EBEXEEZEFHNEHR
Revenue from major customers which did not consist any RAEEFEMAEERRKRA 0NN FTNEE
related parties of the corresponding year contributing over 2E(TBIEEABEER) AT

10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows:

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AREFIT

(Restated)

(&&=5)

Customer 1 ZHE1 239,207 224,824

Customer 2 BED2 180,591 126,362

Customer 3 ZPF3 164,276 221,818
Customer 4 BF4 164,046 N/A 38 3 *

Customer 5 BPF5 N/A RiE A * 156,363

* Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total revenue * BEU AL ANE B AU AT 10% o

of the Group.
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Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold, WAIEFTISEERIKREE - BNk
after allowances for returns, trade discounts and value-added EREERNERFEE -
tax.
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA ~ B A RIE ST T
2017
20174
RMB'000
AREFT
(Restated)
(g&:75)
Revenue WA

Recognised at point of time:
Manufacture and sales of sofas, sofa cover
and other furniture products

Other income and gains

Interest income

Exchange gains, net

Government subsidies

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Rental income

Fair value change on derivative component
of convertible loan

Sales of raw materials

Sales of scrap materials

Repair service income

Compensation on factory relocation

Lease termination income

Fair value change on contingent
consideration receivables

B — B[R] B HERR -
SEREENE  DBER
H A RIEE & 1,416,395

Hab g A R W

FEUWA 3,656
P& W s - JFEB -
BT R B # 8,269
HEME - BEMREHURES

Al A -
AN EROTAE D B

NIREEE -
SHE RM K -
$HE R 1,410
HEAZ PRSI 11,170
S B (E -
HELRIEWA 8,042
JER S AREN AR BEES

Others Hi 4,402
36,949
’ Subsidies have been received from the local governments in ’ L& M T B BB B T L S AR SR [ ¥
Zhejiang Province in respect of successful listing in Hong Kong DEEXNEBE L AFE) © 72018512 A31
and the Group’s contribution to sofa industry. There were no H BEEEZSHENREREGERIASE
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these subsidies TH (2017 4F @ 48%) ©
as at 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
As at 31 December 2018, according to HKFRS 15 the 201812 A31 8 - IRBEE BV BWEER
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the F155  PECEANEERABEENHEDIE -
remaining performance obligation under the Group's existing DEERHEHMFREERE TR TRAOEEN
manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa covers and other furniture RGEREEL A AR 17967,0007T © MAE
products is approximately RMB17,967,000 and the Group will B 2019 FERER UL BT A ©

recognised this revenue in 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F 12831 HILFE

6. FINANCE COSTS 6. RIEMNA
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
(Restated)
(&&=5)
Interest on bank loans SRITERFE 9,793 9,909
Interest on discount trade bills BHIRE ZFERFE - 1,761
Interest on convertible loan AT B RL8 15,077 -
24,870 11,670
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold

Depreciation

Recognition of prepaid land lease
payments

Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net ***

Loss on written off items of property,
plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases

Auditors’ remuneration:
Audit and audit related services
Non-audit services

Employee benefit expense (excluding
directors’ and Chief executives
remuneration (note 8)):

Salaries, wages and benefits in kind

Pension scheme contributions*

Reversal of provision against obsolete
and slow-moving inventories**

Write-down/(Reversal of write-down) of

inventories to net realisable value**
Impairment loss on trade and bills
receivables, net
Impairment loss on other receivables
and deposits, net
Product warranty additional provision
Loss on remeasurement of liability
component of convertible loan***
Foreign exchange differences, net
Listing expenses

EEFEKRA
e
BN+ 1 E SRR

HEME - BFE k&
THEREE - FEE
W - BE K&
H &R
REHER T &R
HEMR
%Gl ka

T MEH RS
FEE IR

BERAMAX (TEHE
EERETETHAER
B (F95E8)) -

e IEREDNZ
RIRGET B T

RS

NEEHBRB AR A T
ZIF

Notes

ftit

13

14

RE MIETF B B imR R

TTﬂMﬂ/’

m%ﬁ%
BEEE - FRE
H
E5i8 - R
E RIS EINEE
BT ERRRKRER
BEE D HYETIE
MEH % FEE
FHAX

ﬂ%@)

SV ES
LB R R SR

g,/ (GtA) T3

2017
2017 6
RMB'000

AREFTT
(Restated)
(ge&E7)

947,128
6,841

163
139
655
67,755

1,440
799

2,239

179,146
8,876

188,022

(7,898)

(1,366)
522
66

3,405

6,959
1,943
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 ALFE

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

7. BRBADER (8)

* At 31 December 2018, the Group had no forfeited contributions * R2018%F 12 A31H » AEBEIWED BRI RA]
available to reduce its contributions to pension schemes in future R E R R FEE R R R B (2017 4F -
years (2017: Nil). ) o
** The above items are included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the *x A EBRAGAEBEREM 2R ERO 1Y
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ERA] R e
income.
**  This item is included in “Other expenses and losses” on the face of » ZHHBFAGAEEEEMEERERAE
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other A RERB] A -
comprehensive income.
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERITETHAEME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year, BIEBSHES TR ETmEL]) - F
disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of BN RMEBIZE 383(1)(@) * (b) * (O KO IERARA
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), A(EBEEEFEZERRAUE 2R ZFE
section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies EERTETHRAEMESHEZRT
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as
follows:
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFTT
Fees we 3,528 3,227
Other emoluments: E b 3N -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYHIZE 1,811 1,713
Discretionary bonuses BB IEAL 2,062 1,043
Pension scheme contributions RIRET 2K 125 105

3,998 2,861

7,526 6,088

140 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

(a)

Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Mr. Huang Wenli BXAERE
Mr. Shao Shaomin BB &
Mr. Liu Haifeng 2glE kA
Ms. Zhang Bingbing SRIKK2Z+

(i)

(iif)

(iv)

Ms. Zhang Bingbing, Mr. Huang Wenli and Mr.
Shao Shaomin were appointed as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 10
December 2016.

Mr. Liu Haifeng was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 6 July
2017.

Ms. Zhang Bingbing resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 31 May 2017.

Mr. Shao Shaomin resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 29 March 2019.

Mr. Huang Wenli resigned as an independent
non-executive director on 28 May 2019.

Mr. Pang Wing Hong was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 12 April
2019.

Mr. Chu Guodi was appointed as an independent
non-executive director on 28 May 2019.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the
year (2017: Nil).

(a) BIAFHTES
FAXNFBEILIFRTEZTNESHT
m

2017
2017 4F
RMB'000

AREET T

101
101
51
42

295

()  FRAKKZE - EXEERERR D
FEER2016FE12A10BEZEA
KRRV IEHITES ©

iy BIBEEER2017F7AcHEZR
TAKRNBBIIFNITESE -

(i) SR KKZ £ H201795A31 8 B
EBILIERITES -

AR 85 £ R 201953 A 29 &
EBIIERITES -

=X AE S AR 201995 A28 H B
EBTIFITES o

TKELEEN2019F4 5128 &
REABIIERTES -
B 3B 4 A R 2019F5 A28 H JE
REIABIIFNITES -

vy BEEGFRNENBILIERNITE
EZHM (20175 ) o
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HZE2018F 12831 BILFE

8.

142

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. ESRFETHRAEME®
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) The chief executive officer, and executive (b) THEARBEKHAITES
directors
The remuneration of each of these executive directors ZERTEESENMESEIT
is set out below:
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
e 2 BIRGE
we REWAE iR #H Meks
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR AR¥Tn AR®TR ARET:R
Yearended 31 December2018  HZ2018F 12831 BLEE
Executive Directors; #IES!
Mr. Zou Pri 2,185 1,218 882 32 4,317
Mr. Chen Guohua RREIE % 4 146 87 - 2 265
Mr. Zeng Jin LoEAE 440 177 250 32 899
Mr.Wu Yuming RABEE 244 130 530 1 915
Mr. Shen Zhidong AEREE 110 200 400 18 728
3,125 1,812 2,062 125 7,124

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

(b) The chief executive officer, and executive
directors (Continued)

Fees
ae
RMB'000
AREFL

Year ended 31 December 2017 HEN7EN A BILEE

Execuitive Directors: BTES:

Mr. Zou FrE 1,691
Mr. Chen Guohua BREE LA 441
Mr. Zeng Jin o 441
Mr. Wang Ming THEkE 138
Mr. Shen Zhidong REREE 1
2932

Mr. Wu Yuming was appointed as executive director of
the Company on 6 Jun 2018. Mr. Shen Zhidong was
appointed as executive director of the Company on 6

July 2017.

Mr. Chen Guohua was appointed as an executive
director on 17 May 2018. Mr. Wang Ming resigned as an
executive director on 31 May 2017.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2017: Nil).

(b) THABRITES(HE)
Salaries,
allowances, Pension
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
o 28 RIRETE
REMME BT it Mems
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AEETT  ARETR ARETRT ARETR
1220 520 29 3460
172 200 29 842
172 200 29 842
68 25 4 235
81 9% 14 414
1713 1,043 105 5793

RAREER0I8FcACHEZTA
KAFIHITES o« LERLENR2017F
7R HERITAARARRMITES -

FREFE S A 2018FE5s A7 HEZEA
HITEE - THAER2017E5H31H
BHIMITES o

METNEFATZTRAERFAR
BYRENEMENLEE(017F - £) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The five highest paid employees during the year included 1 FANEEGRaHEERE—REE Q075 :
director (2017: 1), details of whose remuneration are set out —%) BRAEMESaFIEEN X HEs -
in note 8 above. The emoluments of Mr. Chen Guohao PREUZE A RKT I ST IR M HINE B IEE
disclosed in note 8 only included the portion of his TEFESBEHRNE > FHN - AE25S
emoluments during the year when he held the directorship FEEMFMFBWOT :

position. Details of the remuneration of the five highest paid
employees are as follows:

2017
2017 4
RMB'000
AR®ET T
(Restated)
(geE:7)
Fees we 1,691
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind Fe o R NEYA G 6,392
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 520
Pension Scheme contributions RIRET B 29
8,632
The number of highest paid employees whose remuneration HMMN T T o EENSESHFEEHEMT :
fell within the following bands is as follows:
2017
2017
(Restated)
(F&E5))
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7T 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7L 1,500,000 7 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T £ 2,000,000 7 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T £ 2,500,000 7 7T 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000 7 7T 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 78 JT & 4,500,000 8 7T -
5
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to RER AEEMERNAEEaHEE N
any of the five highest paid employees as an inducement to e fEARSIEMAKRER S INANEEF
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of e i) SN Sk R BER A E (20176 - &) -

office (2017: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill")
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The
Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted
on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HKS$2
million will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)).

PRC subsidiaries are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% during the year (2017: 25%). Pursuant to the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC, Zhejiang Morris Fashion
Home Co., Ltd. ("Fashion Home") and Zhejiang Apollo
Leather Products Co,, Ltd. ("“Apollo”), which qualified as High
and New Technology Enterprises (‘"HNTE") in 30 November
2018, were entitled to a reduced enterprise income tax rate
of 15%. During the year ended 31 December 2018, Fashion
Home an Apollo applied the qualification of HNTE and are
entitled to the reduced tax rate of 15% until the year ended
30 November 2021.

The U.S. corporate tax rate is 21% for the year ended 31
December 2018 in accordance to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act.
The U.S. income tax includes (a) federal income tax calculated
at a fixed rate of 21% for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017:a progressive rate of 15% to 35%) on the estimated U.S.
federal taxable income and (b) state income tax calculated at
various state income tax rates for both periods on the
estimated state taxable income for the respective states. The
income subject to tax in a specific state (i.e. state taxable
income) is calculated based on the federal taxable income
with state tax adjustments, which is then allocated or
apportioned to the respective states (i.e. percentage of
taxable income that should be apportioned or specially
allocated to the respective states in which the Group
operates) based on the apportionment factors provided from
the state tax returns in previous year.

RERSHEREBRAES ((RBELH
EDOREBRN  AEEBARRAERS
KRB SHMERER

20183 A21 B » BBILEE@BAC0174F
MIEUERT) (BTGP ER ([ ZIRFIER )
SIAFI S5 ARH o 3 GBI E 2= F 2018 3
A28 AEEEEN  WHRNBEEFTHTZE -
BIBERBHFEREHE  cEBEEER
B 2,000,000 7% 7T B9 S5 F| 45 152 8.25% B9 7 K 4
i+ 08 3@ 2,000,000 7% 7T B9 4 I Bl 1% 16.5% &Y
B - THAEMEHFGHEHEER
MEEERN RN BEER165% (2017 F -
16.5%) &Y [&E] 7E Ft R EH

FR - PBIKE AR AL 25% (2017 F 1 25%)
MEBMPEIBEFTERH o RIBEFBEEEE
BRI - 72018411 A 30 BT A & #FUin
TE(SHEMEE]) BRI TREER A
REBRAF (KRB KWK EK
SRRERAG(MER])  EEZEARE
TEMEHREE 5% HE2018F12H831H
IEFE - B RERMDKZES BEm il
TEER TARZARETEI1S% BE
HE2021F 11 A30BIEFEE AL -

BIBRB AR E LR - HZE2018F 128318
IFFEMNERGEMRER21% EBMER
BREQMEERBAMSEREUAREE
20184 12 A 31 B IEFE 21% B EEFLE (2017
F 5% E35% K RERR) ;T E MBS
it X () 7 P (B R 8 7 3L & M B A A P ER AR
WA - BRI B R ETENMETEH -
5 T N B FE SR B U (BN FERR AR UL ) 2
KIER NG R IBFA R (g DB IR B9 IR
EFIN) BB B RE SR TR U (B b 51l 99k 3%
BB Bl B A BAS L FTfEAB R N 1 FO B 2R
MWABDLL) - BIBSLRIFERNINRR KR
HEOSEEREMTESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 ALFE

0. INCOME TAX (Continued) 10. FR1GH® (&
Taxes on profits assessable in elsewhere have been calculated A H 3 [ 49 8 2R R4S B Th 3R AN 5 B 4R 2 B
at the rate of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the TEREERMIBITHERTE -
Group operates.
2018 2017
2018 20174F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR%TT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Current — PRC BNER — AR
— Charge for the year — FREZH 12,720 20,027
— Overprovision in prior year — BAFEBERE (7,810) (5,564)
Current — Hong Kong EVER — &BA 17,450 17,631
Current — US. BPER — =&
— Charge for the year — FAXH 52 147
— Over-provision in prior year — BAFEHBEEE (520) -
Current — Other BNER — EAth 1 -
Deferred (note 25) RAE (Mt 25) (8,022) 6,107
Tax charge for the year FARIEZ 13,881 38,348
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the Group's effective tax rate is as follows:

BARFABAHMB AT MR AERE
B 52 T SR 6 AT i PR A0 B TE
¥ ERAEE TR RS AR ER S YE
m -

2017
20176
RMB'000
ARETT
(Restated)
(reE:5)
Profit before tax B 15 AT A 184,043
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable %7 8 =] A#E & i 71 A
to profit in the respective jurisdiction R R BRI IE 37,522
Adjustments in respect of current tax of HLiE 1 HARE BN HARY 18 ) 38 B
previous periods (5,564)
Effect of withholding tax at 10% on the AEEFEMME AR HE
distributable profits of the Group's i FEU 0% TEINF R
PRC subsidiaries 5,062
Expenses not deductible for tax ORIE163 2,238
Super-deduction of eligible research and B E R BEE
development expenditure (7,683)
Tax effect of deductible temporary different A HIB & s Z R R IE B -
Income tax on concessionary rate REEMEFENMER -
Income not subject to tax BARBUA (228)
Tax losses utilized from previous years BEFEEHAFIEEIE (737)
Tax losses not recognised RERBIEER 7,738
Tax charge for the year FARIEXZ H 38,348

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 12.1% (2017:
18.4%). The change in the weighted average applicable tax
rate was caused by a change in the profitability of certain
subsidiaries of the Company in the respective jurisdictions.

mEFHE R E B121%(20174F -
184%) o MEFHEAREEH IHENAR
AATHB AR NIEE AR M & T 6
BT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

2017
2017 4F
RMB'000
AREFT
Interim dividend paid EFHRE
— HK1.8 cents (2017: HK1.5 cents) per — FRE IR 187
ordinary share (20174 1 1.5784l) 12,868
Interim special dividend paid 2R BRRR R AR B
— Nil (2017: HK4.5 cents) per ordinary share — & E BT E
(2017 5 + 45734l) 38,604
Final dividend proposed EEARERE
— HK1.3 cents (2017: HK3.8 cents) per — G E@AE 138
ordinary share (20174 : 38784l) 30,632
82,104
The calculation of basic earnings per share amount for the BE2018F 12731 AILLFE - BFREAET]
year ended 31 December 2018 was based on the profit for DIRBAFEARR R EBERR B ARIE R
the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the F A K #864050007T (20174« A K #
Company of RMB86,405,000 (2017: RMB145,695,000), and the 145,695,000 7T ) LA B 5F U E 84T E 3 AR A0 N
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 1,000,000,000 *F 15 #1,000,000,000 B (2017 5 + 992,465,753
(2017: 992,465,753) in issue during the year. B
No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per ARAREREZE2018F12 831 BIEFER
share amounts presented for the years ended 31 December AREER RN EHITERR (20174 : WM&
2018 and 2017 as the Group had anti-dilutive ordinary shares BEEEEITERR) - WL EHEZE 2018
in issue during year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: no FR2017F 12831 BIEFE2INGRER
potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue). BFCBIELAE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 HILFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
Improve- Plantand  and office Motor

Buildings ments  machinery  equipment vehicles Total
HE -
HE BER BRR

BEM  MEEE HaE  BORE AE st

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000

fiE  ARETR ARBTT ARBTR ARMTR ARETRT AR®TR

31 December 2018 201812 A31H
At31 December 2017 and R2017F128318%

1 January 2018 (Restated) 2018%F1 18 (EE5)

Cost AR 34,395 20,390 18,130 20,608 2,464 95,987

Accumulated depreciation ZEHE - (11,373) (10,163) (14,020) (1,029) (36,585)

Net carrying amount BEFE 34,395 9,017 7,967 6,588 1,435 59,402
At 1 January 2018, net of R2018F1/18 -

accumulated depreciation MR EHE 34,395 9,017 7,967 6,588 1,435 59,402
Additions HE 1,208 4,706 3,150 1,560 245 10,869
Disposal/write-off HE sy - (394) (40) (2,918) (18) (3,370)
Transfer b - - - - - -
Depreciation e 7 (3,502) (3,392) (1,678) (896) (468) (9,936)
Exchange realignment E3arckd 1,733 280 2 116 - 2,131
At 31 December 2018, net of R2018F 128318

accumulated depreciation Nk R:rE 33,834 10,217 9,401 4,450 1,194 59,096
At31 December 2018: R2018F12A318 ¢

Cost A 37,481 22,737 21,037 15,585 2,348 99,188

Accumulated depreciation ZE (3,647) (12,520) (11,636) (11,135) (1,154) (40,092)

Net carrying amount FREFE 33,834 10,217 9,401 4,450 1,194 59,096
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

150

13. Y% - BERRE &)

(Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
Improve- Plantand and office Motor  Construction
Buildings ments  machinery  equipment vehicles i progress Total
ik BER HE KA
BEW  MERE BE REAR e ERIE @
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000
Mg ARETn ARETR ARETT ARETR ARET AREFT AREF
31 December 2017 20175128310
At 31 December 2016 and R16E 128318 R
1 January 2017 (Restated) 0171 B1B(EEF)
Cost AR - 17,831 15,520 18510 1,295 34,204 87,360
Accumulated depreciation ZEE - (15,009) (9,666) (15,765) (542) - (40982)
Net carrying amount REFE - 282 5,854 2745 753 34204 46378
At 1 January 2017, net of R017E1R18
accumulated depreciation (Restated) ¥k 37 E (W EF) - 2822 5,854 2745 753 34204 46378
Additions HE - 8159 4010 8122 1231 2251 3773
Disposal/write-off HE /s - (495) (861) (167) 1) - (1530)
Transfer i E 35572 - - - - (35,572) -
Depreciation & 7 - (1,404) (887) (4,008) (542) - (6,841)
Exchange realignment EXHE (1,177) (69) (149 (104) - (883) (2379)
At 31 December 2017, net of R07E12A3NE
accumulated depreciation Nk 25t E 34395 9017 7.967 6,588 1435 - 59402
At31 December 2017 (Restated: 2017412 A31 B (R EF) -
Cost %S 34,395 20,390 18,130 20,608 2464 - 95,987
Accumulated depreciation ZEHITE - (11373) (10,163) (14020) (1029) - (36,585)
Net carrying amount REFE 34395 9017 7967 6588 1435 - 59402
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Carrying amount at beginning FYIMREE
of the year
Addition =T
Amortisation iR
Exchange realignment PE H %K
Carrying amount at end of the year FARMEREE
Current portion included in BaT AT FKIE -

prepayments, deposits
and other receivables R EN S

Non-current portion ERBE D

As at 31 December 2018, the title certificate with respect to
the land with a carrying amount of RMB8,254,000 (2017:
RMB7,212,000) in Cambodia leased by Masia Industries Co.,
Ltd., the Group's subsidiary, from the Sihanoukville Special
Economy Zone Co,, Ltd,, was not registered in the name of
Masia Industries Co., Ltd. Notwithstanding, the directors are
of the opinion that Masia Industries Co., Ltd. is entitled to the
lawful and valid occupation and use of the buildings and
land to which the above-mentioned land use rights relate
based on the lease agreement and the subsequent
assignment.

The amount represents the fair value of receivable if the
audited net profits of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. and its
subsidiaries cannot achieve the respective base profit target
for the year ending 31 December 2019 and 2020. For detailed
information, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 14 August 2018.

The fair value of contingent consideration receivables as at 31
December 2018 was determined based on the valuation
performed by an independent professional valuer not
connected with the Group.

Be MEA K RIR

2017

2017 4F

Note RMB'000
ftat AREFTT

7,808
7 (163)
(433)

7,212

(158)

7,054

F2018 12 A31 B  REEH I E A 7] Masia
Industries Co,, Ltd.[[ Al B 7o B & B R AR
ANRMEEREERARYES254,0007T (20174 -
AE¥7,212,000 7T) SR IFZE L HHY P B HERE
£ 3 4 A Masia Industries Co, Ltd. YR 3= E 50 ©
BEIE - TEARA  Masia Industries Co,, Ltd.
EEBEBEHERZEMEERZRRKEZEREA
A5 AR sl - fh AP R VIR EE ) I b o

A [ FX I8 $5 £ Jennifer Convertibles Inc. X £ Fff
B R BIREZE 2019F 2 20205 12 A 31 B IEF
[EMEE AN E L EDNEBEEN RN E S
MERLTREREFIEBENAABE  EEFHEE
¥ B2 AR HEA2018F8 1488

N

R2018F 12 A3 BHEWKSAREBHRARET
WEAREEWEBEENE Y EEGHERMTHE
ITHEETE -
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HZE2018F 12831 BILFE

16. INVENTORIES 16. B&

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 5

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREFIT

(Restated)

(&&E7)

Raw materials AR 29,055 285,085
Work in progress pasL 43,968 22,727
Finished goods BUAY 144,268 70,204
217,291 378,016

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 17. ESRWFERERERE

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREF T

(Restated)

(&=75))

Trade receivables from third parties REEZHHNE ZREWRGE 633,409 367,330
Less: Impairment of trade receivables BB S EWEIERE (2,253) (92)
Trade receivables, net B pEGIE - REE 631,156 367,238
Bills receivable arising from intra-group sales JEUWERIE — KRB EERNHE 3,365 4,879
634,521 372,117

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period for customers of the manufacturing
segment is generally one to two months, extending up to
three to six months for major customers, the credit period for
customers of the retail segment is within one month. The
Group does not hold any collateral over its trade and bills
receivable balances. Trade and bills receivables are non-
interest bearing.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 HILFE

17. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provision, is as follows:

17. EZRRFIEREBRER #)

RARERK - REZEMMNIRBRE27
HE 5 RUGRIA K B INSE B AR D ATAR T -

2018 2017

2018 £ 2017 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARET T

(Restated)

(&)

Within 3 months 3MEA R 596,928 349,884
410 6 months 4E 6@ A 36,983 14,187
7to 12 months 7E121E A 610 8,046
634,521 372,117

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

BB B A R BAR AR EN B 5 BRI
REBRENRESITOT

2017
20174
RMB'000
ARETT
(Restated)
(g&&E7)

Neither past due nor impaired BL oK@ BR T R (B 342,180
Less than 3 months past due BEI3E A AT 29,759
3 to 6 months past due wHEI3 = 6fE A 178

372,117

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to
a large number of diversified customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

BR R 780 B 7 R (B A R MG IS e K 83 H)
I BRI D BUEF
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Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a B8 HE AR E A B RIE P RN A S E
number of independent customers that have a good track ERUABREBENZEZBIREF - ARNBE
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the & KRREERA  HAMRBRBEGRE
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision HEERE RASEELZEZTHEE A#
for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as FaEsrwR Ar] 28Uk E -

there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade B EWRTEREREESEES N -
receivables are as follows:

2017
2017 &
RMB'000
AR¥TT
At beginning of year FH) 159
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) EERBEEIE (M 7) 95
Amount written off as uncollectable R P AT UK ] T i S Y 2 BB (159)
Exchange realignment ME H, 3B 3)
At end of year FR 92
Included in the above provision for impairment of trade L8 5B IB R ERE B IER 20185 12
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade A3 BeERASEREEENRENKRES Sk
receivables of RMB92,000 with the same amounts as carrying Wk Ta 1 A R #E 92,000 7T ©
amounts as at 31 December 2018.
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to ERRE R B 5 e UGRIE S K& e A B 75 N 2
customers that were in financial difficulties or were in default MR A S BB AW C EUGRIER E P o
in principal payments and the receivables are not expected
to be recovered.
Details of the ECL assessment was set out in Note 37. BB EE BB AT EEHNME37 -

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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18. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 18. ANRIE - RERHMEWKIE
RECEIVABLES
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Advances to suppliers T FERE IR 2,081 9218
Other prepayments H A TS 3KI8 7,550 33578
Deposits and other receivables e M E At FE U FR IR 52,271 71,165
Current portion of prepaid BN LA EFIBEM R EN S
land lease payments (note 14) (Btat14) 180 158
62,082 114,119
None of the above assets were either past due or impaired. Lt EEMEa B ERE - 5T A Ll
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to K& Bh & = B BN A HE R RC 8 Y FE R
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. B -
19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. RERREEFEYURBEFEFNK
PLEDGED DEPOSITS
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTES 217,904 210,198
Less: Pledged deposits for bills payment A R RENEEIRTR
(note 20) (KtaE20) (92,935) (181,861)
Less: Pledged deposits for letter of credit B ERABNEERTER (1,041) (986)
Total pledged deposits [REGELEE L (93,976) (182,847)
Cash and cash equivalents RENBEESEEY 123,928 27,351
Cash and bank balances denominated in: Be MIRITEBRIZA T EEE -
RMB AR 108,447 186,422
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") B ((#Ex]) 1,368 1,722
uss$ ET 108,089 22,054
217,904 210,198
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 19. RERRESEYURCEAENK
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (Continued) (&)
As at the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank RIREER  UAREFENIRS RIBITEHE
balances denominated in RMB amounted to RMB108,447,000 %A A R #108447,0007T (2017 F + AR #
(2017: RMB186,422,000). RMB is not freely convertible into 186,422,0007T) ° AR A B BB AHAM
other currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign G R - BIEPRERNHINES AR &L
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of SEiE EENMNESERTE  AEEEES
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange BERERRIINEEENRTEARK LR
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for BEMEE -
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily THERBRBETRRITHERN R ZEBH X
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with .;I- E’ CIRTTHMTE I BB ENREBE
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. B RITHIRTT ©
20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 20. EZERREREAEE
2018 2017
2018 FF 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
Trade payables to third party ENE=F8E 55 209,275 228378
Bills payables e R
— arising from intra-group purchases — REEEANHARIBEE 19,173 119,674
— arising from third purchases —REE=FEE 188,318 140,406
416,766 488,458
MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as

20.

BEZENE

RERENRE#)

RBEMR - REZBH2IINE HEMNR
AR ENRBEHRESITAOT -

follows:
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFT
(Restated)
(&=&751)
Within 1 month &AW 143,706 211,316
2 to 3 months 2ZE 3@ A 80,087 115,136
410 6 months 4E 6@ A 148,617 154,714
Over 6 months i e & A 44,356 7,292
416,766 488,458

The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing. Trade

BHRNFTARENRESTE -BEHE

payables are normally settled on terms of 30 to 180 days NRIEBE T 7:7\30;.:180 EI W%% iR ES
while bills payable are settled on a term of 90 to 180 days. BAIR 0 E 180 HAKE
Certain bills payable were secured by pledged deposits with ETRENZEHDERFRERR - AR
aggregate carrying amounts as listed below: HE{ESH T -
2018 2017
2018 2017 6
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Pledged deposits of the Group (note 19) AEBHE R TR AT 19) 92,935 181,861
As at 31 December 2017 and 2018, certain bills payables were R2017F K 2018F 12 A31H - BETENZERE

secured by corporate guarantees provided by independent

third parties.

MBI E=
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21. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS/ HitENREREFER &4

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 1f

2018 2017

2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
(Restated)

(ge&E5)

Other payables Ho At & 5 5R0R 70,232 42,602

Accruals fEstE R 56,099 20,363

Receipt in advance (Note a) TaW kI (Hfata) - 14,018

126,331 76,983

Contract liabilities (Note a) adaEMita) 17,967 -

Non-current portion: ERBEH -

Accruals (Note b) FEETER (Kitb) 6,029 4,033

Note: BieE -

a. Contract liabilities in relation to sales of finished goods were a. 20181 A1H  BEEHEEEKNBNAEHNEE
previously included in receipts in advance of approximately BAFTATEYGRIELN AR 14,018,000 7T ©
RMB14,018,000 as at 1 January 2018.

b.  The non-current portion of accruals represented the deferred b. EFEAFERHBOEEN 1 FLULERNE
rent-free period benefits to be recognized over 1 year. ERIEERES -

Other payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing and are HthERNREREAFERARESRABTE AR

normally repayable on demand. ERER -

The entire amount of contract liabilities at 1 January 2018 is 201851 A1 BN EHENABANKEE

all recognised as revenue during current year. RN -

158 MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER/A
RELATED COMPANY

The amount due to a shareholder and a related company are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

23. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

22, FE{TIRER BAE

FEA B R KBRS 2 )R
ARBERER -

23. sTERITER

RNAEFIE

HAEEA - 28Kk

2018 2017
20185 0175
Effective Effective
interest interest
Rate Maturity RMB'000 rate Maturity RMB'000
ERFIE 0 ARETR BIRAE I ARETR
Current — secured - EEE
Bank loans RITER 2.7%-65%  Ondemand 107,197 21%-65%  Ondemand 80,695
Bank loans RITER 4.3%-5.8% 2019 35,000 4,69%-4.7% 2018 35000
2019% 20185
Factoring loans with recourse MERENREER - - - 33%-3.7% 2018 33,964
20184
142,197 149,659
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T
Analysed into: DITRATEE -
Bank borrowings repayable R—FARIRERKEED
within one year or on demand RITE 142,197 149,659
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

(Continued)

Notes:

()

(b)

Certain of the Group's secured bank loans are secured by:

(i)

(iff)

pledges of certain parcels of land and buildings which
were provided by Morris PRC as at 31 December 2018 and
2017;

personal guarantees provided by the Controlling
Shareholders as at 31 December 2018 and 2017;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris PRC as at 31
December 2018;

corporate guarantees provided by Morris Real Estate, a
company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders as at
31 December 2018;

corporate guarantees provided by independent third
parties as at 31 December 2018 and 2017; and

pledges of certain properties which were provided by
Morris Real Estate, a company controlled by the
Controlling Shareholders as at 31 December 2018 and
2017.

23.

(@ AEENETERERRITEFATISAEER
e

() F2018F K2017F 128310 UERH
B LA E T8 i R S EIR IR

(ii) TRRAR R 2018 F 2 2017 F 12 A31 AR
HEEAER

S5 R E R
IR

(iif) A20184 12 A31 BRI

TR AR T GIE A R R A E R 2018 F
12 A31 HIREARFER

(iv)

V) BN E=FR2018F K2017F12A31H
REHDEER &

LAY A% A% B3 6 ) A Rl R A M E 72 2018
FER2017F 12831 BIRIENE TUWEE
A o

(vi)

The Group's bank borrowings were denominated in the following (b) NEBRRITEIE NV SEAE -
currencies:

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®EF T AREFIT
RMB ARE 122,116 75,000
uss EM 13,492 62,061
HKS BT 6,589 12,598
142,197 149,659

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2017
20174
RMB'000
AR¥TT
At beginning of year F17] 2,790
Additional provision (note 7) REINEE (B at 7) 3,405
Amount utilized during the year FAEEBHANIEA (2,632)
Exchange realignment P FH#X 71)
At end of year FR 3,292
The Group provides one-year warranties to certain customers REBREFEPIEH—FNERRER
on its products, under which faulty products are repaired or o BN ERENERBESEESSERR -
replaced. The amount of the provision for the warranties is RIEBRESHEERIEEENEBTEBLES
estimated based on sales volumes and past experience of the KFPETHE NEBBEERNHER
level of repairs and returns. The estimation basis is reviewed X Wi /ER(EET -
on an ongoing basis and revised where appropriate.
Deferred tax assets EEREEE
Unrealised
profit Impairment
arising from losses on
intra-group inventories and
transactions receivables Total
EBRE 7ER
REBEEN EWREIE
REBRmF WEEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT AR®FT
At 1 January 2017 201741 A1 H 2,986 - 2,986
Charged to profit or loss B8k (1,045) - (1,045)
At 31 December 2017 2017412 A31H 1,941 - 1,941
Credited/(Charged) to profit or loss 5T A1E#8, (B Bz ) (270) 5,195 4,925
At 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H 1,671 5,195 6,866
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Deferred tax assets (Continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB20,688,000 (2017: RMB3,347,000) that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities

BEBEEE(Z)
AEEBRETREAMNFEEEEASARE
20,688,000 7T (20174 + AR ¥ 3,347,0007T) 7?
—E2RFAEE - ] AR AR R ERD S
Fle ERELBREHRBEEENNBAREE
BE—BREE - MERBEF®RB AT
LA ETRIEEE - W ERZEEEERE
ERRIEEE o

EEBEER

2017

20174

RMB'000

AR®EF T

At beginning of year F1] 3,880
(Credited)/Charged to profit or loss FR(GTABZ), BBk

during the year 5,062

At end of year FR 8,942

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between the PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, during the year ended 31 December 2018 the
applicable rate is 5%(2017:10%). The Group is therefore liable
for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Liability component of the Convertible loan  A[#AAE EFA & f

Derivative financial instruments TESMITA

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible
loan (the “Convertible Loan") agreement (the “Convertible
Loan Agreement’) with International Finance Corporation
(“IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the
Company agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the
right to convert all or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Loan into shares of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
Agreement). The outstanding principal of the Convertible
Loan bears interest at a rate of 1.25% per annum above 6
months HIBOR. Interest period of the Convertible Loan shall
be a period of six months in each case beginning on an
interest payment date and ending on the day immediately
before the next following interest payment date.

Unless previously converted, the Company shall repay 50% of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan
outstanding as at fourth anniversary of the date of the
Convertible Loan (the “First Repayment Instalment Date”).

Subject to any repayment to be made on the First Repayment
Instalment Date as set out above, the outstanding amount of
the non-converted portion of the Convertible Loan shall be
repaid on the fifth anniversary of the date of the Convertible
Loan (the “Maturity Date") together with a redemption
premium (the “Redemption Premium”) which is an amount
equal to 3.25% per annum of such portion of the principal
amount of the Convertible Loan to be repaid or prepaid in
respect of the period beginning on the date of the
disbursement and ending on the day immediately before the
date of repayment or prepayment. Any amount of the
Convertible Loan which is redeemed by the Company will
forthwith be cancelled.

2017
2017 4
RMB'000

AREET T

#5 :

20181 A5H » AR A EEEE AR ([E
BMemAa DRI —H A BEER( TR

R BE(AEBRERGRE] - BREZH
& BEEREeRAsRERERAAGRES
AN #8758 200,000,000/ T Y A IR B 3K o
BIfR & @ AR A EESRIRRRMD 2228 7T
BAIm R RER 2K D TR ERRE
BASHEEBRKARTRD (AIRETRKRE
KBS IELARE) - A RBREFREER
SREIRFFE125% (BRI NEAEBRITRH
HFB)FTE - RBEEBAT  AIRRERD
FEBHANEA  BNEBHEEEEZT—
@+ 2 BEIRT—H 1E -

S

BRERTEIIN  RARIABER T BEER
BEmIASE A ((BR2HEKA D)
R HAR B R 50% REHRE D o

S
g

BRI EXPREE R BE R A EL T E
R ABMEEFREREONREESEE
FIfERDEE ([EERE]) (R AL
ERZEFIERENK A A — A L HAEAS
TERSRENEFTN TR ERLSEEH
B EBFI2%NFESR) AR AR E R
FERAREER(RHA DER - AQF
RB O W AT 2 BEA) PR A B BOGR S BN R 8K ©
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26. CONVERTIBLE LOAN/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

26. TIARER FTEEMIE®)

The Convertible Loan recognised in the consolidated RAEBGAM BRI RERN A HRER
statement of financial position of the Group is bifurcated into DrRmEgEHs  BBEH S MITEE
two components for accounting purpose, namely the liability o RIS EAMAZE S BENNT ¢

component and the derivative component, and the
movements of these components during the reporting

period are as follows:

Derivative
Liability financial
component instrument Total
8By TEEMIA e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET R
As 1 January 2018 201851 H1H - - -
Issue of Convertible Loan i GIE = 136,702 29,490 166,192
Amortisation of liability component  FJ¥# I E R & &35
of the Convertible loan EapE s 15,077 - 15,077
Accrual interest B2 (4,361) - (4,361)
Fair value change NAEEE - (27,501) (27,501)
Loss on remeasurement of liability ~ E#st E B EZH Y
component 518 24,609 - 24,609
Exchange difference b =% 9,345 532 9,877
At 31 December 2018 2018612 431 H 181,372 2,521 183,893

* During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had
suspended from trading the shares, as a result the convertible
loan become repayable on demand of the holder due to breach
of cross default term in the convertible loan agreement. The
outstanding principal amount of the convertible loan was
reclassified to current liabilities and remeasured to the amount
repayable on demand plus redemption premium.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. BA
2018 2017
2018 F 20175
US$’000 RMB’000 Us$'000 RMB'000
En AR¥TR TET ARETR
Equivalent equivalent
£E %A
Authorised: SERE
10,000,000,000 ordinary 10,000,000,000 %z &R EE
shares of US$0.001 each 0001 ETH LB
(2017:10,000,000,000, ordinary (2017 £ : 10,000,000,000 A%
shares of US$0.001 each) BREE00013ETT
BB ) 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
1,000,000,000 ordinary 1,000,000,000 A& 5 AX I (&
shares of US$0.001 each 0001 ETTH LB
(2017: 1,000,000,000 ordinary (20174 : 1,000,000,000 %
shares of US50.001 each) BREE00013ETT
f 5 mAR) 1,000 6,914 1,000 6914

The movements in the Company's issued share capital during
the year are as follows:

RRATRAFEERN D EITRAZESMT

Number of
ordinary shares Issued
inissue capital

ERITEBER
B ERITER
Notes RMB'000
Kt AREFT

At 1 January 2017 and R201741 A1 H K20184
at 31 December 2018 12H31H 1,000,000,000 6,914
ANNUAL REZ%T;?%; 165



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the
Cayman Islands, share premium of the Company is
available for paying distributions and dividends to
shareholders subject to the provisions of its
Memorandum and Articles of Association and provided
that immediately following the distributions or
dividend payments, the Company is able to pay its
debts as

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries
with functional currencies other than RMB.

Reserve funds

The transfers from retained profits to the reserve funds
were made in accordance with the relevant PRC rules
and regulations and the articles of association of the
Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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29. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

. BERBMELENAEHR

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities: MEEHFIESENBEES -
2018 20184
Interest-
bearing
Convertible bank
loan borrowings Total
ARBRER FFEBTER HEt
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥T AR¥T R
At beginning of the year FH - 149,659 149,659
New bank borrowings made FEREEBFTEIRITER
during the year - 354,287 354,287
Issue of Convertible loan BRI E R 166,192 - 166,192
Interest charged FTiUs B A& 15,077 9,793 24,870
Derivative portion PTHETEE S (29,490) - (29,490)
Loss on remeasurement of EFTEEEBsMNEE
liability component 24,609 - 24,609
Repayment during the year FRER - (362,814) (362,814)
Interest paid and payable BT R ERFE (4,361) (9,793) (14,154)
Exchange realignment P& H A 9,345 1,065 10,410
At end of the year FR 181,372 142,197 323,569
2017 20174
Interest-
bearing
bank
borrowings Total
FTRBRITER HET
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®ET T AR®ET T
At beginning of the year FH] 277,183 277,183
New bank borrowings made FARELEBFTIRITER
during the year 579,609 579,609
Repayment during the year FERNIER (704,116) (704,116)
Exchange realignment b H A& (3,017) (3,017)
At end of the year FR 149,659 149,659
ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30. AREE

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities AREBRAREH R EEFREASLAGRE -
as at the end of the reporting period.

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS — AS 31. KREHELZHE —EAFRBAA
LESSEE

The Group leases an office property, showrooms and factory AEERBECEHELHHEERAYME B
premises under operating lease arrangements. The leases for BEBE - ZEWMENHER I Z10FHE
these properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to TER ° (20179 1 2E10%F) »

10 years. (2017: 2 to 10 years)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future minimum R2018F 12 A31 8B » KEBIRIE T HUEEE
lease payments during under non-cancellable operating BHAMERTY RS MR RERE
leases falling due as follows: RFBEEIAT -
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AR¥TT
(Restated)
(L &E751)
Within one year —FR 42,826 30,684
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FEERF  DEEEMTF 126,460 77,491
Over five years BRAF 79,980 37,683
249,266 145,858
32. COMMITMENTS 32. EIE
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in B Pl fisr3 1 st AR ERIEI  KAE
note 31 above, the Group had the following capital E RN REHI R LA T & A RIE -

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 £
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T AR¥ETT

Contracted, but not provided for: BRTH B KRB
Buildings Y - 712
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(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (a) B BHEREMIBOFMRNZZI - K
the financial statements, the Group had the following EENAFEEBEFETINTERR
significant transactions with related parties during the UE
year:
2017
2017 4
RMB'000
AR®ET T
(Restated)
(reE75)
Morris PRC BB
Purchases of electricity BESE 794
Rental expenses (note 1) MeM= (HaF1) 11,733
Compensation on factory relocation W= B (E -

Jennifer Convertibles Inc.

Jennifer Convertibles Inc.

Sales of finished goods (note 1, 2) HERKm (Mt 2) 27,009

The above related parties are companies controlled by FBEESYARIERKREZEH A

the Controlling Shareholders. The transactions were Bl o ZER S IIIRERBET A B E

conducted on terms and conditions mutually agreed TE BRI NG AT o

between the relevant parties.

Note: W&t -

1. These related party transactions also constitute non- 1. ZEMEARDIEK FTRAE 14AE
exempt continuing connected transactions as defined EENTERRHERERS -
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

2. The Group completed the acquisition of Jennifer 2. &£ B R2018F8A31H T K K B
Convertibles Inc. on 31 August 2018. Jennifer Convertibles Jennifer Convertibles Inc. ° 18 #& =718 81| 88
Inc. ceased to be a connected party to the Group under 14AE - Jennifer Convertibles Inc. T~ 53 A& 7K
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The amount represents SENEET - BRAZIEERZ 201848
the transaction with Jennifer Convertibles Inc. up to 31 A 31 B £ Jennifer Convertibles Inc. 3 77 89
August 2018. Please refer to note 39 for the details of the X5 BEAKEBEENGES S22
acquisition. iF39°
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) TEBEFTEEHEAESNEMH
of the Group
2017
20174
RMB'000
AREFTT
Fees we 2,861
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #& ~ L N EWEF] 3,143
Discretionary bonuses BETEAL 1,256
Pension scheme contributions RORETEIHE K 145
Total compensation paid to key XNTEFEEEAENE
management personnel “B=E 7,405
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in EEMWEE—PHBER S HREN
note 8 to the financial statements. 8o
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial LR T ENREERNERESY 0T :
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
2018 2018 F
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables
BRI ERIE
2017
20174
RMB'000
AREF T
(Restated)
(#eE5))
Trade and bills receivables B Z W FRIE & RN R 372,117
Financial assets included in prepayments, T ATETFIE - 124 R H Aty
deposits and other receivables EWFIBERN S RMEE 71,165
Pledged deposits [REEELTERN 182,847
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 27,351
653,480

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT



For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Financial liabilities

TREE

Financial liabilities at
amortised cost

BRERATENEREE

2017

20176

RMB'000

AR®ET T

(Restated)

(FeE5)

Trade and bills payables B RNTIERENEER 488,458
Financial liabilities included in StAEMENFIE M ERTE R

other payables and accruals NERAaRE 62,965

Amount due to a related party JE 1 BB 75 BIR -

Amount due to a shareholder G 9,801

Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMTA -

Convertible loan AR E R -

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHEERITIER 149,659

710,883

Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognized in their entirety

(@)

At 31 December 2018, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China to
certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers. In the opinion of the
directors, the Group has retained the substantial risks
and rewards, which include default risks of certain
issuing banks after the endorsement, and accordingly,
the Group continued to recognise the full carrying
amounts of the endorsed bills receivable from such
issuing banks (the “Endorsed Bills") and the associated
trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
endorsement, the Group did not retain any rights on
the use of the Endorsed Bills, including the sale, transfer
or pledge of the Endorsed Bills to any other third
parties. As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate
carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills were
RMB3,365,000 (2017: RMB4,842,000).

ARZRIBANCEZISHEE

(a)

R2018F 128318 AEEEEHEH
N IRITEANE TRKEESE TS
THpER  WEERNZEHERNE
SENFIE - EERE  A5BEERE
BABOER KB HABESER
ATBTRITHEORR - BAEEF
BREAZEZHTRTHEREERE
([BEEEE ) REEEEENE SEN
FIEHEIEEE - REEE - KEE
TERBAMEASEZBENERN 2
FEEEMEMFE=FHE @ KF
EEZE o RN2018F12A318 BE
EEMNEREEARE A AR 3365000
TG © (201749 + AR#4,842,0007T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Transferred financial assets that are not
derecognized in their entirety (Continued)

(b)  As part of its normal business, the Group entered into
trade receivable factoring arrangements (the
“Factoring Arrangements’) with recourse and
transferred certain trade receivables to banks. Under
the Factoring Arrangements, the Group was exposed
to the default risk of the trade debtors after the transfer.
The aggregate carrying amount of the trade receivables
transferred under the Factoring Arrangements that has
not been settled and continued to be recognised by
the Group as at 31 December 2018 was Nil (2017
RMB33,964,000).

At 31 December 2018, the Group discounted and endorsed
certain bills receivable accepted by banks in Mainland China
(the "Derecognised Bills") to certain banks in order to
obtain additional financing or certain of its suppliers in order
to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with
carrying amount in aggregate of RMB141,953,000 (2017:
RMB117,327,000). The Derecognised Bills had a maturity of
one to six months (2017: one to six months) at 31 December
2018. In accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Bills have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). The Derecognised Bills were
honoured by reputable banks in the PRC, such as China
Merchants Bank, Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
and other reputable banks rating at AAA by national credit
rating agencies. In the opinion of the directors, these banks
have good reputation and credit quality, and the risk of
default of these bills receivable on maturity is remote, and
therefore, the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards relating to the Derecognised Bills since after the
transfer the Group’s exposure to the variability in the
amounts of the net cash flows of the transferred asset is not
significant. Accordingly, it has derecognised the full carrying
amounts of the Derecognised Bills and the associated
liabilities. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group's
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognised Bills and the
undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these Derecognised
Bills is equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognised Bills are not significant.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

AZERUEBANCERSHEE ()

b) EAEEREBN—BD  AEEEF
VHEBERENE SHEWRGBRELH
([MREZH])  BETEZRKGIESE
ETFRIT - BEBRELH  NREBAT
REZEESEBHANELNRR - R
2018F12A831H AEBEERAR
W%i%ﬂit@r“ﬁﬁrﬁfk/aLamféf%m&
REMNETMEREAST - (20017F : A
R #33,964,0007T) °

M2018F 12 318 - AEERE FRITHE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has not
recognised any gain or loss on the date of transfer of the
Derecognised Bills. No gains or losses were recognised from
the Continuing Involvement, both during the year or
cumulatively. The discounting and endorsement has been
made evenly throughout the year.

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments reasonably approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings and
amounts due from/to related parties approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly to
the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

During the year, there was no transfer of fair value
measurement between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfer
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial
liabilities (2017: Nil).

HE218F 1231 HILFE » REEI &R
RN EREBEREZEANEMER - X
FRKEERE TEBRRKEEESEN
B  REREELMREEE -

AEESRTAMNERERARBEEHARE
BIEHEA -

EEECDHERELREEFEY  DHERT
R BHRYGRIAREWERERE - 5t ATEMRK
B ReREMEYENEREE  BEH
JERRIA N BN RE - sT AEMBENFRIAR
B ERNESREBE  fFRRITERNNH
B MW, AR SRIBER Q A ERE
RHERS  TEARZETLANIIHAR

2 ©

AREEE TR BRLETENE R E B K
BERERIANAREAESEBRELIE
FebXREBKERAEFEMEEER -
REREAH  CEREBBEOTERITA

B MECHARMBGEEH LML -

TREENABENANENBRR ST (E
FERNEERINEMRXZPZTANAIR
LA -

FRAEHMEENEREABEF 1RNFB2H AR
Btz M EeEs - rEeE As#E HE IR
BYISI (20175 « ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Level 1 to 3 based on
the degree to which the fair value is observable.

—  Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets or liabilities.

—  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

—  Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset
or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

TEREHREBVERREZANEFELR
BAAENABREEDERZ 1 23MNE
BIEDH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A IR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 HILFE

36. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

36. TRILEAEMAAREBERARERR®)

BAREFENEREEREE

Financial asset and liabilities measured at fair value

2018
2018 F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E1R E24R £33 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRT AR%TR

AR®TRT AR%TR

Assets BE
Contingent consideration  FEU S AR (B
receivables - - 226,318 226,318
Liabilities aE
Derivative financial PTEEmMTA
instruments - - 2,521 2,521
Fair value of financial liabilities that are not measured at fair WIkEAREFE(EBEEEAARERE)N
value (but fair value disclosure are required): cHMEBEANE
2018
2018 F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F14 FE28 EI3M #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AR®BTR

ARBTRT AR®TR

Convertible loan

149,559

149,559
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair value of the contingent consideration relating to the
acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. is determined based
on the expected payment, discounted to present value using

EREIRLAAETENESR

A B3 UL B8 Jennifer Convertibles Inc. B 3k A X (B
NAETYE ARk TR L3R K 2,509 1§ TE B
HELRERAEBEE o

a risk-adjusted discount rate of 2.52%.

The fair value of contingent consideration is determined by S AREBRANETIRBIL IS ERARIEFT
an independent external valuer based on the latest financial WM B A R M ST S TE B R E b iE R &
forecast of the acquired subsidiaries and other relevant BEFE -

information.

FARFEIRASNEFTEERNESHIAT ¢

The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 fair
value measurement is as follows:

Contingent consideration KRB

At 1 January ®n1A1H

Fair value change on contingent consideration KAREBALEES)
Acquisition of subsidiary L B B B 2 B
Exchange realignment [ 54, 3 #=&

At 31 December ®W12H31H

The fair value change on contingent consideration is
included in “Other income and gains” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for asset held at the end of reporting period.

ARBERRMITEEMS - AARELIR
Bt AGEEa MEMEEMKRERATH
YA R M zs | A o
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Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the fair value of derivative financial
instruments of approximately RMB2,521,000. The fair value of
derivative and liability component of convertible loan was
valued by an independent valuer. It was calculated by
discounting the future cashflow at market rate and including
some unobservable inputs. See note 26 for the detailed
information and the movement of the fair value of derivative
financial instruments.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the
key inputs to the valuation of derivative financial instruments:

BRFIMAARBEHEBNER (B)

R2018F12HA31H  ITESRTAEARELD
AARM®E2521,0007T c AT ERITERE
B AR ERBYGEMGE HES
BTG M ERETAZ D A B A SRR
BARREREFTE - EETESHR T AN

HBERAREZE  HL2HME26 -

AT B 074 & Bt T B (R E P B E BT &
TERARE

Significant
Valuation unobservable
technique inputs

fhERKN BEATTEEHARE

Derivative financial Instruments and Discounted Risk-free rate
Convertible loan cash flow method

TESRTARABRRKRER AR MEE 2% a8 i 1) =

Volatility

R IE

Discount rate

AhIR %

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank borrowings, cash and cash equivalents and
pledged deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade and bills receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The directors review and agree policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarized
below.

AEENTESR T ABEBRITER
RBeMHeFEYRSERETENR  ZF2/
TENFTEENRAAEENEESESR
T ARBEZRERAHEKEEELEW
HheMEERAG  MEZRUIANE
WEBIA K E 5 AR M ENRE -

AEEsRIAEEANTIZARANMEME
@ SMERR - EERRLRESE SRR -
EFERTAEEEESHARNEE - A
BRI
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
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Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk exposure refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of the Group's bank loans will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. As at 31
December 2018, if interest rates at that date had been 10
basis points higher with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 would have
been RMB81,000 (2017: RMB55,000) and RMB40,000 (2017:
RMB25,000) higher arising as a result of a decrease in the fair
value of fixed and floating rate bank loans respectively. If
interest rates at that date had been 10 basis points lower with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have been RMB81,000 (2017:
RMB55,000) and RMB40,000 (2017: RMB25,000) lower arising
as a result of an increase in the fair value of fixed and floating
rate bank loans respectively.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk means the risk on the fluctuation of fair
value or future cash flows of financial instruments which
arose from changes in exchange rates.

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales or purchases by operating units in
currencies other than the units’ functional currencies.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the exchange rates of
currencies other than the functional currencies of the
relevant operating units, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in
the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities). There is no
material impact on other components of the Group's equity.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBRAR AR

= =3 b
FEEBIEAEEBITERNRALEREKR
REMEPFETISH RS S MBE SRR
R2018F 12 A31 8 A & EMHIET
FBRBEAT  WZAFES T I0EREER - &
E8FNRANBLEFEN G AEARE
81,0007T (20174 : AR¥E550007T) R AR
40,000 7T (2017 F = AR®250007T) * IR
BEMFEFNEBITERNAALETEMS
BIBFTIEM - EFA A MBS TERNIF
ST M B ERFEI0ERES - FZ=2018
F12A3BIEFEMNENAARES1,0007T
(20174 + AER#550007T) & A R#E 40,000 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

2018
If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against USS

2017
If RMB weakens against US$
If RMB strengthens against USS

Credit risk

2018 F
M AR HETHE
M ARBHETHE
2017 F
M ARBHETEE
M AR HETHE

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from bank balances
and deposits, trade receivables, deposit and other receivables.
The carrying amounts of these balances represent the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

financial assets.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable
banks. The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the
past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash at bank is
assessed to be close to zero and no provision was made as of

31 December 2018

IMNERBE (E)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
In exchange in profit
Rates before tax
EREH A FREL AR R

() (G2
% RMB'000
% AR®ET T
5 9,388
(5) (9,388)
ERAR

REBHEERRTIEXRARTEL LT
B SRR IE e R EAEURIA -
&#%%M%@ﬁﬂﬁ%lﬁiﬂﬁ&%%
HEAEER

REERNETHREFTE  EERRERA
HEE REAAHFHIIEERITART
REHFHBEWEEDN - AL RITRS
WA EEBBXET RO TS - HH 2018
F12 431 HIWEEHREE -
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Credit risk (Continued)

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime expected credit loss for all trade
receivables and general model provision for all deposits and
other receivables. To measure the expected credit losses by
applied simplified approach, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
Group has performed historical analysis and identified the
key economic variables impacting credit risk and expected
credit loss. For the deposits and other receivables, the Group
assessed the expected loss rate by applying general model.
The expected credit loss rate under general model was
determined by referencing of the market credit rating data
and the probability of default rate. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables that are
individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background
and reputation of the customers, historical settlement records
and past experience.

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from individual
customers in relation to manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa
covers and other furniture products and are transacted in
cash or credit. The Group’s trade receivables arise from
manufacture and sales of sofa, sofa covers. As at the end of
the year, the top five debtors and the largest debtor
accounted for approximately of 67.7% and 27.0% (2017:
85.8% and 60.5%) of the Group's trade receivables balance. In
view of the history of business dealings with the debtors and
the sound collection history of the receivables due from
them, management believes that there is no material credit
risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding receivable balance
due from these debtors saved for the debtor related to the
impaired trade receivable disclosed in the below.
Management makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based on
historical payment records, the length of overdue period, the
financial strength of the debtors and whether there are any
disputes with the debtors.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade receivables are due within 30 to 120 days from the date
of billing.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group's different customer bases.

Provision of ECL on trade receivables

On that basis, the provision of trade receivables as at 31
December 2018 and 1 January 2018 (on adoption of IFRS 9)
was determined as follows:

Expected credit loss rate BHEEEEX

Gross carrying amount FREAE
(RMB'000) (AREBTT)

— Trade receivables — B S EWEIE
Provision for life time ECL 2 HIFEE = EEIE
e

EERK (&)

AEEHMETERA —TLENEENT
F#TEENME - ZE5THEIREF I
NERMBTELERERANINEN  IEE
FRREPREFPEEMELBERERBNY
EER - BEFEBGIBEBREZHBREIT0E
120 HAEIHER -

AEEZESN2HEREEB RN S ET
EBSRUFENERER EHSBEER
BEREAE ARARENBEREEEIR
KRIEBRTRATEFPDHMHNEREAFE
RER  HREBEBHERSDWEBEREL
BRAEETNREFPERIEE—FRERD

BRI EA B ERE

Rz EAE S R2018%F12 A31H KX 2018451 A
1B (RABR RS EREIRR)NES
FEM R IBRBEETIT
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Credit risk (Continued)

Provision of ECL on trade receivables (Continued)

1 January 2018

20181 A1H
Expected credit loss rate TEHEEEEX
Gross carrying amount FREAE
(RMB'000) (ARETFTT)
— Trade receivables — B HEINRIE
Provision for life time ECL FHIEHEREFE
B

EERE(E)
BN RFASEEERRE(E)
More than
1 day
But less More than
than1 year 1 year
No past due past due past due Total
BLERER B
1H BLER
RNEH  BLRIF HaiE 1 F Bt
0.04% 1.12% 100%
342,179 25,059 92 367,330
(147) (280) (92) (519)

The provision of ECL for trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 reconciles to the opening provision on 1 January 2018
and to closing provision as at 31 December 2018 was as
follows:

R2017F 12 A3 BN E ZFEWZEEREE
BB 20189 1 A 1 BAYERFIBHE 12 2018
F12 A3 BNHKRBENEERDOT ¢

RMB'000

ARETT

As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12H31H 92
Adjustment — initial application of HKFRS 9 B — BRERATEMBmELERFE R 427
As at 1 January 2018 F2018F 1 A1 H 519
Provision for the year FEREE 1,826
Written off for the year FEMH (92)
As at 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H 2,253
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Credit risk (Continued)

Provision of ECL on Deposits and other receivables

The provision for deposits and other receivables as at 31
December 2017 reconciles to the opening provision on 1

January 2018 and to closing provision as at 31 December
2018 was as follows:

FERRE(#)
BRERAMERN BRI EEEGRER

2017912 A 31 B iR X H b fE Uk 5108 #
HBEL20184F 1 A1 B &Y HY ¥ 4 #55 K2 2018 4F 12
A31 BMERBENEEREDT -

RMB'000

AR¥TT
As at 31 December 2017 R2017F12 A31 H -
Adjustment — initial application of HKFRS 9 AR — BRERATBMBRELERE R 66
As at 1 January 2018 20181 H1H 66
Provision for the year FREEE 12
As at 31 December 2018 72018412 A31H 78

Deposit and other receivables

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long overdue
with significant amounts, known insolvencies or non-
response to collection activities, they are assessed individually
for impairment allowance. The Group recognised the
provision for expected credit losses by assessing the credit
risk characteristics of debtor, discount rate and the likelihood
of recovery and considering the prevailing economic
conditions.

Liquidity risk

The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial
policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to
maintain a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the
Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

B RAMERNE
HEEMBHNEARIE  CHENEBIKR
B Ol TEEH I ERARP A R E MU
IR SEEERERE - AEBE BT
HEHBANEERREE - BHR R R EH
AIREME I E B E A EEN IR - RBBHRE
BB

AEENBERASRFBENOMBEE - AR
FRRBREBEEERRDESCHLRNERESRE
=R EMERAREAR TR ETH
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates and based on rates at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date that the
Group could be required to repay:

REBESER(E)
TRFANAEEN S BB EN RS PR
TAEMNIBMBER  EDHRBEEHRURE S
mE (BRERAONERREREBROF
KHEMMB S ) RS B AT E SR A R
RERHMSLE

Within 1 year or on demand
R1EFERFIRER
2017
2017 &
RMB'000
ARETT
(Restated)
(&E5)

Trade and bills payables

Financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals

Amount due to a related company

B 5 RMNRIENENRE

FEAHE M IR M fEAH & A H
TRAE

e BRE R BIFIA

488,458

62,965

Amount due to a shareholder e R SRR
Derivative financial instruments TESRITA
Convertible loan AR E R

Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRARTTEK

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

9,801

149,659

710,883

E2ER
AEFELEENTEREZARBEALEEN
BELZE N URGEBRENESH R
AT H R -

AEBREBELSERENESIEREEBNAEE
RBEHE o BEIFAREARER - AKET]
RE¥RE TRAEMKREEL AR  MRER
BEERYEITHRMD - BLE2018F K 20174
NAJNBILFE BEEANBEZ  BERK
TP T S E) o



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is the
total interest-bearing bank borrowings divided by the total
equity. Total equity refers to equity attributable to owners of
the Company. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

Interest-bearing bank borrowings (note 23)

ESEE(H)
AEBNEERBLREREEN - AIGHE
RITE R AE DR - RS BEEXN
REVHAANEEERZ NEREHRNEE
BELEMT

2017

2017
RMB'000
AR®ET T
(Restated)
(K& E5))

SHEIRITER (M 23) 149,659

Equity attributable to owners of the Company ZN2 Bl A A JE(HHE RS 340,159

Gearing ratio

On 22 February 2019, the Group entered into an agreement
(the "Agreement’) with /&% B A & R | /B (Haining
Planning and Land Resources Administration*) for the
acquisition of the land use right for a parcel of land in
Haining, PRC for a total consideration of RMB26,550,000
which has been fully settled in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement.

Pursuant to the suspension in trading of shares since 28
March 2019, the carrying amount of liability component of
the convertible loan was adjusted to the principal amount
and the non-current liabilities portion of the loan was
reallocated to current liabilities in order to reflect such
continuance.

According to the circular of the Company dated 14 August
2018, the Company intends to pay the outstanding of
US$15million consideration in relation to the acquisition of
Jennifer Convertibles before the year ended 31 December
2019. However, due to the unfavorable cashflow conditions,
the Company aims to settle the remaining consideration of
USS$15 million after 31 December 2019, and in any event prior
to the second anniversary of 31 August 2018, being the
completion date of the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles.

BEERABLR

44.0%

7

MR2019F2A02H AEERBEAAER
MBI BT es ([imE]) - AER R
BE—REIHNIHERE  BREAAR
1% 26,550,000 7C * B AR E B RIEZ IR IEN
THEEE -

BRI HBE2019F3A2BEEEEE - 7]
BRREFRABEBINEAEEARELRS
B OMERERBDEEIDAEHS>EER
PEE URMEBEFELEEE -

BERATHEA2018F8 A 14B 8B K -
AR EREZE2019F 12 A31 BIEFERIH
W B Jennifer Convertibles 3z £+ i R X IR
15,000,0003E 7T ° AT * ARIREMEB AR
IR - RAE BIRAR2019F12 A31HIE
MAETAER TR 201848 A 31 B (BNFEAUR
B Jennifer Convertibles & B ) # 51 M # F Bl £
RAE B2 3K 15,000,000 F 7T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

On 5 January 2018, the Company entered into a convertible
loan (the "Convertible Loan") agreement (the “Convertible
Loan Agreement’) with International Finance Corporation
("IFC"), pursuant to which IFC agreed to lend, and the
Company agreed to borrow, the Convertible Loan in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000. IFC has the
right to convert all or any part of the outstanding principal
amount of the Convertible Loan into shares of the Company
at an initial conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share
(subject to adjustments as set out in the Convertible Loan
Agreement). On the assumption that the Convertible Loan
would be converted into conversion shares in full at the
conversion price of HK$2.22 per conversion share, the
aggregate principal amount of the Convertible Loan of
HK$200,000,000 is convertible into approximately 90,090,090
conversion shares, which represent approximately 9.01% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2017 and approximately 8.26% of the issued share capital of
the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
conversion shares.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
entered into the sale and purchase agreement with Morris
Group Co., Ltd. which is. owned as to 85% by Mr. Zou and
15% by Ms. Wu. Mr. Zou, the chairman, the chief executive
officer and an executive Director of the Company, and Ms.
Wu, the spouse of Mr. Zou, are each a controlling Shareholder
and are therefore each a connected person of the Company
Upon the completion of which Group will have acquired
100% interest in Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. The consideration
for the acquisition is to be satisfied by the payment of
USS$35million by instalment. The acquisition was completed
on 31 August 2018. The Group has applied the merger
accounting method in accordance with the Accounting
Guideline 5 “Merger Accounting for Common Control
Combinations” issued by the HKICPA in the preparation of
financial statements. The comparative amounts have been
restated accordingly as if the business of the Company had
always been carried out by the Group.

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBRAR AR

H2018F 1 A5H « AR A EEE AR ([E
BeEmMAR DI LA BmBRER(TRRE
R pZ((TRBRERBE]) - Bt - BB
ECRAFREREMARRREBALSE
%8 /200,000,000 ST AJ IR E K - BB &
BAR AR RRERNE BRI
REEBRSBIRVIAEIRETRERARGK 222
B (AR MR E R B RS ETHE) &
BMARDNFIRG o BE AR EFRIGRE R
EGRERR MO 22B T REERAEBRR
- AR E AR £ 48 FF 200,000,000% 7T A
B4t 5 44 90,090,090 iR B HA NG 15 - FEE H 2017
F12A3NBARRASEITIRAELI001% A K&
ARNPERR B RBITEBRHIEANBE ZT
A& A4 8.26% ©

BHE218F12A31BIEFE - ARFERERA
SEERAG(APLERSZEIDRES
85% K 15% )R LB B ek o FALE(K
RAERF TRBHEWITES) KBL L
(BEREDRB) I AIERKE  BtEEA
RARMBEEAL - BAE - NEEBKE
Jennifer Convertibles, Inc. 89 100% #£#5  Ux &=
BEREZES X M3sEEETEN - W
EIFR2018F A3 HENK - AEB R HE
BEBRRNEEREEESTMASEMANE
HRCEIE VARSI 0= o
ERAGHEN LA LREWE THEE
A WA RAEBE —ERASBRLE o



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The effects of the application of merger accounting on the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December

2017 are as follows:

fERaBtEs
B4R A B

EEEZE2017F 12 A3 BIESF
FEMEEBZROZENT -

For the year
ended Adjustment For the year
31 December for the ended
2017as combination 31 December
previously  using merger 2017 as
reported accounting restated
BZE20175F BZ2017F
12A31H A& 6 12A31H
LLFE R E6 LLFE
(RREEM) DIBRAY AR (RRE7H)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AR¥ETTT ARBTTT
Revenue WA 1,199,714 216,681 1,416,395
Cost of sales B & P AR (826,008) (111,856) (937,864)
Gross profit EF 373,706 104,825 478,531
Other income and gains E A RS 13,399 23,550 36,949
Selling and distribution expenses  $H%& & 5 XX (102,331) (112,955) (215,286)
Administrative expenses ITHHAX (72,251) (29/432) (101,683)
Other expenses and losses HEmmsr MEE (2,797) M (2,798)
Finance costs B & AN (11,670) - (11,670)
Profit before tax RR % A1 5 A 198,056 (14,013) 184,043
Income tax expense FTiSHiFE 2 (38,201) (147) (38,348)
Profit for the year F R F 159,855 (14,160) 145,695
Other comprehensive income/(loss)E fth 2 E Y 25, (E518 )
Other comprehensive income/ A E 1% BRI AT sE & #
(loss) may be reclassified DEEEEAEM
to profit or loss in subsequent 2EWE(E8)
periods:
Exchange differences on R E BRIk B X,
translation of financial =5
statements (11,356) 2,253 (9,103)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Total comprehensiveincome FREHENEEHEEE
for the year

Profit attributable to owners of  ARAGIHEHR AFENEHF
the Company

Total comprehensive income RARHEBAEIEEE
attributable to owners of & ek

the Company

Earnings per share attributable Z< 2 7% @R

to ordinary equity holders BEAELREBRER
of the Company
Basic and diluted (RMB cents) ERREE(ARESD)

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBRAR AR

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
previously
reported
BZE20175F
12A31H
IEFE
(BREZH)
RMB'000
ARETT

148,499

159,855

148,499

16.11

Adjustment
for the
combination
using merger
accounting

FE & B
gitRa s
FIRREO A

RMB'000
AREET T

(11,907)

(14,160)

(11,907)

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
restated
BZ2017F
12A31H
LEE
(#RE7)
RMB’000
AR®ET T

136,592

145,695

136,592

14.68



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The effect of the application of merger accounting on the
consolidated statement of financial position are as follows:

Non-current Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current Assets

Inventories

Trade and bills receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Current Liabilities

Trade and bills payables

Other payables and accruals
Amount due to a shareholder
Interest-bearing bank borrowings
Warranty provision

Income tax payables

Total current liabilities

Net current assets

HRBEE

E R
BN LB ERIA
EEHAERE

FREBEERE

RBEE

TE

B 5 MR K R E &
BNFIE - e M EA
JEH R TE

R BEEEZ

Be MEEEHEY

MEVE EARE

RBRE

8P RNRIARENRE
Hib BB M ERH B
FE AR FK0R

AT BERTTIERR

RIS

FERS PS5

mBE ERER

RBEEFE

ERAMEHEESEEMBIRRNTEN

T~

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
previously
reported
BZ2017%
12A31H
IHFE
(RREEE2W)
RMB'000
AR¥TTT

57,638
7,054
1,941

66,633

343,289
389,002

88,844
181,861
26,241

1,029,237

438,206
51,497

149,659
3,292
61,520
704,174

325,063

Adjustment
for the
combination
using merger
accounting

FERE Bt
gitaa st
FIRREY AR

RMB'000
AREET T

1,764

1,764

34,727
(16,885)

50,252
25,486
9,801

85,539

(40,326)

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
restated
BZ2017F
12A31H
LHFE
(#RE7)
RMB'000
AR¥TT

59,402
7,054
1,941

68,397

378,016
372,117

114,119
182,847
27,351

1,074,450

488,458
76,983
9,801
149,659
3,292
61,520

789,713

284,737
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Total assets less current
liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Accruals

Total non-current liabilities

Net assets

Equity

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

Share capital

Reserves

Total equity

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED

REEBRAR AR

BEERERNRBER
FRBEE
EEHARE
fEFTE
FREEEER
BEFE

R
RRBEE ARG ES
[N

Gl

RSB

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
previously
reported
BZE20175F
12A31H
IEFE
(BREZH)
RMB'000
ARETTT

391,696

8,942

8,942

382,754

6,914
375,840

382,754

Adjustment
for the
combination
using merger
accounting

e & B
giRa o
FIRRE A

RMB'000
AREET T

(38,562)

4,033
4,033

(42,595)

(42,595)

(42,595)

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
restated
BZE2017F
12A31H
LHEE
(&E5)
RMB’000
AR®ET T

353,134

8,942
4,033

12,975

340,159

6,914
333,245

340,159



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The effects of the application of merger accounting on the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31
December 2017 are summarised below:

Net cash flows (used in)/generated £ & & & (FrA) Fif5

from operating activities MEemEFHE

Net cash flows generated from "EEEFEE®
investing activities mEFE

Net cash flows used in ME SRR
financing activities MEFRE

Net decrease in cash and ReRRESFEY
cash equivalents TR

Cash and cash equivalents at FUBReRBESEEYD

beginning of year
Effect of foreign exchange
rate changes, net

HNESE RS BRI E -
HER

Cash and cash equivalents FRBENESZEY

at end of year

JERAMEEAHEZ20177F 12 A3 HIESF
BHRARERERNTERMAOT

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
previously
reported
BZ2017F
12H31H
IHFE
(RREE2W)
RMB'000
AR¥TTT

(3,925)
20,454

(60,686)

(44,157)
73,647

(3,249)

26,241

Adjustment
for the
combination
using merger
accounting

P& & B
gitaa st
SIRRHO A

RMB'000
AREET T
15,324

54

(9,683)

5,965
3,854

(8,439)

For the year
ended

31 December
2017 as
restated
BZ2017F
12A31H
LHFE
(RE7)
RMB'000
AREFTT

11,399
20,508

(70,369)

(38,462)

77,501

(11,688)

27,351
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Information about the statement of financial position of the BEARATRRERROTBRAAROER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: mr
2017
2017 4F
RMB'000
AREFTT
(Restated)
(#eE75)
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KB R ERRE 1
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables SEENE IE& ﬁﬂJﬂ%Z RIE 3,847
Amount due from subsidiaries FE UL BT /8B A R 5K IE 217,850
Cash and cash equivalents iﬁ@&ﬁ@%%% 146
Total current assets mBEERE 221,843
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals Hi R 3 IE&%”r%ﬁH 205
Amount due to related companies Fﬁﬁfﬂp IR -
Interest-bearing bank borrowings aJr,DﬁETﬂE. = -
Derivative financial instruments PTEESHMTA -
Convertible loan AR E R -
Total current liabilities MENE BEEE 205
Net current (liabilities)/assets wE (B EEFE 221,638
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABASG 221,639
Net assets BEFE 221,639
Equity =
Share capital % A 6,914
Reserves (note) & (K aE) 214,725
Total equity M ABEE 221,639

MORRIS HOLDINGS UM\TED
RARERBR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HZE2018F 12831 HILFE

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 40. KR TR AK &)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: ffat -
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: ARRIFEFEERT -
Retained
Exchange earnings/
Share fluctuation  (accumulated
Premium reserve losses) Total
ERRE BEEF,
R EE *E (REHEE) @st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(5&=5) (F&E5)
At 31 December 2016 and M20165%F 12 A31 B R
1 January 2017 20171 A1 H - (314) 98,050 97,736
Profit for the year Eaapivil - - 61,835 61,835
Other comprehensive loss FRNEMPEERE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on AR EIRER Y
translation of financial &N ERE
statements - (13,424) - (13,424)
Total comprehensive income FREEPEHBEE
for the year - (13,424) 61,835 48411
Issue of shares pursuant to the BIEARE LT’
listing of the Company 232,314 - - 232314
Capitalised issue of shares BEREBITIRGD (5,185) - - (5,185)
Expenses incurred in connection  ERE$TTHIAR (0B BAE L
with issue if new shares BB 2 (15,229) - - (15,229)
Dividends paid BRE - - (143,322) (143,322)
At 31 December 2017 M2017%12A31H 211,900 (13,738) 16,563 214,725
Loss for the year FAEE - - (36,812) (36,812)
Other comprehensive loss FREMEMEEIS :
for the year:
Exchange differences on ME B R KK
translation of financial X Z5E
statements - 7,597 - 7,597
Total comprehensive loss FREMEEIBEE
for the year - 7,597 (36,812) (29,215)
Dividends paid ERRE (47,487) - - (47,487)
At 31 December 2018 2018512 A31H 164,413 (6,141) (20,249) 138,023
ANNUAL REZ%T;%S%E —I 93




For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

During the course of the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018, the Company discovered that the Statement
of Financial Position of the Company as at 31 December 2017
and the summary of the Company’s reserves for the year then
ended as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2017 contain clerical errors, as follows:

—  the amount due from subsidiaries as at 31 December
2017 was erroneously disclosed as RMB322,702,000,
instead of RMB217,850,000;

—  the reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2017
was erroneously disclosed as RMB319,577,000, instead
of RMB214,725,000; and

— the profit and total comprehensive income of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017 were
erroneously disclosed as RMB166,687,000, instead of
RMB61,835,000.

As a result, the related sub-totals and totals presented in the
Statement of Financial Position of the Company as at 31
December 2017 and the summary of the Company's reserves
for the year then ended were also overstated by
RMB104,852,000.

The comparative amounts disclosed in the tables above in
respect of the period for the year ended 31 December 2017
have been restated to retrospectively adjust for these
overstatement errors. These overstatement errors relate to
the statements of financial position and reserves of the
Company and had no effects on the consolidated financial
position and reserves of the Group as at and for the year
ended 31 December 2017. Accordingly no restatement of the
comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is necessary

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

NiERAREEEZE20185F 12 A31 BIEFERD
RAEVBREROBREY  ARRIERAEE
HZE2017F12 831 BIEWREENGEES T
RERMFEATEEARTR 2017412 A31 HH
AR EREEZA LFENEARABFE
BMEHIRIATXEER

— R2017F12 A31 BRI FE W B A 7 5
TESE R 52 A AR5 322,702,000 7T * &
B AR 217,850,000 7T

— ARAFP2017FE12A31 B FEEER
T A ARK3195770007 0 EAAR
#214,7250007C ¢ &

— ARREHZER217F12A31HIEFER
A R EER B EEREE A AR
166,687,0007C * J& & A R 61,8350007T °

A, - AARF 2017912 A 31 BRI AR
KEHEZBIEFENALGREREZEME
SR/ NGT RBRTAERTIERTARE
104,852,000 JT, °

FRBEZ207F2ANHLEFERBEME
BEOLRESEDES - URZEHBKRER
ER B - 25 B ANHERE IR R
MARRNGFEERR  HAEER2017F12A4
31 BWERE AR R E 2017512 A31H
IFFENREBEITESE - Bt H#ESSAR
SEGATBMENLRET -



For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to AETHRESHEELEFHE - UFEWEHH
conform with the Reporting Period's presentation (see Note R2% 75 (R M EE39) c ()L R 20188 A
39). (i) In respect of the acquisition of Jennifer Convertibles 31 B Y B Jennifer Convertibles Inc.m 5 @ A&
Inc. on 31 August 2018, the Group has applied merger BEOhHERES TR HERAME:

accounting method for the business combination under Ko AV BERERLEBH AL RSED
common control. Comparative amounts in the consolidated T E %I+ J8 40 Jennifer Convertibles Inc. % 7% —
financial statements and relevant notes have been restated BRAEELE o ()40 il CEEER
as if the business of Jennifer Convertibles Inc. had always MmE  BHERAREERRE TRIERED] -

been carried out by the Group. (i) In respect of the clerical
mistake mention in note 40, the statement of financial
position and statement of equity have been corrected and

restated.
The financial statements were approved and authorised for PFHEBRON2019F7 10 EEETS X E
issue by the board of directors on 10 July 2019. I T8 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
HE2018F12A3BIEFE

The consolidated results of Morris Holdings Limited (the
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 and the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2018
are those set out in the audited financial statements.

The summary of the consolidated results of the Group for each of
the years ended 31 December 2014, 2015 and 2016 and of the
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2014, 2015 and 2016 has been extracted from the prospectus
issued on 30 December 2016 in connection with the listing of the
Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 12 January 2017.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

RESULTS S
Revenue WA

Cost of sales SHE AR
Gross profit EH

Profit before tax B A Bl
Income tax expense FrS R X
Profit for the year FRm A

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER A&
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BaE

MORRIS HOLDINGS LIMITED
REERBRARAT

HZE2017FK2018F12A31BILEE &R
ERARAR([EQT ) REMBRAR(TX
GRAEIXAEE])NEAEEUARAEER
2017 F 2018512 A31 BHNGABENREBE
BHEHF R EEZAEHRERA o

AREBHZE 20144F ~ 2015F K 2016512 A 31
AESFENGAEXEREZURAERR
20144F ~ 20154F ) 2016 5512 A 31 AWI4E A

ERBENHSAAQRFERKDE 201781
RNAREBHERIMERARERLT
FrTEs8) B I A2016512 B30 B MBI E L -

ATNEE Y MEREBZA B IHRERN—BD

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2017 2016 2015 2014
2017 F 2016 4F 20154 2014 4F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETTT AREBTIT ARETT
(restated)

(g=5)
1,416,395 941,617 926,471 824,675
(937,864) (671,050) (705,557) (652,051)
478,531 270,567 220,914 172,624
184,043 112,045 103,166 37,804
(38,348) (31,369) (20,098) (13,440)
145,695 80,676 83,068 24,364
As at 31 December
A12A31H
2017 2016 2015 2014
20175 2016 £ 20154 2014 £
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETFIT ARBETIT AREFTIT
(restated)
(& =7)
1,142,847 1,102,005 937,359 1,728,622
(802,688) (943,241) (862,302)  (1,423,246)
340,159 158,764 75,057 305,376
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